John M. Colmers
Chairman

Herbert S. Wong, Ph.D.
Vice-Chairman

George H. Bone,
Stephen F. Jencks,
M.D., M.P.H.
Jack C. Keane

Bernadette C. Loftus,

State of Maryland
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene

M.D.

M.D.

Thomas R. Mullen

Health Services Cost Review Commission
4160 Patterson Avenue, Baltimore, Maryland 21215
Phone: 410-764-2605 - Fax: 410-358-6217

Toll Free: 1-888-287-3229
hscrc.maryland.gov

Donna Kinzer
Executive Director

Stephen Ports
Principal Deputy Director
Policy and Operations

David Romans
Director
Payment Reform
and Innovation

Gerard J. Schmith
Deputy Director
Hospital Rate Setting

Sule Calikoglu, Ph.D.
Deputy Director
Research and Methodology

524th MEETING OF THE HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION

November 18, 2015

EXECUTIVE SESSION

12:00 p.m.

(The Commission will begin in public session at 12:00 p.m. for the purpose of, upon motion and approval,

9.

adjourning into closed session. The open session will resume at 1PM.)

Update on Contract and Modeling of the All-payer Model vis-a-vis the All-Payer Model Contract —
Administration of Model Moving into Phase II - Authority General Provisions Article, §3-104
Consultation with Legal Counsel on Legal Authority for Rate Application Moratorium — General

Provisions Article - §3-305(b)(7)

Personnel Matters - General Provisions Article, §3-305 (b)(1)(ii)

PUBLIC SESSION OF THE HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION

1:00 p.m.

Review of the Minutes from the Public Meeting and Executive Session on October 14, 2015

E ive Di SR

New Model Monitoring

Docket Status — Cases Closed

2300R — Washington Adventist Hospital
2312A - University of Maryland Medical Center

Docket Status — Cases Open

2309A - University of Maryland Medical Center
2313A - University of Maryland Medical Center

2304N — UM St. Joseph Medical Center 2307A — Maryland Physician Care
2308A — Priority Partners 2310A — MedStar Family Choice

2311A — MedStar Family Choice 2314A — Riverside Health of Maryland
2315A — Johns Hopkins Health System - i
2317R - Holy Cross Health 2318A — University of Maryland Medical System

Preliminary Staff Report Regarding Health Job Opportunity Program Proposal

Update from Performance Measurement Work Group

Discl { the Hospital Financial and Statistical Data for Fiscal Year 2014

Legal Report

10. Hearing and Meeting Schedule




Closed Session Minutes
of the
Health Services Cost Review Commission

October 14, 2015

Upon motion made in public session, Chairman Colmers call for adjournment into
closed session to discuss the following items:

1. Update on Contract and Modeling of the All-Payer Model vis-a-vis the All-
Payer Model Contract;

The Closed Session was called to order at 12:02 p.m. and held under authority of -
§ 3-104 of the General Provisions Article.

In attendance, in addition to Chairman Colmers, were Commissioners Bone,
Jencks, Keane, Mullen and Wong. Commissioner Loftus participated by telephone.

In attendance representing Staff were Donna Kinzer, David Romans, Steve Ports,
Sule Gerovich, Ellen Englert, Jessica Lee, and Dennis Phelps.

Also attending were Deborah Gracey of Health Management Associates and Stan
Lustman, Commission Counsel.

Item One
Steve Ports, Principal Deputy Director, updated the Commission on a shared
stakeholder process with the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene in order
to develop a vision for Phase 1.5 and 2.0 of the Model.

Item Two
Donna Kinzer, Executive Director, and David Romans, Director-Payment Reform

and Innovation, presented and the Commission discussed an updated analysis of
Medicare per beneficiary data.

The Closed Session was adjourned at 1:02 p.m.



MINUTESOF THE
523rd MEETING OF THE
HEALTH SERVICESCOST REVIEW COMMISSION

October 14, 2015

Chairman John Colmers called the public meeting to order at 12:02 pm. Commissioners George
H. Bone, M.D., Stephen F. Jencks, M.D., MPH, Jack C. Keane, Thomas Mullen, and Herbert S.
Wong, Ph.D. were also in attendance. Bernadette C. Loftus, M.D., joined the meeting via
telephone. Upon motion made by Commissioner Jencks and seconded by Commissioner \WWong,
the meeting was moved to Executive Session. Chairman Colmers reconvened the public meeting
at 1:10 pm.

REPORT OF THE OCTOBER 14, 2015 EXECUTIVE SESSION

Mr. Dennis Phelps, Associate Director-Audit & Compliance, summarized the minutes of the
October 14, 2015 Executive Session.

ITEM |
REVIEW OF THE MINUTESFROM SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 EXECUTIVE SESSION
AND PUBLIC MEETING AND OCTOBER 1, 2015 EXECUTIVE SESSION

The Commission voted unanimously to approve the minutes of the September 9, 2015 Executive
Session and Public Meeting and the October 1, 2015 Executive Session.

ITEM II
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Ms. Donna Kinzer, Executive Director, provided an update on the Health Job Opportunity
Program Proposal (the Proposal) introduced at last month’s public meeting. The Proposal
suggests that the HSCRC provide up to $40 million through hospital rates to establish about
1,000 entry level health jobs in areas of extreme poverty and unemployment. This proposal came
about due to the unrest in Baltimore City and the belief that employment is an important element
needed to change the current situation. The Proposal seeks to create community based jobs that
can contribute to improved community health, as well as hospital jobs that create employment
opportunities in economically challenged areas.

Ms. Kinzer noted that the Payment Model Workgroup held a meeting on October 51 to discuss
the Proposal and other topics. Program description materials and a series of questions were sent
out prior to the meeting and are posted at the HSCRC website. Comments were al so accepted
from individuals attending the meeting.

The work group members and commenters expressed their appreciation for the leadership in
bringing forward this job proposal.



Comment |etters received noted the following concerns:

e It wasimportant to define success. Success would need to be framed not only in creating
jobs but also in the context of the New All Payer Model and Triple Aim of improving
care, improving health, lowering costs.

e |t would beimportant to focus on jobs outside of the hospitals such as Community Health
Workers. The concern was raised that the reduction of avoidable utilization in hospitals
might reduce the need for some of the hospital jobs that were part of the Proposal.

e That the infrastructure adjustments already provided to hospitals or the additional amount
that is dated for award in January 2016, which focuses on similar activities, would be a
duplicate effort.

e |t was suggested that other funding sources be considered for Proposal implementation

e |f the Proposal were to move forward, much more detailed design work needs to take
place.

Mr. Melvin Wilson, Executive Director of Turnaround Tuesday ajobs movement of Baltimore
United in Leadership Development (BUILD), expressed support for the job proposal.

Staff is currently considering al oral and written comments and will report back to the
Commission at the November Commission meeting.

Ms. Kinzer stated that Staff has been paying attention to Medicare growth in charges and
utilization. Ms. Kinzer noted that there has been an uptick in Medicare volumes, and that this
increase is likely affecting Medicare savings. Staff will continue to monitor the situation closely
and consider whether any special actions or policy changes are necessary.

Ms. Kinzer stated that from fiscal year 2013 to 2014, there were increases in orthopedic surgery
and oncology service lines for Medicare patients. She noted that these increases were more than
offset by decreases in avoidable utilization such as readmissions and Prevention Quality
Indicator (PQI) admissions, with a net reduction in Equivalent Case Mix Adjusted Discharges
(ECMADS).

Ms. Kinzer stated that from fiscal year 2014 to 2015, there were larger increases in orthopedic
surgery and oncology services for Medicare patients with a modest reduction in readmissions;
however, there was an increase in PQI admissions as well as other medical admissions for the
period. The result was an increase of 2.09% in ECMADs in FY 2015. She noted that the rate
adjustments provided by the Commission for July 1, 2014 and July 1, 2015 are based on the
assumption that Medicare per capita growth will be lower than the All Payer growth by 2%. The
calendar year per capita growth per resident in All Payer revenue through August 2015 versus
the same period in 2014 was 2.5%. The Medicare growth for the same period was 1.71%, with a



gap at .79% rather than the projected 2%.

Ms. Kinzer noted that success of the All Payer Model is dependent on reducing avoidable
utilization. Hospitals will need to accelerate their efforts to reduce avoidable utilization in order
to achieve the volume levels that support the savings requirements for Medicare. Staff notes that
anumber of planning efforts are underway, and some hospitals have implemented significant
interventions. However, there is significant work to be done to reduce avoidable utilization,
including working closely with primary care physicians to coordinate care and address chronic
conditions more effectively, implementing comprehensive care coordination for high needs and
complex patients, and working with post-acute and long term care facilities to reduce avoidable
hospitalizations. In addition, Ms. Kinzer noted at the same time Medicare hospital utilization
increased, there was also an increase in payments to SNFs. HSCRC staff will investigate these
two trends and consider the implications.

Ms. Kinzer stated that CM S has granted Maryland an exemption from the national Medicare
Value Based Purchasing Program for FY 2016. CM S notes that Maryland significantly lags
national performance in patient experience of care in the Hospital Consumer Assessment of
Healthcare Providers and System surveys. As aresult of thislagging performance, HSCRC has
assigned a higher proportion of the weighting to this domain and has increased the amount of
revenue at risk for this program.

Ms. Kinzer noted that Staff is currently focused on the following activities:

e |Issuing amended rate orders that adjust for final reconciliation of GBR/TPR and rate
compliance and Quality Based Reimbursement (QBR ) program performance

e Reviewing radiation therapy, infusion, and chemotherapy market shift adjustments with
stakeholders

e Reviewing Certificate of Need applications that have been filed

e Moving forward on updates to value based performance measures, including efficiency
measures

e Turning to focus on per capita costs and total cost of care, for purposes of monitoring and
also to progress toward a focus on outcomes and cost across the health care system.

e Preparing to finalize and implement a stakeholder process that will be executed together
with DHMH and other agencies, focused on developing avision for Phase 2 of the All
Payer Model and devel oping interim approaches that will provide progression toward
Phase 2. Medicaid is evaluating formation of an ACO like model for dual igible
enrollees (beneficiaries with both Medicare and Medicaid coverage). This process will be
combined with the stakeholder process for progressing on the All Payer Model.

o Staff isevaluating proposals received for support of the Phase 2 application devel opment
and application process with CMMI, together with other state agencies.

Ms. Kinzer introduced Ms. Erin Schurmann as the new Project Manager. Ms. Kinzer also
introduced Ms. Andrea Zumbrum as the new Policy Analyst and Mr. William Hoff as the new
Assistant Chief of Audit and Compliance.



Steve Ports, Deputy Director Policy and Operations, updated the Commission on staff’s plansto
use the HSCRC’ s Advisory Council to shape the vision and guiding principles for the next
phases of the All Payer Model and presented staff* s recommendation that new members be
added to the Advisory Council. These new members would have expertise in acute and long term
care aswell as physician expertise. The Commission voted unanimously to approve staff’s
recommendation.

ITEM I
NEW MODEL MONITORING

Mr. David Romans, Director Payment Reform and Innovation, stated that Monitoring Maryland
Performance (MMP) for the new All-Payer Model for the month of August focuses on fiscal year
(July 1 through June 30) as well as calendar year results.

Mr. Romans reported that for the two month period ended August 30, 2015, All-Payer total gross
revenue increased by 3.86% over the same period in FY 2014. All-Payer total gross revenue for
Maryland residents increased by 4.15%; this translates to a per capita growth of 3.57%. All-
Payer gross revenue for non-Maryland residents increased by 1.05%.

Mr. Romans reported that for the eight months of the calendar year ended August 30, 2015, All-
Payer total gross revenue increased by 2.68% over the same period in FY 2014. All-Payer total
gross revenue for Maryland residents increased by 3.07%; this translates to a per capita growth
of 2.50%. All-Payer gross revenue for non-Maryland residents decreased by 1.25%.

Mr. Romans reported that for the two months ended August 30, 2015, Medicare Fee-For-Service
gross revenue increased by 4.77% over the same period in FY 2014. Medicare Fee-For-Service
gross revenue for Maryland residents increased by 5.13%; this tranglates to a per capita growth
of 2.03%. Maryland Fee-For-Service gross revenue for non-residents increased by 0.80%.

Mr. Romans reported that for the eight months of the calendar year ended August

30, 2015, Medicare Fee-For-Service gross revenue increased by 4.35%. Medicare Fee-For-
Service gross revenue for Maryland residents increased by 5.01%; this translates to a per capita
growth of 1.71 %. Maryland Fee-For-Service gross revenue for non-residents decreased by
2.89%.

According to Mr. Romans, for the two months of the fiscal year ended August 30,

2015, unaudited average operating profit for acute hospitals was 4.29%. The median hospital
profit was 4.26%, with a distribution of 1.24% in the 25~ percentile and 7.48% in the 75~
percentile. Rate Regulated profits were 8.40%.

Dr. Sule Gerovich Ph.D., Deputy Director Research and Methodology, presented a quality report
update on the Maryland Hospital Acquired Conditions program based upon Potentially
Preventable Complications (PPCs) data and discharges through June 2015 and readmission data
on discharges through July 2015.



Readmissions

e The All-Payer risk adjusted readmission rate was 12.87 % for the period of January 2015
to July 2015. Thisis acumulative decrease of 6.84% from the July 2013 risk adjusted
readmission rate.

e TheMedicare Fee for Service risk adjusted readmission rate was 13.72% for the period
January 2015 to July 2015 YTD. Thisis an accumulated decrease of 5.81% from the July
2013 risk adjusted readmission rate.

e Based on the New-Payer Model, hospitals must reduce Maryland’ s readmission rate to or
below the national Medicare readmission rate by 2018. The Readmission Reduction
incentive program has set the goals for hospitals to reduce their risk adjusted readmission
rate by 9.3% during CY 2015 compared to CY 2013. Currently, only 15 out of 46
hospitals have reduced their risk adjusted rate by more than 9.3%.

Potentially Preventable Complications

e The All-Payer risk adjusted PPC rate was 0.83 for June 2015 YTD. Thisis a decrease of
35.66% from the June 2013 Y TD risk adjusted PPC rate.

e TheMedicare Feefor Service risk adjusted PPC rate was 0.96 for June 2015 YTD. This
is a decrease of 38.46% from the June 2013 Y TD risk adjusted PPC rate.

ITEM IV
DOCKET STATUSCASESCLOSED

2306A — University of Maryland Medical Center

ITEM V
DOCKET STATUS OPEN CASES

2300R Washington Adventist Hospital

Jerry Schmith, Deputy Director Hospital Rate Setting, summarized Staff s final

recommendation for the Washington Adventist Hospital (WAH) rate application request that
rates be increased in FY 2019 to help pay for alarge capital cost increase associated with the
construction of areplacement facility in a new location in White Oak, Maryland. This partial rate
application is being filed during the Certificate of Need (CON) review, which is underway at the
Maryland Health Care Commission (MHCC). Thisrate request is being filed in advance of CON
approval because WAH represented in its CON application that it will require arate increase to
make the project feasible. After the rate application is acted upon, the HSCRC staff will provide
afeasibility evaluation on the project to MHCC. If WAH finances the project through

MHHEFA, it would to seek a Comfort Order from the HSCRC.

The total cost of the proposed project is $330,829,524. WAH proposes to contribute $50,575,175
in cash and $11,000,000 in land towards the project. It will also fundraise an additional
$20,000,000 and finance the remainder with the sale of $244,750,000 in bonds and $4,504,349 of



related interest earnings.

WAH requests a permanent revenue increase of $19,700,000 or 7.3 percent of itstotal approved
permanent revenue. WAH is requesting that 50 percent of the revenue increase be effective on
January 1, 2019, the anticipated opening date of the new facility in White Oak, Maryland. WAH
is requesting that the remaining 50 percent of the revenue increase be effective on July 1, 2019.
The requested revenue increase represents approximately 80 percent of the estimated additional
depreciation and interest costs associated with the project.

Staff recommends the following:

e That $15,391,282 be added to WAH’s permanent rate base at the time the facility opens,
estimated to be January 1, 2019. This revenue adjustment will be reduced if the actual
interest rate incurred is different from the projected 6 percent used in these calculations.

e That revenue approved is based on the information and representations contained within
the Hospital’s CON application. Should the information and representations change
materially in the view of HSCRC staff, staff reserves the right to bring this matter back to
the HSCRC for reevaluation and potential modification to the approved revenue.

e That WAH will continue to be subject to any revenue adjustments related to the Global
Budget Revenue or any new rate setting system devel oped in response to changesin
health care delivery or payment methodologies in Maryland. Staff isin the process of
developing new rate methodol ogies over the next few years that will account for
operational efficiencies and ongoing efforts to reduce potentially avoidable utilization.

e That staff recommendation should not be construed in any way as staff’ s rendering any
opinion at this time on the financial feasibility of the capital project.

The Commission voted unanimously to approve staff’ s recommendation.

2307A- Maryland Physician Care

Mr. Ports summarized staff’ s draft recommendation on the application filed by Saint Agnes
Health System, Western Maryland Health System, Holy Cross Health, and Meritus Health (the
“Hospitals’). The Hospitals are seeking approval for continued participation of Maryland
Physician Care in the Medicaid Health Choice Program. The Hospitals are requesting to renew
the contract for one year beginning on January 1, 2016.

Mr. Ports announced that the final recommendation will be presented at the November public
meeting.

2308A- Priority Partners

Mr. Ports summarized staff’ s draft recommendation on the application filed by Johns Hopkins
Health System (the “ System™) on behalf of John Hopkins Hospital, Johns Hopkins Bayview
Medical Center, Howard County General Hospital, and Suburban Hospital (the “Hospitals’). The
System is seeking approval for continued participation of Priority Partners, Inc. in the Medicaid



Health Choice Program. The Hospitals are requesting to renew the contract for one year
beginning on January 1, 2016.

Mr. Ports announced that the final recommendation will be presented at the November public
meeting.

2309A- University of Maryland Medical Center

The University of Maryland Medical Center (the “Hospital”) filed an application on September
18, 2015 requesting continued participation in aglobal rate arrangement for solid organ and
blood and bone marrow transplant services with OptumHealth Care Solutions, Inc. beginning
November 1, 2015.

Staff recommends that the Commission approve the Hospital’ s application for an alternative
method of rate determination for solid organ and blood and bone marrow transplant services for
one year beginning November 1, 2015, and that the approval be contingent upon the execution of
the standard Memorandum of Understanding.

The Commission voted unanimously to approve staff’ s recommendation.

2310A- MedStar Family Choice

Mr. Ports summarized Staff’ s draft recommendation on the application of the MedStar Health
System on behalf of Franklin Square Hospital, Good Samaritan, Harbor Hospital and Union
Memorial Hospital. MedStar Health seeks renewal for continued participation of MedStar
Family Choice (“MFC”) in the Medicaid Health Choice Program for one year beginning in
January 1, 2015.

Mr. Ports announced that the final recommendation will be presented at the November public
meeting.

2312A-University of Maryland

The University of Maryland Medical Center (the “Hospital”) filed an application on September
28, 2015 requesting continued participation in a global rate arrangement for solid organ and bone
marrow transplant services with Blue Cross Blue Shield Blue Distinction Centers beginning
November 1, 2015.

Staff recommends that the Commission approve the Hospital’ s application for an alternative
method of rate determination for solid organ and bone marrow transplant services for one year
beginning November 1, 2015, and that the approval be contingent upon the execution of the
standard Memorandum of Understanding.

The Commission voted unanimously to approve staff’ s recommendation.



2313A-University of Maryland M edical Center

The University of Maryland Medical Center (the “Hospital”) filed arenewal application with the
HSCRC on September 28, 2015 seeking approval to participate in a new global rate arrangement
with Humanafor solid organ and blood and bone marrow transplant services for a one year
period beginning November 1, 2015.

Staff recommends that the Commission approve the Hospital’ s application for an alternative
method of rate determination for solid organ and blood and bone marrow transplant services for
one year beginning November 1, 2015, and that the approval be contingent upon the execution of
the standard Memorandum of Understanding.

The Commission voted unanimously to approve staff’ s recommendation.

2314A University of Maryland M edical Systems

Mr. Ports summarized Staff’ s draft recommendation on the application of Riverside Health
(“Riverside”), aMedicaid Managed Care Organization (MCO), on behalf of the University of
Maryland Medical System Corporation (the “Hospitals). Riverside and the Hospitals seek
approval for the MCO to continue to participate in the Medicaid Health Choice Program

for one year beginning January 1, 2016.

Mr. Ports announced that the final recommendation will be presented at the November public
meeting.

ITEM VI
FINAL RECOMMENDATIONSON REVISIONSTO THE QUALITY BASED
REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM FOR RATE YEAR 2018

Ms. Dianne Feeney, Associate Director Quality Initiative, presented Staff’s Final
recommendation on updating the Quality Based Reimbursement (QBR) Program for FY 2018
(See “Final Recommendation for Updating the Quality Based Reimbursement Program for FY
2018" on the HSCRC website).

HSCRC quality based measurement initiatives, including the scaling methodol ogies and
magnitudes of revenue “at risk” for those programs, are important tools for providing strong
incentives for hospitals to improve their quality performance over time. HSCRC implemented
the first hospital adjustments for the QBR Program performance in July 2009. Current
Commission policy calls for measurement of hospital performance scores across clinical
processes of care, outcome and patient experience of care domains, and scaling of hospital
performance results in allocating rewards and penalties based on performance.

“Scaling” for QBR refersto the differential allocation of a pre-determined portion of base
regulated hospital inpatient revenue based on assessment of the quality of hospital performance.
The rewards (positive scale amounts) or penalties (negative scaled amounts) are then applied to



each hospital’ s update factor for the rate year; these scaled amounts are applied on a* one-time”
basis and are not considered permanent revenue.

For FY 2018, HSCRC staff final recommendations include adjusting the weights and updating
the measurement domains to be consistent as possible with the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services (CMS) Value Based Purchasing Program. They aso include holding steady
the amount of total hospital revenue at risk for scaling for the QBR Program

The proposed final recommendations for the QBR Program are as follows:

e Continueto allocate 2 percent of hospital approved inpatient revenue for QBR
performance in FY 2018 to be finalized by the Aggregate Revenue “at risk”
recommendation.

e Adjust measurement domain weightsto include: 50 percent for Patient Experience Care
Transition, 35 percent for Safety, and 15 percent for Clinical Care.

The Commission voted unanimously to approve staff’ s recommendation.

ITEM VII
LEGAL REPORT
Requlations
Final Action

Rate Application and Approval Procedures— COMAR 10.37.10.26-1

The purpose of this action isto impose a moratorium on the Commission’s Maryland Health
Insurance Plan (MHIP) assessment for Fiscal Y ear 2016 in response to the Budget
Reconciliation Act of 2015 changes to the program as of July 1, 2015. This proposed regulatory
change appeared in the July 24, 2015 issue of the Maryland Register (42:15 Md. R. 1026-1027).

The Commission voted unanimously to approve the final adoption of the proposed regulation.

ITEM VIII
HEARING AND MEETING SCHEDULE

November 18, 2015 Times to be determined, 4160 Patterson Avenue
HSCRC Conference Room

December 9, 2015 Times to be determined, 4160 Patterson Avenue
HSCRC Conference Room

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:35 pm.



Executive Director's Report
Health Services Cost Review Commission

November 18, 2015

Volume Changes

The HSCRC staff has been paying attention to volume changes in hospitals. A core approach for
the success of the All-Payer Model is to reduce unplanned hospitalizations that could be
avoided with better care, care coordination, and care integration. By reducing avoidable
utilization, funds are freed up to allow for investing in care coordination, delivering new
services, and implementing other initiatives. We are also attentive to Medicare growth in
charges and utilization as the All-Payer Model has specific savings requirements for Medicare.

HSCRC staff will provide reports on utilization trends to the Commission on a regular basis.

Year 1 Results
Last week, CMS released the Year 1 (CY 2014) results for Maryland’s All-Payer Model. The
results were as follows:



CY 2014
Results

Performance
Measures

Targets

< 3.58% per capita

All-Payer Revenue Growth 1.47% per capita

Medicare Savings in Hospital

>
Expenditures 2 $330m over 5 years

$116m in Year |

1.5% lower than the
national average

Lower than the
national average

Medicare Savings in Total
Cost of Care

All-Payer Quality
Improvement Reductions in
PPCs under MHAC Program

30% reduction over 5 26% reduction in

years Year |

)
< National average over 0.21% gap decrease

5 years

between Maryland &
the Nation

Readmissions Reductions for
Medicare
Hospital Revenue to Global
or Population-based

2 80% by Year 5

> 95% inYear |

Maryland had a good first year of performance, but there is significant work ahead to ensure
the sustainability and progression of the model and targeted improvements.

Planning for Ongoing Implementation and Application to Extend the All

Payer Model

With the State’s new All-Payer Model nearing its second full year of operations, the
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene (DHMH) and the Health Services Cost Review
Commission (HSCRC) are reconvening the Advisory Council. The Council, originally charged with
recommending guiding principles for the implementation of the new model, is now needed to
provide advice on the potential future directions for Maryland’s health care improvement and
population health initiatives and the All-Payer Model progression. In order to create
sustainability of the existing All-Payer model, the delivery system needs to develop partnerships
and infrastructure that will help it improve care with a resulting reduction in avoidable
hospitalizations and costs. Additionally, the Agreement between the Centers for Medicare &
Medicaid Services (CMS) and Maryland calls for Maryland to submit a proposal for a new model
no later than January 2017, which shall limit, at a minimum, the Medicare beneficiary total cost
of care growth rate. HSCRC staff is engaged in a planning process with stakeholders to prepare
for these upcoming meetings.



The HSCRC and DHMH staff members are also working with the Center for Medicare &
Medicaid Innovation (CMMI) to amend the existing All-Payer Model Agreement to allow for
alignment activities needed to support successful implementation and sustainability of the
model. To support these integration components, tools that are available to Accountable Care
Organizations (ACOs) and bundled payment programs need to be made available to support the
integration and care coordination activities needed. These include:
e Sharing internal cost savings
o Pay-for-outcomes programs that share internal cost savings when avoidable and
unnecessary utilization is decreased through improvements in care delivery; and
e Investments in care coordination infrastructure that support care coordination in the
community, some of which may be imbedded in practices or other provider settings
To facilitate these activities, the model will need to be enhanced to provide protections similar
to those granted to ACOs that permit these activities. In addition, staff will seek access to data
to support care coordination, evaluation, and monitoring of results by providers, similar to data
provided by CMS to ACOs and bundled payment providers.

DHMH is also considering the development of an approach to address the needs of dual eligible
beneficiaries (those who have both Medicare and Medicaid coverage). This process will be
organized together with Work Groups for the All-Payer Model since the work needs to be
integrated.

Finally, HSCRC has issued an RFP for assistance with development of the proposal of a new
model. Itisin the process of evaluating proposals, together with members of the leadership
staff of DHMH and MHCC.

Regulations on Rate Application Moratorium

Staff is proposing a regulation to establish a temporary moratorium on full rate reviews. The
regulation is necessitated by the fact that the Commission’s current policy does not adequately
reflect the existing global budget revenue structure that all acute care hospitals are currently
under. As hospitals reduce potentially avoidable utilization (PAU) through care and quality
improvements, unit costs may rise. Under the existing Reasonableness of Charges (ROC)
methodology, such an increase may increase the charge per case. This would contribute to
creating a higher charge per case benchmark as volumes fall. HSCRC would want to remove the
excess capacity and isolate the investment cost to produce the savings level in calculating an
efficient hospital operating cost benchmark. The opposite is true if a hospital were to
experience an increase in PAU. The hospital could appear to be more efficient as its charge per
case decreases, even though it would not be meeting the goals of the model. Staff has begun



working on new efficiency measures that aim to balance the goals of the All-Payer Model three-
part aim with operating efficiency concepts.

Previously the Commission issued a moratorium of full rate reviews for three years to
accommodate the development and coding changes necessary to implement APR-DRGs. This
regulation anticipates a much shorter moratorium while new efficiency measures are being
developed. We are targeting completion by July 2016.

Staff will continue to evaluate capital applications under the current approach. However, we
will consider changes in PAU when evaluating efficiency changes beyond 2014. At the current
time, we are continuing to use a 2014 ROC calculation.

Hospitals will continue to have all other rate relief approaches at their disposal.

Extension of the Submission Date for Transformation Implementation
Submissions

Staff has received multiple requests from hospitals to extend the submission date of the
Transformation Implementation Program applications for two weeks. In order to give hospitals

more time to refine the proposals, the staff has extended the submission date from December
7, 2015 to December 21, 2015.

The reports of Regional Partnership Planning Grantees that received funding through rates in
June 2015 are still due on December 7, 2015. Likewise, the Strategic Hospital Transformation
Plans are due from all acute care hospitals on December 7, 2015. An updated Request for
Proposal (RFP) for the Transformation Implementation Program and related Q&A may be found
on the Commission website.

Staff Focus
HSCRC staff is currently focused on the following activities:

e Continuing to review radiation therapy, infusion and chemotherapy market shift
adjustments with stakeholders.

e Reviewing Certificate of Need (CON) applications that have been filed. Staff has recently
provided comments to MHCC regarding two applications.

e Moving forward on updates to value-based performance measures, including efficiency
measures.

e Turning to focus on per capita costs and total cost of care, for purposes of monitoring
and progressing toward a focus on outcomes and cost across the health care system.



e Preparing to finalize and support a stakeholder process that will be executed together
with DHMH and other agencies. It will be focused on ensuring the success of the All-
Payer Model and providing a proposal no later than January 2017 as required under the
All-Payer Model Agreement with CMS.



John M. Colmers
Chairman

Herbert S. Wong, Ph.D.
Vice-Chairman

George H. Bone,
M.D.

Stephen F. Jencks,
M.D., M.P.H.

Jack C. Keane

State of Maryland
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene

Health Services Cost Review Commission
4160 Patterson Avenue, Baltimore, Maryland 21215

Bernadette C. Loftus, Phone: 410-764-2605 - Fax: 410-358-6217

M.D.

Toll Free: 1-888-287-3229
hscrc.maryland.gov

Donna Kinzer
Executive Director

Stephen Ports
Principal Deputy Director
Policy and Operations

David Romans
Director
Payment Reform
and Innovation

Gerard J. Schmith
Deputy Director
Hospital Rate Setting

Sule Gerovich, Ph.D.
Deputy Director

Thomas R. Mullen Research and Methodology

Memorandum

Date: November 6, 2015

To: Frances B. Phillips
Commissioner/Reviewer, MHCC

From: Gerard J. Schmith ﬂ ; ’/
Deputy Director, Hospital Rate Setting, HSCRC

Subject: Relocation of Washington Adventist Hospital (“WAH”) and Establishment of a
Special Psychiatric Hospital on the Existing Takoma Park Campus
Docket No. 13-15-2349

On August 31, 2015 you requested that we review and comment on the financial feasibility and
underlying assumptions of the relocation of WAH from its existing location in Takoma Park to the
White Oak area and establishment of a Special Psychiatric Hospital on the existing Takoma Park
Campus. Adventist HealthCare Incorporated, (“AHI”), the owner and operator of WAH, submitted
an amended CON on September 29, 2014 with additional supplemental information including a letter
dated July 27, 2015 from James L ee, Executive Vice President and CFO of AHI.

This memorandum provides our genera comments and addresses your specific questions regarding
the project.

General Commentson Financial Feasibility

Data Reviewed

We reviewed the revised financial portions submitted on October 21, 2015 as well as other pertinent
supplemental information associated with the CON provided by WAH prior to that date. The
information submitted included audited financial data for the fiscal years ending December 31,
2013 and 2014, actual and budgeted data for fiscal year ending 2015, and projected data for the
fiscal years ending 2016 through 2020 (the second full year after the completion of the project.)

1



Along with these financial projections, we have also reviewed WAH' s audited financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 and the expected financing plan for this project.
Revenue Projections

We have reviewed the assumptions regarding the projections of operating revenue. The assumed
annual HSCRC approved revenue increases listed in the CON assumptions provided by WAH that
were the basis for the revenue increases shown in the table below are as follows:

Table 1 - Summary of Projected HSCRC Approved Revenue Increases
Washington Adventist Hospital

Y ears Ending June 30,
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Update Factor 221% 217% 230% 230% 230% 2.30%
Age Adjusted Population Growth 0.00% .56% .56% .56% .56%  .56%
Population Infrastructure 0.00% 1.05% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Market Shift 00% .23% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% -.05%
Other Reversals, One Time Adj, etc.  -.75% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Tota 1.46% 4.01% 2.86% 2.86% 2.86% 2.81%

Source: Updated financia information and projections submitted by WAH on October 21, 2015.

In addition to the revenue increases shown above, WAH assumed that revenue would increase by
$15,391,282 (5.4%) on January 1, 2019 to reflect the HSCRC approved capital increase.

Staff believes that the assumed increases are reasonable in light of the projected changesin
population and approved revenue.

WAH projected that charity write offs would equal 6.5% of gross patient revenue from 2015 through
2020, an increase of .5% from the 2014 actual 6.0%. WAH projected that bad debt expenses would
equal 5.0% of gross patient revenue less Uncompensated Care Fund payments from 2015 to 2020,
which represents a 1.7% decrease from the 2014 actual of 6.7%. WAH attributes these changes to
the changes brought about by the Affordable Care Act.

WAH’s actual other deductions from revenue equaled 11.8% of gross patient revenue in 2014. WAH
projected that its other deductions from revenue would decrease to 9.5% of gross patient revenue in
2015, decreasing to 9.4% from 2016 through 2018, and then decreasing to 9.3% in 2019 and 2020.
WAH attributes this improvement to engaging a revenue cycle management firm to manage the
revenue cycle operations and the reduction in HSCRC assessments due to the elimination of the
Maryland Health Insurance Program (MHIP).

The HSCRC staff also reviewed WAH's projections of other operating revenue. The projected other
operating revenue is considered reasonable and achievable. WAH did not project any non-operating
revenue associated with this project.



Expense Proj ections

Staff reviewed the assumptions regarding the projection of expenses. WAH stated that it applied the
following variable expense change assumptions in the CON projected financial statements

Table 2 - Summary of Assumed Expense Increases
Washington Adventist Hospital Revised CON Projections

Y ears Ending December 31,
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Salaries Excluding Overhead:

Inflation 2.3% 22% 23% 22% 23% 22%

Changein FTE's 2.0% 18% -2% -4% 18% 8%
Supplies Excluding Overhead:

Inflation 8.2% 20% 35% 35% 35% 35%

Volume -4% 18% 04% -1% 7%  1.2%
Contract labor Excluding Overhead:

Inflation 2.3% 22% 23% 22% 23% 22%

Changein FTE's 171% -125% -2% -4% 18% 0.0%
Purchased Services Excluding Overhead:

Inflation -10.0% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20%

Volume 2.6% 00% 00% 00% -2% 1%

Source: Updated financia information and projections submitted by WAH on October 21, 2015.

For fixed expenses, WAH assumed a series of inflation factors for 2016 to 2020 ranging from 0% for
professional feesto 2.5% for administrative and general expenses. For 2015 inflation, WAH
assumed 0.0% for professional fees, 11.5% for building and maintenance expense, negative (1.9%)
for the overhead allocation from AHI, a negative (.2%) for general and administrative costs, and a
negative (7.7%) for insurance costs.

WAH assumed that it would reduce building and maintenance operating costs by 20%, or
approximately $1,800,000, after the move to the new White Oak facility. WAH has stated that it will
contract with an unrelated party to provide utility services to the new White Oak facility through a
Centralized Utility Plant (CUP).

WAH is projecting that its number of FTE’s per Average Equivalent Occupied Beds (AEOB) will
increase from an actual 4.1 in 2014 at the existing WAH facility to a projected 4.7 in 2020 at the new
White Oak facility. The reason for the large increase in projected FTE’s per AEOB is due to the fact
that approximately 16% of WAH’s patient days are related to the psychiatric patients who will
remain at the existing WAH facility. The 2014 FTE’s per AEOB for other neighboring Montgomery
and Prince Georges County hospitals range from 5.0 at Montgomery General Hospital to 5.8 at
Prince Georges General Hospital. Part of the reason for WAH’slower FTE's per AEOB isdueto
the fact that WAH does not report FTE' sfor all of the shared services that it purchases from AHI
including patient billing and Information Technology Services.

3



Staff calculated the projected overall annual expense percentage variability with volume based on the
percentage change in uninflated revenue compared to the annual change in total expenses including
depreciation and interest depreciation and interest. The results of staff’s analyses were as follows:

Table 3 — Projected Expenses Percent Variability with Volume
Washington Adventist Hospital Revised CON Projections
Y ears Ending December 31,

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Including Depreciation and I nterest 104.0% 142% 97.3% -11.8% 97.2%

Source: Updated financial information and projections submitted by WAH on October 21, 2015.

The average variable cost change averages approximately 90% over the 5 year period. However,
since the overall volume changeis very small during this period, any change to the variable cost
percent would have little impact on the overall projection of expenses. Staff believes that the
assumptions used in the projections of ongoing annual expenses are reasonable and achievable.

In the project budget for capital expenses, WAH made an assumption that it would incur $2,700,000
in relocation costs for the move of the medical/surgical and obstetrics units and practically all
outpatient services at the old facility to the new facility. The $2,700,000 estimated relocation costs
seem low. WAH may incur cost at the new facility before it opens related to training, staffing,
inventories, food, and other items related to relocation. There may also be transportation costs of
moving patients and staff from the old facility to the new facility. If WAH needs to maintain some
of the medical/surgical and obstetrics units and practically all outpatient services at the old facility
after the new facility is open, then costs may be higher than the $2,700,000 WAH has projected.

Financial Ratios

WAH states on Page 128 of the CON that AHI will secure financing for the project pursuant to its
amended and restated master trust indenture dated February 1, 2003. WAH provided the projected
financial information and ratios for the obligated group of AHI. On a consolidated basis AHI
projectsthat it will meet the ratio levels required under its bond documents.

Listed below are the AHI projected ratios and the required ratios per the bond covenants provided by
WAH:



Table 4 - Adventist HealthCare Obligated Group Key Financial Information and Ratios
Washington Adventist Hospital Revised CON Projections

Y ears Ending December 31, (in millions)

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Operating Income $8.7 $22.5 $34.4 $32.7 $28.4 $29.1 $174 $16.0
Operaing Margin 1.2% 3.1% 5.1% 4.8% 4.1% 4.1% 2.4% 2.1%
Excess of Revenue over Expenses $12.1 $25.8 $42.7 $41.8 $37.8 $38.7 $27.2 $25.9
Excess Margin 1.7% 3.5% 6.3% 6.1% 5.5% 5.5% 3.7% 3.4%
Operating Cash FHow $54.2 $71.1 $74.7 $745 $70.9 $725 $87.4 $87.9
Operating Cash How Margin 7.7% 9.7% 11.1% 10.9% 10.3% 10.3% 11.8% 11.6%
Debt Service Coverage-Projected 1.80x 2.13x 2.39x 2.08x 2.00x 2.04x 2.52x 2.79x
Debt Service Coverage --Required 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x
Cash and Equivdents $225.9 $245.1 $213.5 $226.4 $230.3 $196.3 $212.7 $229.2
Days Cash on Hand —Projected 124.6 132.4 127.8 133.8 133.2 1111 114.8 120.6
Days Cash on Hand-Required 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70
Long Term Debt $321.2 $319.8 $299.2 $523.5 $504.7 $502.7 $482.7 $464.1
Net Assets $396.0 $419.0 $432.8 $480.4 $519.8 $575.4 $587.5 $604.0
Debt to Capitdization-Projected 44.8% 43.3% 40.9% 42.1% 49.3% 46.6% 45.1% 43.4%
Totd Ligbilities to Unrestricted Net 1.23x 115 103x 1.38x 1.22 1.11x 1.07 1.03
Assets-Projected
Totd Ligbilities to Unrestricted Net 2.50x 2.50x 2.50x 2.50x 2.50x 2.50x 2.50x 2.50x

Assets-Required
Source: Data Provided by WAH on November 2, 2015

Based upon these projected ratios, Staff believes that AHI would be able to obtain financing for the
project on terms that are consistent with those assumed in the plan of finance.

Projected Volumes

Even though hospital global budgets are fixed and are not sensitive to volume, Staff is concerned
about potential declinesin volumes that may occur as care models are changed and as population
health isimproved. Even without these initiatives, there has been a steady decline in inpatient
hospital utilization over decades, in spite of an aging population. The introduction of DRGs,
technological advancesin surgery, radiation therapy, and new medications have contributed to this
change. While costs have not decreased, services have moved to outpatient settings. Nationally and
in Maryland, payment and delivery models are changing. These models are likely to accelerate these
trends toward lower inpatient utilization. Our advice isthat attention should be directed to making
sure that bed need projections account for these trends and changes while the State is evaluating the
size of thefacility. Thereisarisk that excess capacity could develop, and that this excess capacity
could affect the feasibility of the WAH project. For example, several of the TPR hospitals saw
intensive inpatient volume decreases resulting in excess capacity, including capacity in new facilities.

5



One measure of the potential for utilization to fall is Potentially Avoidable Utilization (PAU). Thisis
ameasurement of categories of unplanned hospital utilization that can be reduced through better care,
better care coordination, and other interventions. Staff is measuring several categories of PAUs. Not
all PAUs are avoidable, but Staff has not yet identified al categories of utilization that are avoidable.
Staff is currently working with recognized national experts to add to the categories of avoidable
utilization.

In HSCRC' s recent calculations of PAUs used to update statewide revenues as of July 1, 2015,
WAH' s percentage of PAU’ swas 16.47% versus a statewide average of 13.65%. This comparison
of PAU’s has not yet been adjusted for socioeconomic status or other health disparities. In the most
recent ROC calculations, WAH had 29.3% of its patients classified as disproportionate share (poor
patients) compared to an average of 17.8% for the total hospitalsin its comparison group. WAH’s
significantly higher than average percentage of disproportionate share patientsis likely contributing
to its higher than average percentage of PAU’s.

On a combined basis, the hospitals in Prince Georges County had 18.50% of their patients classified
as PAU’s, while Montgomery County hospitals had 14.43% of their patients classified as PAUs.
Therefore, not only does WAH have a high proportion of PAU’ s but the hospitals surrounding WAH
aso have high proportions of PAU’s. Staff believesth potential for volume declinesin WAH's
service area related to future reductions in PAUSs should be considered when evaluating bed need
projections as potentially affecting feasibility. We understand that MHCC carries the responsibility
for this effort and that it is difficult to predict the exact impact of change. Nevertheless, Staff
believes conservatism is warranted. WAH is projecting the following discharges and observation
patient volumes for CY s 2015 through 2020:

Table 5 — Projected Volumes
Washington Adventist Hospital Revised CON Projections

Y ear Ended December 31,

Actual Projected

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Inpatient Discharges Excl. Psych. 9,802 9131 9558 9567 9576 9,672 9,768
Outpatient Observation Patients 1,185 2299 1881 1881 1881 1900 1,919

Totals 11,077 11,430 11,439 11,448 11,457 11,572 11,687
Source: Updated financial information and projections submitted by WAH on October 21, 2015.

Included in WAH’ s construction plans are 8 dedicated Short Stay Observation Bedsin the lower
tower and 12 Clinical Decision beds adjacent to the Emergency Department for atotal of 20
additional bedsto treat patients classified as observation patients. WAH is projecting 76,132
observation hours in 2020, the second year of operations at the new White Oak facility. Dividing
these hours by 24 hours per day resultsin 3,172 days of observation care, or an average daily census
of 8.7 patients. Many patients stay less than 24 hours, so we are not certain how this trandates into
bed need or occupancy.

Adding the 20 observation beds to the 152 proposed medical surgical (MSGA) beds resultsin atotal
of 172 beds to take care of patients requiring inpatient MSGA services at the new White Oak facility.
Adding the projected 3,172 observation patient days to the projected 41,763 MSGA days projected

6



for 2020 resultsin atotal of 44,935 patient days to be treated in the 172 total MSGA beds for an
average occupancy rate of 71.6% in 2020. For the 152 proposed M SGA inpatient beds only, WAH is
projecting an occupancy rate of 75.3% in 2020. The State Health Plan calls for a minimum
occupancy level of 80% for hospitals with 100 to 299 medical surgical beds. The use of al private
rooms may increase the level of occupancy that can occur. We understand that MHCC will evaluate
occupancy in itsreview of bed need.

Staff is concerned about future inpatient volume levelsin the service area. If WAH isunable to
achieve the projected volumes, the Hospital would be less efficient and would have higher rates,
which in turn could affect the overall feasibility of the project. In summary, Staff is suggesting that
conservatism in bed need projection is warranted relative to project feasibility and efficiency, given
the level of change in the delivery system that is underway nationally and in Maryland.

Responses to Specific Questions:

1. Arethe sources of funds assumed by the applicant appropriate? In your opinion, is
the equity contribution and the proportion of other non-debt sour ces of project funding
adequate?

WAH intends to finance the total project costs of $330,829,524 by incurring $244,750,000 in debt,
fund raising $20,000,000, contributing cash of $50,575,175, and earning $4,504,349 in interest
income during construction. All of the $330,829,524 project cost is related to capital costs with no
allowance made for working capital costs or transition costs.

In addition to the $20,000,000 assumed fund raising and $50,575,175 cash contribution, WAH is
assuming that the $11,000,000 previously expended for the purchase of the land for the project will
also be a source of funds leaving the total equity contribution at $81,575,175, or approximately 25%
of the project costs.

Staff spoke with representatives of the Maryland Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority
(MHHEFA) who stated that AHI has a Baa2 debt rating. WAH has assumed an interest rate of 6%
for the debt associated with this project, which seems to be high given current interest rates. If the
actual interest rate is less than that assumed, the rate adjustment approved by the HSCRC would be
modified to reflect the lower interest rate.

Additionally, while the estimated annual depreciation, amortization, and interest is $24.6 million, the
HSCRC only approved an additional $15.4 million revenue increase. Therefore, AHI will be
financing a significant portion of the borrowing.

Given AHI’ s debt situation, staff believes that WAH has provided a reasonable amount of equity
contribution for the project to be financially feasible. Ideally staff would like to see higher equity
contributions so that the interest rate might be lower on the debt issued for the project resulting in
overall lower costs to the patients.

2. Asyou know, one of the applicant’sassumptionsisthat it will obtain a 7% increasein
the hospital’ s global budget revenue to account for theincreased capital costs resulting from
thisproject. In your opinion, isthisincrease necessary for this project to be feasible and for the
replaced and relocated WAH to be financially viable? If, in your opinion, thisincreaseis not

7



necessary for project feasibility and the viability of WAH, please provide the basisfor this
opinion.

The 7.0% rate increase assumed by WAH represents approximately 80% of the additional
depreciation and interest related to the new project. As stated above, Staff has recommended a $15.4
million (5.4%) increase to revenue instead of the 7.0% requested. WAH had used projected
operating results for FY 2014 initsoriginal CON submission. Its actual operating results for that
year were much better than projected. These results were incorporated in its projections submitted
on October 21, 2015. Thisimprovement significantly offsets the impact of the lower approved
revenue increase.

3. Based on your analysis and the experience of HSCRC to datein implementing the
new payment model for hospitals, what isthe ability of the proposed replacement hospital to be
competitively priced, when compared with general hospitalsin itsregion of the state and when
compared with similar (peer-group) hospitalsthroughout the state, if the project is
implemented as proposed and the applicant’ s utilization projections arerealized?

Competitive rates for proposed hospital — In order to evaluate the proposed rates of the relocated
hospital, we devel oped a comparison of how WAH' s inpatient and outpatient hospital charges
compared to itslocal competitors for the year ended June 30, 2014. Staff’ s analyses compared
average inpatient charges per case by APRDRG broken down between the 4 severity levels within
each APRDRG. Staff’s analyses also compared average outpatient charges per case broken down by
APG.

Listed below are the percentage variances between WAH' s average charges per inpatient case and
outpatient case and its neighboring hospitals for the year ended June 30, 2014:

Table 6
Comparison of Average Inpatient and Outpatient Charges per Case
Washington Adventist Hospital and Neighboring Competitors
Using Actual Charge Data
Y ear Ended June 30, 2014

Percent Combined
Percent Variance from Percent
Variance from WAH’s Variance from
WAH Average Average WAH'’s
Inpatient Outpatient Average
Charges per Charges per Charges per
Hospital Case Case Case
Doctors Hospital (8.4%) (4.3%) (7.5%)
Howard County (13.6%) (21.9%) (17.9%)
Montgomery Medical Center (13.1%) (8.4%) (12.3%)
Suburban Hospital (18.4%) (4.3%) (14.4%)
Holy Cross Hospital (14.1%) (7.8%) (12.8%)
Laurel Regional Medical Center (12.0%) 6.6% (5.7%)
Average Difference (13.3%) (6.1%) (11.6%)



Source: HSCRC Market share data base. Percentages were determined by first comparing to statewide averages
and then comparing to WAH variances from statewide average.

Asthistableindicates, the charges at WAH' s competitors were on average 13.3% below WAH’s
charges for inpatients and 6.1% below for outpatients based on actual charge data for the year ended
June 30, 2014. Once WAH is granted an additional 5.4% rate increase for capital its competitors will
have rates on average that may be more than 15% less than WAH’ s new rates based on the
comparisons of actual FY 2014 charges. However, these comparisons do not take into account the
cost differences that may be attributable to taking care of populations with lower socioeconomic
status. The ROC comparison discussed below includes an adjustment to estimate the impact on costs
of these population differences.

Staff compared adjusted charges using information from the most recent ROC calculation, which
utilized data from 2013 adjusted for revenue changes to 2014. The adjusted charge comparison from
the ROC datais asfollows:

Table7
Comparison of Average Combined Inpatient and Outpatient Charges per Case
Washington Adventist Hospital and Neighboring Competitors
Using Adjusted ROC Charges
Y ear Ended June 30, 2014

Percent Variance from

WAH’s Average
Combined Adjusted

Hospital Charges per Case
Doctors Hospital 12.5%
Howard County 5%
Montgomery Medical Center 10.4%
Suburban Hospital 9.9%
Holy Cross Hospital (9.5%)
Laurel Regional Medical Center (6.4%)
Average Difference 7.5%

Source: HSCRC ROC data. Percentages were determined by first comparing to statewide averages and then
comparing to WAH variances from statewide average.

As noted above, the ROC analysis takes into account that WAH has a greater percentage of poor
patients than the average of the hospitalsin its peer group, which tends to cause higher costs and
rates.

Other requests:

Y ou also asked to receive comments on the financial feasibility of providing acute psychiatric
hospital servicesin Takoma Park as a 40-bed specia hospital. The project budget, five year pro
forma schedule of revenues and expenses, and assumptions for this proposed special hospital

9



were submitted on December 12, 2014. Note that the project budget erroneously indicated that
the source of funds for renovating space for behavioral health would be cash. The correct source
of fundsis debt, as specified in Exhibit 6 of the September 29, 2014 replacement application.
Thiswas confirmed by WAH in its response to my April 29, 2015 request for additional
information.

Financial Feasibility of 40 bed special psychiatric hospital on Takoma Park campus.

Staff reviewed the pro formaincome statement provided by WAH in the December 12, 2014
supplemental submission letter for the 40 bed psychiatric unit that will remain at WAH after the
relocation of the other beds to White Oak. The 40 bed unit will be owned and operated by Adventist
Behavioral Health (ABH), a psychiatric specialty hospital owned by AHI that islocated in Rockville
Maryland. The pro formaisonly for the 40 bed psychiatric unit and does not include any
information on the other services that will exist at WAH after the relocation such as the 24-hour
urgent care clinic and the Women’ s Health Clinic.

On August 24, 2015, the Maryland Medicaid program reduced reimbursements to free-standing
psychiatric facilities larger than 16 beds because CM S withdrew a waiver that had been approved for
the State of Maryland, which had allowed Maryland Medicaid to reimburse these facilities for acute
psychiatric services. Maryland' s Department of Health and Mental Hygiene is currently seeking a
new federal waiver that would significantly expand the scope of treatment options available to
Medicaid enrollees with substance abuse and mental health disorders. WAH provided
documentation showing that ABH has not been impacted by the reduction in Medicaid
reimbursement, and that WAH, for avariety of reasons including the pending new waiver request,
does not anticipate any reduction in projected Medicaid payments for the 40 bed psychiatric unit
remaining in Takoma Park. Staff believes that the projected net revenues for the 40 bed psychiatric
unit are reasonable, assuming that M edicaid does not reduce payments to free-standing psychiatric
hospitalsin the future.

Staff performed reasonableness tests of the direct costs for salaries and benefits and other expenses
included in the December 12, 2014 pro forma for the 40 bed psychiatric unit. Staff compared the
projected 2019 costs per patient day in the pro formato the regulated costs per patient day that ABH
incurred during the year ended December 31, 2014 based on ABH’sHSCRC Annua Report
provided to the HSCRC. Staff inflated the actual ABH expenses for the year ended 2014 by 2.3%
per year to 2019 based on the inflation assumptions included in WAH’s CON.

Theresults of staff’ s analysis are presented below:

10



Table 8 - Comparison of Projected Takoma Park Psychiatric Unit Costs to Adventist Behaviora
Health Actual Costs on a per Equivalent Inpatient day Basis

Cost per Equivalent Inpatient Day

Adventist
Takoma Park Behaviora
Psychiatric Unit Health

Projected FY YE 12/31/2014 Percent
Expense Category 2019 Inflated to 2019 Variance
Salaries and benefits $574 $600 4.5%
Depreciation and interest 186 27 (85.5%)
Other 352 229 (65.1%)
Tota Costs $1,112 $837 (24.7%)
Equivalent inpatient days 10,578 32,467

Sources. HSCRC Annual Report for the Y ear Ended December 31, 2014 and additional WAH CON information
submitted December 12, 2014.

Although Staff would expect that there would be economies of scale causing lower salary and
benefits per patient day at ABH than at the Takoma Park site, the overall expenses per day appear
reasonable. Staff believes that ABH’ s management team will be able to bring cost in line where

appropriate.

The income statements in the CON include projected net income of $5,465,000 in 2019 and
$6,897,000 in 2020 for the new White Oak facility. The pro formafor the 40 bed psychiatric unit
included a $210,000 projected profit in the first year of operations after the White Oak facility opens.
The projected income statements provided by WAH in the July 27, 2015 letter from James Lee for
both the White Oak facility and the services remaining at WAH show projected net income of only
$747,000 in 2019 and $1,770,000 in 2020. The approximate annual $5,000,000 difference between
the two sets of projected financial statements represents the annual projected |oss on the other
services that will remain at Takoma Park.

Staff reviewed additional information provided by WAH regarding the projected financial operations
of servicesremaining at Takoma Park. Thisfinancial information appears reasonable.

Finally, you asked that we comment on Laurel Regional Hospital’s and MedStar Montgomery
Medical Center’s submission of an analysis of the impact of the relocation on their discharges
and the impact of such areduction in volume on their revenues and bottom line profit. While you
did not necessarily agree with the hospitals' assessments of the impact on volume and you did
not ask for our opinion on their calculation of the expected lossin discharges, you did ask for our
comments on the methodol ogy used to convert such losses in volume to reductions in revenue
and impact on the hospitals' bottom line profit (the relevant analysis submitted by the interested
parties on May 29, 2015 was attached).

Laurel Regional Hospital and MedStar Montgomery Medical Center Comments

11



The major issue with the analysis prepared on behalf of Laurel Regional Hospital (LRH) and
MedStar Montgomery Medical Center (MMC) isthat LRH and MMC are projecting afar greater
number of discharges moving from their facilities than WAH has projected. WAH is projecting that
95 discharges will move to their new White Oak facility from LRH, while 91 discharges will move
from MMC to the new White Oak facility. LRH is projecting that it will lose 582 discharges to the
new WAH facility at White Oak. MMC is projecting that it will lose 284 discharges to the new
WAH facility.

Assuming that all of LRH’sand MMC’ s assumptions regarding revenue, collection percentages, and
variability of expenses are accurate, but substituting WAH'’ s projected changes in discharges, the
estimated impact at LRH would then decrease from ($1,123,000) annually to ($183,000.) At MMC,
the impact would be reduced from ($952,000) annually to ($305,000) if WAH's projected changesin
discharges are accurate.

Another lessimportant issue is the assumption of variability in expenses for supply and drug costs.
Both LRH and MM C assume that supply and drug costs would vary at a 60% rate with changes in
volumes. Normally supplies and drugs should vary at or near 100% with changes in volumes.
Assuming a higher variability factor for supplies and drugs would also reduce the projected impact
on LRH and MMC.

We also note that the submission by LRH may beirrelevant, given its recent announcement of
facility reconfiguration and plans to eliminate much of the acute inpatient capacity of the hospital.

Summary

Staff believes that the overall assumptions regarding the financial viability of the new facility at
White Oak are reasonable and achievable depending on WAH attaining the volumes projected in the
CON. The current environment of change in health care financing and delivery increase the
probability that inpatient volumes will decline. WAH and the surrounding hospitalsin the area
presently have substantial volumes of f PAUSs. Staff recommends conservatism in evaluating need. If
WAH does not attain the projected volumesin the CON its overal rate and revenue structure may be
viewed as inefficient and may affect the overall financial viability of the project.

12



John M. Colmers

Chair

Herbert S. Wong, Ph.D.

Vice-Ch

George H. Bone,

M.

Stephen F. Jencks,

State of Maryland
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene

Donna Kinzer
Executive Director

man
Stephen Ports

Principal Deputy Director

airman Policy and Operations
David Romans

Director

Payment Reform
and Innovation

D.

M.D., M.P.H.
Jack C. Keane Health Services Cost Review Commission Gg;*;fjt; Socnmith
4160 Patterson Avenue, Baltimore, Maryland 21215 Hospital Rate Setting
Bernadette C. Loftus, Phone: 410-764-2605 - Fax: 410-358-6217
M.D. Sule Gerovich, Ph.D.
Toll Free: 1-888-287-3229 Deputy Director
Thomas R. Mullen Research and Methodology
Date: October 23, 2015
To: Robert E. Moffit, Ph.D.
Commissioner/Reviewer, MHCC
From: Gerard J. Schmith
Deputy Director, Hospital Rate Setting, HSCRC
Subject: Relocation of Prince George' s Hospital Center (“PGHC”)

Docket No. 13-16-2351

This Memorandum isin response to your memo dated September 11, 2015 regarding the

Certific
Washin

ate of Need (“CON?”) filed by Dimensions Health Corporation (“DHC”) and Mount
gton Pediatric Hospital to replace and relocate PGHC. A 15-bed Special Hospital-

Pediatric is operated by Mount Washington Pediatric Hospital, Inc. (“MWPH") within leased space
at the current PGHC, and this facility would also be replaced as part of the proposed project and
operated under the same arrangement.

The estimated project cost for the relocation and replacement of the general hospital and the

special

hospital
State of
interest

hospital-pediatric is $651,223,000. Dimensions proposes to finance the relocation of the
to Largo with approximately $206.7 million in debt, grants of $208 million from the
Maryland and $208 million from Prince George’s County, and atotal of $16.1 millionin
income from bond proceeds. $12.4 million is the recognized value of the donated land

within this project cost estimate.

Y ou requested that HSCRC staff review the financial projections and the assumptions upon
which these projections are based, as provided in the March 13, 2015 revisions to the January 16,
2015 replacement CON application (Exhibit 50, Tables G1 and H1), and comment on the
proposed project’ s financial feasibility and the reasonableness of the assumptions.

Y ou also requested that we provide comments on these specific questions:

1. Are the sources of funds assumed by the applicants appropriate? In your opinion, isthe

proportion of non-debt and non-grant sources of project funding adequate?

1



2. The applicants have assumed that a 7.6% increase in the hospital’ s global budget
revenue (“GBR”) will be obtained to account for the increased capital costs resulting from this
project. In your opinion, isthisincrease necessary for this project to be feasible and for the
replaced and rel ocated PGHC to be financially viable? If, in your opinion, thisincrease is not
necessary for project feasibility and the viability of PGHC, please provide the basis for this
opinion.

3. Based on your analysis and the experience of HSCRC to date in implementing the new
payment model for hospitals, what is the ability of the proposed replacement hospital to be
competitively priced, when compared with general hospitalsin its region of the state and when
compared with similar (peer-group) hospitals throughout the state, if the project isimplemented
as proposed and the applicants’ utilization projections are realized?

4. Dimensionsis assuming an increase in its GBR in each of the first three years of
operation of the replacement hospitals resulting from market share shifts. A revenue increase of
2.91% is projected for FY 2020, 2.75% for FY 2021, and 2.61% for FY 2022. Based on your
analysis and the experience of HSCRC to date in implementing the new payment model for
hospitals, what would be the impact of Dimensions not achieving these market shifts on the
financia viability of the relocation and the ability of the proposed replacement hospital to be
competitively priced, when compared with general hospitalsin its region of the state and when
compared with similar (peer-group) hospitals throughout the state.

5. Dimensions al so assumes that revenue adjustments for market share shifts would be
recognized immediately in the year of the volume growth resulting from the shift in market share
rather than in the year following the volume growth. In commenting on the financial feasibility
of the project and the viability of PGHC after relocation, please indicate whether HSCRC will
agree to this treatment of market share shift-related volume increases. If HSCRC will not agree
to this, please address the impact on feasibility and viability and any impact on the size of the
global budget adjustment for capital. (See Dimensions' March 13, 2015 response to Question 22
of MHCC staff’s February 10, 2015 compl eteness letter (page 31).

HSCRC Staff has done an initial review of Prince George' s Hospital Center’s CON and current
financia situation including its overall rate structure. At thistime, HSCRC Staff does not
believe it has the data needed to perform an in-depth analysis of the PGHC CON. For instance,
we note that a substantial difference exists between actual operating profit for FY 2014 included
in the CON financia projections and the actual operating profit from the Audited Financial
Statements for FY 2014. However, Staff makes the following comments at this time regarding
the questions you have posed:

1. The only sources of fund which are non-debt and non-grant are the $16.1 million interest
income from bond proceeds and the $12.4 million recognized value of the donated land.
We have not received a copy of DHC' s projected plan of finance; therefore, we cannot
render an opinion on the $16.1 million, nor have we received an appraisal of the value of



the donated land. According to the CON, DHC will need to borrow approximately $77
million at the opening of the new facility in order to ensure that it maintains 100 days of
cash on hand. Therefore, DHC has no cash available to help fund the project.

2. The CON includes an assumption that the HSCRC would approve a $21.5 million (7.0%)
increase to its approved revenue after the facility opens. This increase represents 50% of
the estimated additional depreciation, interest, and amortization related to this project.
As of this date, PGHC has not filed arate application with the HSCRC requesting any
type of rate increase. Without arate application, Staff cannot determine if this
contemplated rate increase isjustified. We have completed a pro forma analysis of our
current policy, which permits a hospital to request additional revenue related to a major
CON approved project. ! The pro forma analysis does not produce any increase for
additional capital for PGHC.

3. Thelatest Reasonableness of Charges (“ROC”) calculation shows that PGHC is more
than 14% above the average adjusted charges of its comparison peer group and nearly
10% above adjusted average State-wide charges. PGHC’ s unadjusted charge difference
for FY 2014 would be even greater. The Hospital needs to achieve significant
productivity improvements to improve its ROC position. Inthe CON application, it
proposes to do that through increasing its volumes at 50% variable cost. The volume
increase assumption creates arisk to competitiveness of ratesif the volume increases are
not achieved. Additionally, the Hospital has not yet demonstrated the capability to
deliver the incremental services at 50% variable cost. This creates a second risk of
whether the Hospital will be able to produce the services at 50% variable cost should the
volumes increase.

4. Staff isuncertain at thistime asto the impact of the downsizing of Laurel Hospital on
PGHC s projections. The CON filed by PGHC did not take into account the impact of
the downsizing of Laurel Hospital which, staff believes, should have a positive impact on
PGHC' sfuture financial projections. Laurel Hospital had significant declinesin
utilization, which resulted in losses. Addressing these losses and bed need in more
comprehensive ways given declines in inpatient services should strengthen the viability
of service offeringsin Prince Georges County. We have read the recommendations
provided to Laurel Hospital by their consultants. We stand prepared to review any
additional information that is provided regarding future service reconfigurations as they
evolve, recognizing that the environment is changing rapidly with consumer driven health

I Thisisthe same analysis that formed the basis of the HSCRC' s approval of $15.3 million for additional capital
when Washington Adventist Hospital’'s (“WAH'S") new facility opens. The HSCRC rate increase to WAH is
contingent on MHCC' s final approval on WAH’s CON project.



care transformation and increased emphasis on outpatient, telemedicine, retail, and virtual
service delivery.

5. PGHC has not requested any deviation from HSCRC' s normal methodol ogy regarding
the treatment of market shift adjustments. In the case of the new Holy Cross Germantown
facility, for example, the HSCRC permitted an adjustment for market share to occur as
volumes increase. HSCRC Staff has not yet determined whether the adjustment would
apply in this circumstance. To make that determination, we will need additional
information from PGHC.

As to the methodology used by Doctors Hospital to convert volume losses to revenue reductions,
we believe that while the method may produce areasonable ‘ballpark’ estimate of lost revenue,
the actual amount would most certainly be impacted by the types of lost cases. Additionaly,
Doctors' estimates of the impact on expenses and operating profits are questionable.

Until HSCRC Staff receives more information regarding these aforementioned issues, we are not
in a position to complete our normal CON review on the financial feasibility of the project. The
project assumes and is dependent upon arevenue increase of $21.5 million. Nothing has been
provided to date that justifies this revenue increase.



Monitoring Maryland Performance
Financial Data

Year to Date thru 2015

____________________________________________________________________________________________________ HSCRC

} | Health Services Cost
Review Commission




Gross All Payer Revenue Growth
Year to Date (thru September 2015) Compared to Same Period in Prior Year

4.40%
0
3.40% 3.18% 3.34%
2.92%
2.40%
1.63%
1.40%
ut of State
0.40%
FY 2016 CY 2015 Out of State
-0.60%
-0.79%
-1.60%
___________________________________________________________________________________________________ HSCRC
} p) Health Services Cost

Review Commission




Gross Medicare Fee-for-Service Revenue Growth
Year to Date (thru September 2015) Compared to Same Period in Prior Year

6.00%

5.00% 4.75%
4.32%

4.00%

3.00%

2.00%

1.00%
Out of State

0.00%

FY 2016 CY 2015

-1.00%

-2.00%

-3.00%

} 3 Health Services Cost
Review Commission




Per Capita Growth Rates
Fiscal Year 2016 and Calendar Year 2015

6.00%
4.00%
2.76%
2.34%
2.00% o
1.30% 517
0.00%
All-Payer In-State Fiscal Year YTD Medicare FFS In-State FY YTD All-Payer In-State Calendar Year Medicare FFS In-State CY YTD
YTD
Fiscal Calendar
-2.00%
Population Data from Estimates Prepared by Maryland Department of Planning FFS = Fee-for-Service
-4.00%

= Calendar and Fiscal Year trends to date are below All-Payer Model Guardrail for per
capita growth.

} 4 Health Services Cost
Review Commission




Per Capita Growth - Actual and Underlying Growth
CY 2015 Year to Date Compared to Same Period in Base Year (2013)

6.02%

5.00%

4.00%

3.00%

2.15%

2.00%

1.00%

0.00%
Per Capita - All Payer Per Capita - Medicare

® Net Growth B Growth Before UCC/MHIP Adjustments

» Two year per capita growth rate is well below maximum allowable growth rate of 7.29%
(growth of 3.58% per year)

» Underlying growth reflects adjustment for FY 15 & FY |6 revenue decreases that were budget
neutral for hospitals. 1.09% decrease from MHIP assessment and hospital bad debts in FY 15.
Additional 1.41% adjustment in FY 16 due to further reductions to hospital bad debts and
elimination of MHIP assessment.

} 5 Health Services Cost
Review Commission




Operating Profits: Fiscal 2016 Year to Date (July-September)
Compared to Same Period in FY 2015

9.00%
8.00%
6.94%
7.00% £ 9%
6.00%
5.00%
4.02%3.99%
4.00%
3.32%
3.00%
200% 1.43%1.43%
0.00%
All Operating 25th Percentile Median 75th Percentile Rate Regulated Only
mFY 2015 mFY 2016
= Year to date FY 2016 unaudited hospital operating profits shows little change compared
to the same period in FY 2015.
___________________________________________________________________________________________________ HSCRC
} 6 Health Services Cost

Review Commission




Operating Profits by Hospital
Fiscal Year to Date (July — September)

25.00%
20.00%
15.00%

10.00%

- ||||“““|||||‘

-5.00%
-10.00%
-15.00%
-20.00%
___________________________________________________________________________________________________ HSCRC
} 7 Health Services Cost

Review Commission




Purpose of Monitoring Maryland Performance

Evaluate Maryland’s performance against All-Payer Model
requirements:

= All-Payer total hospital per capita revenue growth ceiling
for Maryland residents tied to long term state economic growth
(GSP) per capita

= 3.58% annual growth rate

* Medicare payment savings for Maryland beneficiaries compared
to dynamic national trend. Minimum of $330 million in savings over
5 years

- Patient and population centered-measures and targets to
promote population health improvement
= Medicare readmission reductions to national average

= 30% reduction in preventable conditions under Maryland’s Hospital Acquired
Condition program (MHAC) over a 5 year period

= Many other quality improvement targets

} 8 Health Services Cost
Review Commission




Data Caveats

= Data revisions are expected.

= For financial data if residency is unknown, hospitals report this
as a Maryland resident. As more data becomes available, there
may be shifts from Maryland to out-of-state.

= Many hospitals are converting revenue systems along with
implementation of Electronic Health Records. This may cause
some instability in the accuracy of reported data. As a result,
HSCRC staff will monitor total revenue as well as the split of
in state and out of state revenues.

» All-payer per capita calculations for Calendar Year 2015 and
Fiscal 2016 rely on Maryland Department of Planning
projections of population growth of .56% for FY 16 and .56%
for CY 15. Medicare per capita calculations use actual trends

in Maryland Medicare beneficiary counts as reported monthly
to the HSCRC by CMMI.

} 9 Health Services Cost
Review Commission




Monitoring Maryland Performance
Quality Data

November 2015 Commission Meeting Update

____________________________________________________________________________________________________ HSCRC

} |O Health Services Cost
Review Commission




Monthly Risk-Adjusted Readmission Rates

15%
14%
k g
Y\ A\
13%
Risk Adjusted .
) j All-Payer | Medicare
Readmission Rate
12%
Aug. 13 YTD 13.84% 14.59%
Aug. 14 YTD 13.45% 14.47%
1% Aug. 15 YTD 12.86% 13.72%
Percent Change 2 10% 5 96%
CY13 vs. CY15 P R
10%
i s B~ B B~ B B B B R B R R S R . A A A . O I O R N
EL 55 P e A58 Y088 858558530583 85885853 %
Sy s 272560205z 2T200z20 %Lz 2T200z0%Ls < 2TZ
== All-Payer  e=fll==Medicare FFS Linear (All-Payer)
___________________________________________________________________________________________________ HSCRC
} I Note: Based on final data for January 2012 — June 2015, and Health Services Cost

preliminary data through September 2015. Review Commission




Change in All-Payer Risk-Adjusted
Readmission Rates by Hospital

. Change Calculation compares Jan-Aug CY 2013
20% compared to Jan-Aug CY2015

10%

) "||||III|||||"""'"IIIIII

10% Goal of 9.3% Cumulative
TiYe Reduction
16 Hospitals are on Track for
220% Achieving Goal
-30%
-40%
-50%
___________________________________________________________________________________________________ HSCRC
} | 2 Note: Based on final data for January 2012 — June 2015, and preliminary data Health Services Cost

Review Commission

through September 2015.




Monitoring Maryland Performance
Preliminary Utilization Trends

Year to Date thru August 2015




All Payer ECMAD GROWTH -

Calendar Year to Date (thru August 2015) Compared to Same
Period in Prior Year

MD Resident NonResident Grand Total
-0-49% .
-0.69%

-0.82% o

-1.00% -0.86%
-1.28%
-1.50%
-2.00%
-2.50%
-3.00% 2.95%
-3.50%
mCY 2014 mCY 2015
} p) Health Services Cost

Review Commission




Medicare ECMAD GROWTH -
Calendar Year to Date (thru August 2015) Compared to Same
Period in Prior Year

MD Resident NonResident Grand Total
2.00%
1.53%
1.15%
1.00%
0.00% I
. o .
-1.00% -0.84% -0.79%
-2.00%
-3.00%
-3.52%
-4.00%
mCY 2014 mCY 2015
} 3 Health Services Cost

Review Commission




MD Resident ECMAD GROWTH by Location of Service -

Calendar Year to Date (thru August 2015) Compared to Same
Period in Prior Year

3.00% 2.82%

2.09%
2.00% e
R 1.53%
1.22%
1.00%
0.00%

-0.47% _ 539 -0.49%

-1.00% -0.82% -0.84%
-2.00%
-2.25%
-2.48%
-3.00%
CY 2014 CY 2015 CY 2014 CY 2015
[P mOP  Total
All Payer Medicare
} 4 Health Services Cost

Review Commission




Medicare MD Resident ECMAD GROWTH by
Month

38,000
37,000
36,000

35,000

34,000
—7013

014
33,000 2015

32,000
31,000
30,000

29,000

} 5 Health Services Cost
Review Commission




Medicare MD Resident ECMAD Growth by Service Line
Calendar Year to Date ECMAD Growth (thru August)

200 400 600 800 1,000 1,200 1,400 1,600

Infectious Disease
PQI

Rad/Inf/Chemo

Categorical
Exclusions_IP

Orthopedic Surgery

ED

mCY 2015 Growth H % Contribution to CY |5 Growth

} 6 Health Services Cost
Review Commission




Medicare MD Resident Infectious Disease
Serv1ce Line ECMAD GROWTH by Month

32% -
2,000
10%
7% .
9% 7% 1
1,500
1,000
500
0
Jan April June Aug
m2013 m2014 2015 % Contribution to CY |5 Growth
} 7 Health Services Cost

Review Commission




Medicare MD Resident PQI Service Line
ECMAD GROWTH by Month

3,500

34.0%
3,000
14.5% 16.0%
6.2%
4.3% - 5
2,500 8.0% 15.2%
1.8%
2,000
1,500
1,000
500
0
an e arc ri a' une u u
Feb March April May ly Aug

2013 m2014 2015 % Contribution to CY |5 Growth

HSCRC

} 8 Health Services Cost
Review Commission




Utilization Analytics — Data Notes

= Utilization as measured by Equivalent Case-mix Adjusted
Discharges (ECMAD)

= | ECMAD Inpatient discharge=1 ECMAD Outpatient Visit
« Observation stays with more than 23 hour are included
in the inpatient counts
= IP=IP + Observation cases >23 hrs.
= OP=OP - Observation cases >23 hrs.
= Preliminary data, not yet reconciled with financial data
= Careful review of outpatient service line trends is needed

= Tableau Visualization Tools

} 9 Health Services Cost
Review Commission




Service Line Definitions

» Inpatient service lines:
» APR DRG to service line mapping

» Readmissions and PQIs are top level service lines (include
different service lines)

» Outpatient service lines:
» Highest EAPG to service line mapping

» Hierarchical classifications (ED, major surgery etc)

» Market Shift technical documentation

} | O Health Services Cost
Review Commission




Cases Closed

The closed cases from last month are listed in the agenda



IN RE: THE PARTIAL RATE * BEFORE THE HEALTH SERVICES

APPLICATION OF THE * COST REVIEW COMMISSION

UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND * DOCKET: 2015

ST. JOSEPH MEDICAL CENTER * FOLIO: 2114

BALTIMORE, MARYLAND * PROCEEDING: 2304N
Staff Recommendation

November 18, 2015



Introduction

On July 17, 2015 University of Maryland St. Joseph Medical Center (the “Hospital”), amember of
the University of Maryland Medical System, submitted apartial rate application to the Commission
requesting a new rate for Definitive Observation (DEF) and Coronary Care (CCU) services. The
Hospital requeststhat the DEF and CCU rates be set at the lower of arate based on its projected costs
to provide DEF and CCU services or the statewide median and be effective November 1, 2015.

Staff Evaluation

To determineif the Hospital’s DEF and CCU rates should be set at the statewide median or at arate
based on its own cost experience, the staff requested that the Hospital submit to the Commission all
projected cost and statistical datafor DEF and CCU for FY 2015. Based on information received
from the Hospital, the DEF and CCU rates would be $1,349.80 per patient day and $2,965.00 per
patient day respectively. The statewide median for DEF and CCU servicesare $1,120.45 per patient
day and $2,038.36 per patient day respectively.

Thisraterequest isrevenue neutral and will not result in any additional revenueto the Hospital, since
it involves carving out DEF and CCU services from the current approved revenue for Med. /Surg.
Acute (MSG) and Med/Surg. Intensive Care (MIS) services respectively. The Hospital currently
charges DEF asarollup to its MSG rate and charges CCU asarollup to its MISrate. The Hospital
wishes to carve these services out to provide a more equitable charging of its patients. The new
proposed rates are as follows:

Current New Budgeted Approved

Rate Rate Volume Revenue
Med./Surg. Acute $1,147.14 $1,162.16 30,671 $35,168,925
Definitive Observation N/A $1,120.45 17,265 $19,682,434
Med./Surg. Intensive Care $2,433.09 $2,507.77 5,243 $13,249,849
Coronary Care N/A $2,038.36 992 $1,882,296




Recommendation

After reviewing the Hospital’ s application, the staff recommends as follows:

1.

2.

That aMSG rate of $1,162.16 per patient day be approved effective November 1, 2015;
That a DEF rate of $1,120.45 per patient day be approved effective November 1, 2015;
That aMISrate of $2,507.77 per patient day be approved effective November 1, 2015;
That a CCU rate of $2,038.36 per patient day be approved effective November 1,2015;
That the MSG, DEF, MIS and CCU rates not be rate realigned until a full year’s cost
experience data have been reported to the Commission; and

That no change be made to the Hospital’ s Global Budget Revenue.



IN RE: THE ALTERNATIVE

RATE APPLICATION OF

SAINT AGNES HEALTH

WESTERN MARYLAND
HEALTH SYSTEM

MERITUS HEALTH

HOLY CROSS HEALTH

Final

BEFORE THE HEALTH

SERVICES COST REVIEW

COMMISSION

DOCKET: 2015

FOLIO: 2117

PROCEEDING: 2307A

Recommendation

November 18, 2015

This is a final recommendation and ready for Commission action.



1. Introduction

On August 21, 2015, Saint Agnes Health System, Western Maryland Health System, Holy
Cross Health, and Meritus Health (“the Hospitals”) filed an application for an Alternative Method
of Rate Determination pursuant to COMAR 10.37.10.06. The Hospitals seek renewal for the
continued participation of Maryland Physicians Care (“MPC”) in the Medicaid Health Choice
Program. MPC is the entity that assumes the risk under this contract. The Commission most
recently approved this contract under proceeding 2270A for the period January 1, 2015 through
December 31, 2015. The Hospitals are requesting to renew this contract for one year beginning
January 1, 2016.

II. Backeround

Under the Medicaid Headth Choice Program, MPC, a Managed Care Organization
(“MCQ") sponsored by the Hospitals, isresponsible for providing acomprehensive range of health
care benefitsto Medical Assistance enrollees. The application requests approval for the Hospitals
to provide inpatient and outpatient hospital services aswell as certain non-hospital services, while
the MCO receives a State-determined capitation payment. MPC pays the Hospitals HSCRC-
approved rates for hospital services used by its enrollees.  MPC is a mgjor participant in the
Medicaid Health Choice program, and provides services to 18.2% of the total number of MCO
enrollees in Maryland, which represents approximately the same market share as CY 2014.

The Hospitals supplied information on their most recent experience as well as their
preliminary projected revenues and expenditures for the upcoming year based on the revised

Medicaid capitation rates.



III. Staff Review

This contract has been operating under previous HSCRC approval (Proceeding 2270A).
Staff reviewed the operating performance under the contract as well as the terms of the capitation
pricing agreement. Staff reviewed available final financial information and projections for CY's
2014, 2015, and 2016. Inrecent years, the financial performance of MPC has been favorable. The
actual financial experience reported to staff for CY 2014 was favorable; however, projections for
CY 2015, like al of the provider-based MCOs, are unfavorable. MPC is projecting to resume

favorable performancein CY 2016.

IV. Recommendation

With the exception of CY 2013, MPC has generally maintained favorable performancein
recent years. However, al of the provider-based MCOs are expecting losses in CY 2015. Based
on past and projected performance, staff believesthat the proposed renewal arrangement for MPC
is acceptable under Commission.

Therefore:

(1) Staff recommends approval of this alternative rate application for a one-year period
beginning January 1, 2016.

(2) Since sustained losses over an extended period of time may be construed as a loss
contract necessitating termination of this arrangement, staff will continue to monitor
financial performance for CY 2015 and the MCO’s expected financial status into CY
2016. Staff recommends that Maryland Physicians Care report to Commission staff

(on or before the September 2016 meeting of the Commission) on the actual CY 2015



experience, preliminary CY 2016 financial performance (adjusted for seasonality) of
the MCO, as well as projections for CY 2017.

(3) Consistent with its policy paper outlining a structure for review and evaluatio n of
applications for alternative methods of rate determination, the staff reccommends that
this appro val be co ntingent u pon the continued adherence to the stan dard
Memorandum of Understanding with the Ho spitals for the approved contract. T his
document formalizes the understanding between the Commission and the Hospitals,
and includes provisions for such things as payments of HSCRC-approved rates,
treatment of losses that may be attributed to the managed care contract, quarterly
and annua 1 reporting, the confidentialit y of data submitted, penalties for
noncompliance, project termination and/or  alteration, on-going monitoring, and
other issues specific to the proposed contract The MOU also stipuhtes that operating
losses under managed care contracts may not be used to justify future requests for

rate increases.



IN RE: THE ALTERNATIVE * BEFORE THE HEALTH

RATE APPLICATION OF * SERVICES COST REVIEW
THE JOHNS HOPKINS HEALTH * COMMISSION
SYSTEM * DOCKET: 2015

* FOLIO: 2118
BALTIMORE, MARYLAND * PROCEEDING 2308A

Final Recommendation

November 18, 2015

This is a final recommendation and ready for Commission action.



1. Introduction

On September 14, 2015, Johns Hopkins Health System (“JHHS,” or the “ System”) filed an
application for an Alternative Method of Rate Determination pursuant to COMAR 10.37.10.06 on
behalf of Johns Hopkins Hospital, Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center, Suburban Hospital,
and Howard County General Hospital (“the Hospitals’). The System seeks renewa for the
continued participation of Priority Partners, Inc. in the Medicaid Health Choice Program. Priority
Partners, Inc. is the entity that assumes the risk under the contract. The Commission most recently
approved this contract under proceeding 2269A for the period from January 1, 2015 through
December 31, 2015. The Hospitals are requesting to renew this contract for a one-year period
beginning January 1, 2016.

I1. Background

Under the Medicaid Health Choice Program, Priority Partners, a provider-sponsored
Managed Care Organization (“MCQ”) sponsored by the Hospitals, is responsible for providing a
comprehensive range of health care benefitsto Medical Assistance enrollees. Priority Partnerswas
created in 1996 as a joint venture between Johns Hopkins Health Care (JHHC) and the Maryland
Community Health System (MCHS) to operate an MCO under the Health Choice Program. Johns
Hopkins Hedth Care operates as the administrative arm of Priority Partners and receives a
percentage of premiumsto provide services such as claim adjudication and utilization management.
MCHS oversees a network of Federally Qualified Health Clinics and provides member expertisein
the provision of primary care services and assistance in the development of provider networks.

The application requests approval for the Hospitals to continue to provide inpatient and



outpatient hospital services, as well as certain non-hospital services, while the MCO receives a
State-determined capitation payment. Priority Partners pays the Hospitals HSCRC-approved rates
for hospital services used by itsenrollees. The Hospitals supplied information on their most recent
experience as well astheir preliminary projected revenues and expenditures for the upcoming year
based on the initialy revised Medicaid capitation rates.

Priority Partnersis a major participant in the Medicaid Health Choice program, providing
managed care services to 23.6% of the State’s MCO population, up from 22.8% in CY 2014.

III. Staff Review

This contract has been operating under the HSCRC' sinitial approval in proceeding 2269A.
Staff reviewed the operating performance under the contract as well as the terms of the capitation
pricing agreement. Staff reviewed available fina financia information and projections for CY's
2014, 2015, and 2016. The statements provided by Priority Partnersto staff represent both a“ stand-
alone” and “consolidated” view of Priority’s operations. The consolidated picture reflects certain
administrative revenues and expenses of Johns Hopkins Health Care. When other provider-based
MCOsare evaluated for financial stability, their administrative costsrelative to their MCO business
are included as well; however, they are all included under the one entity of the MCO.

In recent years, the consolidated financial performance of Priority Partners has been
favorable. The actual financial experience reported to staff for CY 2014 was positive. However,
projections for CY 2015, like all of the provider-based MCOQOs, are unfavorable. Priority Partners

is projecting to resume favorable performance in CY 2016.



IV. Recommendation

Priority Partners has continued to achieve favorable consolidated financial performancein

recent years. However, all of the provider-based MCOs are expecting losses in CY 2015. Based

on past and projected performance, staff believesthat the proposed renewal arrangement for Priority

Partners is acceptable under Commission.

Therefore:

)

2)

3)

Staff recommends approval of this alternativ e rate application for a one-year period
beginning January 1, 2016.

Since sustained losses over an extended peri od of time may be construed as a loss
contract necessitating termination of this arrangement, staff will continue to monitor
financial performance in CY 2015, and the MC Os expected financial status in to CY
2016. Therefore, staff recommends that Priority Partners report to Commission staff
(on or before the September 2016 meeting of the Commission) on the actual CY 2015
experience, and preliminary CY 2016 financid performance (adjusted for seasonality)
of the MCO, as well as projections for CY 2017.

Consistent with its policy paper outlining a structure for review and evaluatio n of
applications for alternative methods of rate determination, the staff recommends that
this approval be contingent upon the continued adherence to the stan dard
Memorandum of Understanding w ith the Hospitals for the approved contract. This

document formalizes the understanding be tween the Commis sion and the Hos pitals,



and includes provisions for such things as payments of HSCRC-approved rates,
treatment of losses that may be attiibuted to the managed care contract, quarterly and
annual reporting, the confidentiality of data submitted, pe nalties for noncompliance,
project termination and/or al teration, on-going monitoring, and other issues specific
to the proposed contract. The MOU also stipulates that operating losses under

managed care contracts may not be used to justify future requests for rate increases.



IN RE: THE ALTERNATIVE * BEFORE THE HEALTH

RATE APPLICATION OF * SERVICES COST REVIEW
MEDSTAR HEALTH * COMMISSION
SYSTEM * DOCKET: 2015

* FOLIO: 2120
COLUMBIA, MARYLAND * PROCEEDING: 2310A

Final Recommendation

November 18, 2015

This is a final recommendation and ready for Commission action.



1. Introduction

On September 21, 2015, MedStar Health filed an application for an Alternative Method of
Rate Determination pursuant to COMAR 10.37.10.06 on behalf of Franklin Square Hospital, Good
Samaritan Hospital, Harbor Hospital, and Union Memorial Hospital (“the Hospitals’). MedStar
Health seeks renewal for the continued participation of MedStar Family Choice (“MFC”) in the
Medicaid Health Choice Program. MedStar Family Choice isthe MedStar entity that assumes the
risk under this contract. The Commission most recently approved this contract under proceeding
2257A for the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015. The Hospitals are
regquesting to renew this contract for one year beginning January 1, 2016.

I1. Background

Under the Medicaid Health Choice Program, MedStar Family Choice, a Managed Care
Organization (“MCQO”) sponsored by the Hospitals, is responsible for providing a comprehensive
range of health care benefits to Medical Assistance enrollees. The application requests approval
for the Hospitals to provide inpatient and outpatient hospital services, as well as certain non-
hospital services, while MFC receives a State-determined capitation payment. MFC pays the
Hospitals HSCRC-approved rates for hospital services used by its enrollees. MFC provides
services to 6.2% of the total number of MCO enrollees in Maryland, which represents
approximately the same market share as CY 2014.

The Hospitals supplied information on their most recent experience as well as their
preliminary projected revenues and expenditures for the upcoming year based on the Medicaid

capitation rates.



III. Staff Review

This contract has been operating under previous HSCRC approva (proceeding 2257A).
Staff reviewed the operating performance under the contract as well as the terms of the capitation
pricing agreement. Staff reviewed available final financial information and projections for CY's
2014, 2015, and 2016. In recent years, the financial performance of MFC has been favorable. The
actual financial experience reported to staff for CY 2014 was positive. However, projections for
CY 2015, like al of the provider-based MCOs, are unfavorable. MFC is projecting to resume
favorable performancein CY 2016.

IV. Recommendation

MFC has continued to achieve favorable financia performance in recent years. However,
all of the provider-based MCOs are expecting losses in CY 2015. Based on past performance,
staff believes that the proposed renewal arrangement for MFC is acceptable under Commission
policy.

Therefore:

(1) Staff recommends approval of this alternative rate application for a one-year period
beginning January 1, 2016.

(2) Since sustained losses may be construed as a loss contract necessitating termination
of this arr angement, staff w ill continue t o monitor financial performanc e to
determine whether favorable financia 1 performance resumes in CY 2016. Staff
recommends that Med Star Family Choice repo rt to Commission staff (on or b efore

the September 2016 meeting of th e Commission) on the actual CY 2015 experience



and preliminary CY 2016 financial performa nce (adjusted for seasonality) of the
MCO, as well as projections for CY 2017.

(3) Consistent with its policy paper outlining a structure for review and evaluatio n of
applications for alternative methods of rate determination, the staff reccommends that
this appro val be co ntingent u pon the continued adherence to the stan dard
Memorandum of Understanding with the Ho spitals for the approved contract. T his
document formalizes the understanding between the Commission and the Hospitals,
and includes provisions for such things as payments of HSCRC-approved rates,
treatment of losses that may be attributed to the managed care contract, quarterly
and annua 1reporting, the confidentialit y of data submitted, penalties for
noncompliance, project termination and/or  alteration, on-going monitoring, and
other issues specific to the proposed contract The MOU also stipuhtes that operating
losses under managed care contracts may not be used to justify future requests for

rate increases.



INRE: THE ALTERNATIVE * BEFORE THE HEALTH

RATE APPLICATION OF * SERVICES COST REVIEW
MEDSTAR HEALTH * COMMISSION
SYSTEM * DOCKET: 2015
* FOLIO: 2121
COLUMBIA, MARYLAND * PROCEEDING: 2311A
Amended

Final Recommendation

November 18, 2015



|. Introduction

On September 23, 2015, MedStar Health filed an application for an Alternative Method
of Rate Determination pursuant to COMAR 10.37.10.06 on behalf of Franklin Square Hospital,
Good Samaritan Hospital, Harbor Hospital, and Union Memorial Hospital (the “Hospitals’).
MedStar Health seeks approval for MedStar Family Choice (“MFC”) to continue to participate in
a Centersfor Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) approved Medicare Advantage Plan.
MedStar Family Choice isthe MedStar entity that assumes the risk under this contract. The
Hospitals are requesting an approval for one year beginning January 1, 2016.

Il. Background

MFC has been operating a CM S-approved Medicare Advantage Plan under the plan name
of MedStar Medicare Choice for the last three years in the District of Columbia. Last year CMS
granted MFC permission to expand under the same Medicare Advantage plan number to provide
coverage to Maryland eligible residentsin Anne Arundel, Baltimore, Charles, Howard, Prince
George's, St. Mary’ s counties and Baltimore City for CY 2015. The application requests
continued approval for MFC to provide inpatient and outpatient hospital services, aswell as
certain non-hospital services, in return for a CM S-determined capitation payment. MFC will
continue to pay the Hospitals HSCRC-approved rates for hospital services used by its enrollees.

MFC supplied financial projectionsfor its operationsin Maryland for CY 2016.

[1l. Staff Review

Staff reviewed the reviewed the financial projectionsfor CY 2016, aswell asMFC's

experience and projections for CY 2015. The information reflected the anticipated negative



financial results associated with start-up of a Medicare Advantage Plan.

V. Recommendation

Based on the financial projections and the fact that MFC has achieved favorable
financia performancein its Maryland Medicaid’ s Health Choice Program, staff believes that the
continued approval of the arrangement between CMS and MFC is acceptable under Commission
policy. Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission approve the Hospitals' request to
continue to participate in CMS Medicare Part C Medicare Advantage Program for a period of
one year beginning January 1, 2016. The Hospitals must file arenewal application annually for
continued participation. In addition, MFC must meet with HSCRC staff prior to August 31, 2016
to review itsfinancia projectionsfor CY 2017. In addition, UMHA must submit a copy of its
quarterly and annual National Association of Insurance Commissioner’s (NAIC’s) reports within
30 days of submission to the NAIC.

Consistent with its policy paper regarding applications for alternative methods of rate
determination, the staff recommends that this approval be contingent upon the execution of the
standard Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") with the Hospitals for the approved contract.
This document would formalize the understanding between the Commission and the Hospitals,
and would include provisions for such things as payments of HSCRC-approved rates, treatment
of losses that may be attributed to the contract, quarterly and annual reporting, confidentiality of
data submitted, penalties for noncompliance, project termination and/or alteration, on-going
monitoring, and other issues specific to the proposed contract. The MOU will also stipulate that

operating losses under the contract cannot be used to justify future requests for rate increases.






IN RE: THE ALTERNATIVE * BEFORE THE HEALTH

RATE APPLICATION OF * SERVICES COST REVIEW

UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND MEDICAL * COMMISSION

SYSTEM CORPORATION
* DOCKET: 2015
* FOLIO: 2124
* PROCEEDING: 2314A
Final Recommendation

November 18, 2015

This is a final recommendation and ready for Commission action.



1. Introduction

On September 30, 2015, Riverside Health of Maryland, Inc. (“Riverside”), a Medicaid
Managed Care Organization (“MCQ”), on behalf of The University of Maryland Medical System
Corporation (“the Hospitals’), filed an application for an Alternative Method of Rate
Determination (“ARM”) pursuant to COMAR 10.37.10.06. Riverside and the Hospitals seek
approval for the M CO to continueto participatein the Medicaid Health Choice Program. Riverside
is the entity that assumes the risk under this contract. The Commission most recently approved
this contract under proceeding 2281A for the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31,
2015. Under that arrangement, Riverside’s hospital partners were LifeBridge Health, and
Adventist Healthcare, Inc. In August of 2015, Riverside was purchased by University of Maryland
Medical System Corporation. The MCO and Hospitals are requesting to implement this new
contract for one year beginning January 1, 2016.

II. Backeround

Under the Medicaid Health Choice Program, Riverside, a MCO owned by the Hospitals,
is responsible for providing a comprehensive range of health care benefits to Medical Assistance
enrollees. The application requests approval for the Hospitals to provide inpatient and outpatient
hospital services as well as certain non-hospital services, while the MCO receives a State-
determined capitation payment. Riverside pays the Hospitals HSCRC-approved rates for hospital
services used by its enrollees. Riversideisarelatively small MCO providing services to 2.4% of
the total number of MCO enrolleesin the HealthChoice Program, which represents approximately
the same market share as CY 2014.

Riverside supplied information on its most recent financial experience as well as its



preliminary projected revenues and expenditures for the upcoming year based on the revised
Medicaid capitation rates.

III. Staff Review

This contract has been operating under previous HSCRC approva (proceeding 2281A).
Staff reviewed the operating financial performance under the contract. Staff reviewed available
final financial information and projections for CY's 2014, 2015, and 2016. Inits second year of
operation, Riverside reported positive financial performancefor CY 2014. However, projections
for CY 2015, like all of the provider-based MCOs, are unfavorable. Riverside is projecting to

resume favorable performancein CY 2016.

IV. Recommendation

Due to startup costs, Riverside's financia performance in its first year (CY 2013) was
negative. ltsfinancial performancein CY 2014 wasfavorable. However, all of the provider-based
MCOs are expecting losses in CY 2015. Riverside is projecting a positive margin in CY 2016.
Staff believes that the proposed renewal arrangement for Riverside is acceptable under
Commission policy but will continue to monitor as the organization has recently changed its
ownership arrangement.

Based on the information provided, staff believes that the proposed arrangement for Riverside is
acceptable.
Therefore:

(1) Staff recommends approval of this alternative rate application for a one-year period

beginning January 1, 2016.



(2) Since sustained losses over an extended period of time may be construed as a loss
contract necessitating termination of this arrangement, staff will continue to monitor
financial performance for CY 2015 and the MCO’s expected financial status into CY
2016. Staff recommends that Riverside report to Commission staff (on or before the
September 2016 meeting of the Commissio n) on the actual CY 2015 experience,
preliminary CY 2016 financial performance (a djusted for seasonality) of the MCO,
as well as projections for CY 2017.

(3) Consistent with its policy paper outlining a structure for review and evaluatio n of
applications for alternative methods of rate determination, the staff reccommends that
this appro val be co ntingent u pon the continued adherence to the stan dard
Memorandum of Understanding with the Ho spitals for the approved contract. T his
document formalizes the understanding between the Commission and the Hospitals,
and includes provisions for such things as payments of HSCRC-approved rates,
treatment of losses that may be attributed to the managed care contract, quarterly
and annua 1 reporting, the confidentialit y of data submitted, penalties for
noncompliance, project termination and/or  alteration, on-going monitoring, and
other issues specific to the proposed contract The MOU also stipuhtes that operating
losses under managed care contracts may not be used to justify future requests for

rate increases.



INRE: THE ALTERNATIVE * BEFORE THE HEALTH

RATE APPLICATION OF * SERVICES COST REVIEW
JOHNSHOPKINSHEALTH * COMMISSION
SYSTEM * DOCKET: 2015
* FOLIO: 2125
BALTIMORE, MARYLAND * PROCEEDING: 2315A
Amended

Final Recommendation

November 18, 2015



|. Introduction

On November 2, 2015, the Johns Hopkins Health System (JHHS) filed an application for
an Alternative Method of Rate Determination pursuant to COMAR 10.37.10.06 on behalf of its
constituent hospitals (the “Hospitals’). JHHS seeks approval for Hopkins Health Advantage.
Inc. (“HHA") to participate in a Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) approved
Medicare Advantage Plan. HHA isthe JHHS entity that assumes the risk under this contract.
JHHS isrequesting an approval for one year beginning January 1, 2016.

Il. Background

On September 1, 2015, CM S granted HHA approval to operate a Medicare Advantage
Plan to provide coverage to Maryland eligible residents in Anne Arundel, Baltimore, Calvert,
Carroll, Howard, Montgomery, Somerset, Washington, Wicomico, Worcester counties and
Baltimore City. The application requests approval for the HHA to provide inpatient and
outpatient hospital services, aswell as certain non-hospital services, in return for aCMS-
determined capitation payment. HHA will pay the Hospitals HSCRC-approved rates for hospital
services used by its enrollees.

HHA supplied a copy of its contract with CM S and financial projectionsfor its

operations.

[1l. Staff Review

Staff reviewed the CM S contract and the financial information and projections for CY's

2016 and beyond.



V. Recommendation

Based on the financial projections, staff believes that the proposed arrangement for HHA
is acceptable under Commission policy.Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission
approve the Hospitals' request to participatein CMS Medicare Part C Medicare Advantage
Program for a period of one year beginning January 1, 2016. The Hospitals must file arenewal
application annually for continued participation. In addition, HHA must meet with HSCRC staff
prior to August 31, 2016 to review its financial projectionsfor CY 2017. In addition, UMHA
must submit a copy of its quarterly and annual National Association of Insurance
Commissioner’s (NAIC’ s) reports within 30 days of submission to the NAIC.

Consistent with its policy paper regarding applications for alternative methods of
rate determination, the staff recommends that this approval be contingent upon the execution of
the standard Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") with the Hospitals for the approved
contract. This document would formalize the understanding between the Commission and the
Hospitals, and would include provisions for such things as payments of HSCRC-approved rates,
treatment of |osses that may be attributed to the contract, quarterly and annual reporting,
confidentiality of data submitted, penalties for noncompliance, project termination and/or
alteration, on-going monitoring, and other issues specific to the proposed contract. The MOU
will also stipulate that operating losses under the contract cannot be used to justify future

requests for rate increases.



IN RE: THE APPLICATION FOR
ALTERNATIVE METHOD OF RATE
DETERMINATION *

JOHNS HOPKINS HEALTH
SYSTEM

BALTIMORE, MARYLAND

BEFORE THE MARYLAND HEALTH

SERVICES COST REVIEW
COMMISSION

DOCKET: 2015
FOLIO: 2126

PROCEEDING: 2316A

Staff Recommendation

November 18, 2015



I. INTRODUCTION

Johns Hopkins Health System (“ System”) filed a renewal application with the HSCRC on
October 30, 2015 on behalf of the Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center (the “Hospital”)
requesting approval from the HSCRC for continued participation in a capitation arrangement
among the System, the Maryland Department of Health and Mental Hygiene (DHMH), and the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). The Hospital, doing business as Hopkins
Elder Plus (“HEP”), serves as a provider in the federal “Program of All-inclusive Care for the
Elderly” (*PACE"). Under this program, HEP provides services for a Medicare and Medicaid
dually eligible population of frail elderly. The requested approval isfor a period of one year
effective December 1, 2015.

II. OVE RVIEW OF APPLICATION

The parties to the contract include the System, DHMH, and CMS. The contract covers
medical services provided to the PACE population. The assumptions for enrollment, utilization,
and unit costs were developed on the basis of historical HEP experience for the PACE
population as previously reviewed by an actuarial consultant. The System will assume the risks
under the agreement, and all Maryland hospital serviceswill be paid based on HSCRC rates.

HI. STAFF EVALUATION

Staff found that the experience under this arrangement for FY 2015 to be slightly
unfavorable. The PACE Program Administrator explained that the relatively poor performance
was attributable to several factors that have been addressed in this year’ s budget. The Program
should produce a small profit in FY 2016. However, because the membership in the Program is
restricted, one or two outlier hospital admissions could eliminate the surplus. Therefore, in taking

a conservative approach, the Program is projecting a breakeven year in FY 2016.

III. STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Commission approve the Hospital’ s renewal application for an

alternative method of rate determination for one year beginning Decmber 1, 2015. The Hospital



will need to file arenewal application for review to be considered for continued participation.
Consistent with its policy paper regarding applications for alternative methods of rate
determination, the staff recommends that this approval be contingent upon the execution of the
standard Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") with the Hospital for the approved contract.
This document formalizes the understanding between the Commission and the Hospital, and
includes provisions for such things as payments of HSCRC-approved rates, treatment of losses
that may be attributed to the contract, quarterly and annual reporting, confidentiality of data
submitted, penalties for noncompliance, project termination and/or alteration, on-going
monitoring, and other issues specific to the proposed contract. The MOU also stipulates that
operating losses under the contract cannot be used to justify future requests for rate increases.



INRE: THE ALTERNATIVE
RATE APPLICATION OF
UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND

MEDICAL SYSTEM

BALTIMORE, MARYLAND

* BEFORE THE HEALTH

* SERVICES COST REVIEW
* COMMISSION

* DOCKET: 2015

* FOLIO: 2128

* PROCEEDING: 2318A

Amended
Final Recommendation

November 18, 2015



|. Introduction

On November 9, 2015, the University of Maryland Medical System (UMMYS) filed an
application for an Alternative Method of Rate Determination pursuant to COMAR 10.37.10.06
on behalf of its constituent hospitals (the “Hospitals’). UMMS seeks approval for University of
Maryland Health Advantage, Inc. (“UMHA”) to participate in a Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services (CMS) approved Medicare Advantage Plan. UMHA isthe UMMS entity that
assumes the risk under this contract. UMHA is requesting an approval for one year beginning
January 1, 2016.

Il. Background

On September 1, 2015, CM S granted UMHA approval to operate a Medicare Advantage
Plan to provide coverage to Maryland eligible residentsin Anne Arundel, Baltimore, Caroline,
Cecil, Carroll, Dorchester, Harford, Howard, Kent, Montgomery, Queen Anne’'s, Talbot counties
and Baltimore City. The application requests approva for UMHA to provide inpatient and
outpatient hospital services, aswell as certain non-hospital services, inreturn for aCMS-
determined capitation payment. UMHA will pay the Hospitals HSCRC-approved rates for
hospital services used by its enrollees.

UMHA supplied a copy of its contract with CM S and financial projectionsfor its

operations.

[1l. Staff Review

Staff reviewed the CM S contract and the financial information and projections for CY's

2016 and beyond.



V. Recommendation

Based on the financial projections, staff believes that the proposed arrangement for
UMHA is acceptable under Commission policy. Therefore, staff recommends that the
Commission approve the Hospitals' request to participate in CMS Medicare Part C Medicare
Advantage Program for a period of one year beginning January 1, 2016. UMHA must meet with
HSCRC staff prior to August 31, 2016 to review itsfinancial projectionsfor CY 2017. In
addition, UMHA must submit a copy of its quarterly and annual National Association of
Insurance Commissioner’s (NAIC' s) reports within 30 days of submission to the NAIC.

Consistent with its policy paper regarding applications for alternative methods of rate
determination, the staff recommends that this approval be contingent upon the execution of the
standard Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") with the Hospitals for the approved contract.
This document would formalize the understanding between the Commission and the Hospitals,
and would include provisions for such things as payments of HSCRC-approved rates, treatment
of losses that may be attributed to the contract, quarterly and annual reporting, confidentiality of
data submitted, penalties for noncompliance, project termination and/or alteration, on-going
monitoring, and other issues specific to the proposed contract. The MOU will also stipulate that

operating losses under the contract cannot be used to justify future requests for rate increases.



Preliminary Staff Report for Commission Consideration
Regarding Health Job Opportunity Program Proposal
November 18, 2015

Overview Health Job Opportunity Program Proposal

At the Commission’s September 9, 2015 public meeting, a panel of several hospital
representatives and the Maryland Hospital Association proposed that the HSCRC provide up to
S40 million through hospital rates to establish about 1,000 entry level health care jobs in areas
of extreme poverty and unemployment. This staff report provides input on several options for
Commission discussion, based on input from the Payment Models Workgroup, public comment,
and staff policy analysis.

Background
The Health Job Opportunity Program Proposal (“Proposa

IH

) came about as a result of the unrest
in Baltimore City and the strong belief that employment is an important element needed to
change the current situation. Hospitals are among the largest employers in Baltimore City as well
as in other areas of the State that have pockets of extreme poverty and unemployment. The
Proposal seeks to create community-based jobs that can contribute to improved community
health as well as hospital jobs that create employment opportunities in economically challenged
areas.

All parties have acknowledged the importance of jobs in reducing economic disparities.
However, there are critical differences in thinking about how creating job opportunities should
be addressed and who should provide the funding for job creation.

This report focuses on synthesizing input and providing staff policy analysis for consideration by
the Commission in determining how to approach this important proposal.

Analysis
Summary of Input Received--
Payment Models Work Group

The Payment Models Workgroup held a meeting to discuss this and other topics on October 5,
2015. Program description materials and a series of questions were sent out in advance of the
meeting and posted to the website. Comments were also accepted from other individuals
attending the meeting.



The work group members and other commenters expressed their appreciation for the leadership

in bringing forward this proposal. All parties acknowledged the importance of jobs in reducing

disparities.

Following is a general summary of work group comments, as presented in the Executive

Director’s report at the October 14, 2015 Commission meeting:

Several commenters expressed the view that if the Commission were to take on a

program of this nature, that it would be very important to define success. Success would

need to be framed not only in creating jobs, but also in the context of the New All Payer

Model and Triple Aim of improving care, improving health, and lowering costs.

(0]

(0]

A program that could not meet those requirements might be better implemented
outside of the rate system.

Proposers of the Program indicated that evaluative criteria should be developed
and that if the Program was not meeting those criteria, that it should be
discontinued.

Because the jobs are entry level and for untrained workers, there was an
indication that it might take some time to evaluate the impact on health and costs.
Whether the jobs could be filled and the workers maintained could be determined
much sooner.

Several commenters felt that it would be important to focus on jobs outside of hospitals,

such as Community Health Workers. The concern was expressed that the reduction of

avoidable utilization in hospitals might reduce the need for some of the hospital jobs that

were referred to in the Proposal.

(0]

One of the Academic Medical Centers felt that its utilization would not decrease
with potentially avoidable utilization, but would backfill as out of state volumes
increased or other referrals could be served.

One commenter expressed concern about the need for training of Community
Health Workers, making sure they were prepared to be in the community working
with frail and severely ill patients. (Note that there was a work group that recently
produced a set of recommendations regarding Community Health Workers.)
More design and structure would need to be in place.

Several commenters felt that infrastructure adjustments already provided to hospitals, or

the additional amount that is slated for award in January 2016, were already focused on

similar activities and that this effort would be duplicative.

(0}

Proposers expressed that the infrastructure funds were already committed in
their budgets for other purposes, and that a new source of funding is needed for
rapid deployment of additional jobs.



0 Commenters indicated that a Return on Investment should be expected, similar
to the recent infrastructure increases approved by the Commission.
e |t was also suggested that other funding sources be considered for Program
implementation.
0 The proposers indicated that this might slow the process down, or detract from
the level of possible implementation and impact.
e Several commenters indicated that if the Proposal were to move forward, much more
detailed design work needs to take place.
0 One suggestion was to ask the hospitals to organize an effort with other
stakeholders and experts to further develop potential design criteria.
0 Another commenter indicated that the Commission staff might take this on and
organize a work group to develop the program.
0 One commenter expressed concerns about accountability to payers, including
the need for a return on investment.

Letters of Support and Public Comment

There were a number of letters of support received. Those include letters from public officials
and other interested parties. These letters outline the need for jobs and support for the Proposal.

Letters were also received from DHMH-Medicaid and CareFirst. These letters express support
for the need for jobs, but express concerns similar to those expressed in the payment work group
regarding funding mechanisms and other considerations as outlined above.

All of these letters are attached to this report.

The Commission also heard from representatives of a community group, Baltimoreans United in
Leadership Development (BUILD), at the October 14, 2015 Commission meeting. They stressed
the importance of jobs in improving the situation in Baltimore. The representatives described
existing programs that are making progress in employing individuals in economically deprived
areas and the process they have used to ensure that the individuals employed through these
programs are successful. The Staff and Commission were very appreciative of their presentation
and advice regarding successful approaches that could be employed to make the Program work.

HSCRC Staff Commentary

The Commission and its staff are very concerned about health disparities and have focused
extensive policy development around ensuring that resources are available for enhanced
hospital care in areas of disparities. This includes financial policies such as disproportionate
share adjustments that provide additional revenues to hospitals in areas of the State where
there is a higher estimated level of poverty. These adjustments are derived from claims data

3



and indirect medical education allowances that provide revenues to hospitals, many of which
are located in areas of the State with economic disparities. These policies have been applied in
developing hospital rates for many decades. The HSCRC staff has also been attentive in
developing value based performance measures to consider the impact of the social
determinants of health. In fact, the HSCRC staff has been working on an Area Deprivation Index
to enhance measurement of socioeconomic disparities and evaluating incorporating the index
into its policies.

More needs to be done, however. In spite of significant amounts of additional funding
provided to hospitals and a significantly higher amount of overall health care dollars being
spent in areas of high socioeconomic disparities, serious disparities in health outcomes exist in
Baltimore City as well as in other parts of the State. These disparities have been measured and
documented in the State Health Improvement Plan. Hospitals have also recognized these
disparities in their Community Health Needs Assessments.

The new All Payer Model recognized that a new approach is needed to address population
health and disparities in outcomes. The Commission has approved numerous policies aimed at
redirecting resources to this important objective including:

e Working with hospitals to move payment to global budgets so that when care and
health are improved and utilization reduced, hospitals will be able to reinvest retained
savings in interventions that are focused on improving health and outcomes. Hospitals
have been accorded a great deal of flexibility in spending these resources.

e The Commission approved the funding of eight regional partnership grants focused on
planning of patient-centered care coordination initiatives involving hospitals and
community providers and partners. Out of $2.5 million of funding, 40% was provided to
Baltimore City and Prince Georges County partnerships, counties where there are high
levels of health disparities.

e By luly 1, 2015, the Commission had placed more than $200 million of funding in rates
earmarked for providing infrastructure and support for interventions to improve health
and outcomes and reduce avoidable utilization. Hospitals have completed reports on
historic expenditures, and strategic plans are due in December.

e |n December of 2015, HSCRC will review grant applications for up to $40 million of care
coordination initiatives that would be funded through hospital rates.

Others have devoted resources as well:

e The State of Maryland has also invested in programs focused on addressing health
disparities in economically deprived areas such as the expansion of Medicaid and
investments in Health Enterprise Zones.



Hospitals, government agencies, and other grantors have also dedicated resources to
individuals with disparities, including free clinics, transportation, some housing, as well
as other interventions.

Public health resources in Maryland are focused on similar needs.

The significant Medicaid expansion which took place effective January 1, 2014, provided
coverage for numerous individuals in areas of high deprivation, providing a source of
health coverage that has improved the access to health care services, including
preventive care.

The federal government has provided grant awards, focused in part on workforce
training. Several of the hospital awardees include hospitals located in Baltimore City.

With its new focus on chronic conditions and high needs patients, which are more prevalent in

populations with health and economic disparities, HSCRC and hospitals will be directing funding

toward reducing health disparities.

Relative to the Proposal, HSCRC staff has several concerns.

Staff is concerned about including traditional jobs inside of hospitals in a grant program.
These should be funded through hospital budgets. Furthermore, if the health care
transformation is successful, hospital usage should decline and there is a concern that
individuals in need of jobs might be employed in jobs that would be eliminated, thereby
defeating the purpose of the Program.

Staff supports expanding hospital resources deployed for positions that support the
transitions anticipated in the All Payer Model-- care coordination, population health,
health, information exchange, health information technology, alignment, and consumer
engagement. However, staff is concerned about the funding sources and the potential
for overlap with the additional resources that are being provided through rates as noted
above. Furthermore, there are hospital community benefit dollars that could potentially
be deployed in this effort. Grants are another potential source of funding.

In order to implement programs such as those described above, significant amounts of
training and coaching would be required. The programs require significant design and
dedication of resources. HSCRC staff believes that considerable development needs to
take place to plan, develop, and execute these programs successfully, similar to the
planning and development that have gone into nursing education programs in the past.
The HSCRC staff acknowledges the importance of jobs creation in areas of high
economic deprivation, but staff is concerned about HSCRC’s role in addressing this issue.



HSCRC Staff Options
Based on the commentary received to date, HSCRC staff offers several options, in no particular
order of preference, for discussion with the Commission and for further public input.

Option 1—Earmark 25% (approximately $10 million) of the .25% pool for competitive
transformation implementation grant funds for hospitals committing to hire workers from
geographic areas of high socioeconomic deprivation to fill new care coordination, population
health, health information exchange, alignment, consumer engagement, and related positions.
Hospitals should provide matching funds to increase the resources that could be deployed.
Under this option, staff would anticipate proposals for the $10 million from hospitals in March
2016, with implementation beginning by July 2016.

Option 2—Set aside $5 million of the .25% competitive transformation implementation grant
funds to provide one time seed money for Program implementation once design is complete
with expectation of implementation by July 2016. Expect hospitals to fund positions from
infrastructure in rates, community benefits funds, return on investment, hospital resources,
and other grant, philanthropy, and foundation support. Under this option, staff would expect
that program design would commence as soon as possible. The program design group would
decide the best ways to deploy the S5 million in seed money including program development,
training, coaching, funding of trainers, educators, coaches, etc. Hospitals would apply for the
funds in March 2016, with anticipated implementation beginning by July 2016.

Option 3—Defer funding and have Proposers continue to develop Program design,
implementation, and evaluation parameters by March 2016, together with AHECs and other job
training resources, with a potential for future funding of some educational resources or seed
funding in July 2016. Funding could potentially include program development, training,
coaching, funding of trainers and coaches, etc. Expect hospitals to fund positions from
infrastructure in rates, community benefits funds, hospital resources such as return on
investment, and other grant, philanthropy, and foundation support. HSCRC staff would expect
that the resources provided would not be greater than the S5 million noted in Option 2 above.

Any of these options would require considerable development and structuring for success and
accountability, and a fully developed evaluation process. If these or other options are pursued,
resources will be needed to develop and administer the Program.

In summary, HSCRC staff understands the need for expansion of employment and for
improvement in health outcomes and reductions in disparities for populations living in
economically deprived areas of the State. The Commission has developed policies and



programs and provided funding that supports reducing health disparities under the All Payer
Model. Staff has provided several options for discussion by the Commission regarding
additional progress that might be made in developing employment opportunities, while
addressing changes in hospital employment that are needed to successfully reach the goals of
the new All Payer Model and the State Health Improvement Plan.



BARBARA A. MIKULSKI IN REPLY PLEASE REFER TO
MARYLAND OFFICE INDICATED:

[7] 901 SOUTH BOND STREET, SUITE 31C
COMMITTEES: L ET. E 310

X » i 1 BALTIMORE, MD 21231
. ' 1 % ) (410) 962 )
APPROPRIATIONS Anited States Senate VT (on R e
IiEALTl;.jg%gﬁ;:gﬁé}ﬁﬁ()ﬂ. WASHINGTON, DC 20510-2003 il 60 WEST STREET, SUITE 202
4 - o ANNAPOLIS, MD 21401-2448
(410) 263-1805
BALTIMORE: (410) 269-1650
September 1, 2015 ;
i J 6404 IVY LANE, SUITE 406
3 20770-1407

GREEMNBELT,

517

Mr. John M. Colmers [] 32 WEST WASHINGTON STREET
Chairman HAGERST ?Oo‘rﬂl);?u 4804
Health Services Cost Review Commission i
= nuae O s, soTe o
Baltimore, Maryland 21215-2254 Llsz,uR\fnL\:J?eo 2403

Dear Mr. Colmers:

Your office will soon be receiving a proposal from Maryland'’s hospitals to create
a hospital-led employment program that hires from communities with high rates of
poverty and unemployment. | am writing to express my strong support for the proposal
and to urge you to give it every favorable consideration.

As outlined in the proposal, poverty is a contributing factor to poor health. A
hospital employment program that targets impoverished communities not only improves
the economic stability of the communities, this effort will also have a positive impact on
the overall health of these communities. Because Maryland's All-Payer Model
Agreement shifts hospital care towards a population health approach we believe this
program is consistent with the Model Agreement.

| strongly support this collaborative and innovative approach toward population
based health. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Badow X DkoeZ

Barbara A. Mikulski
United States Senator

BAM:wbk






DONNA F. EDWARDS HOUSE COMMITTEE ON
TRANSPORTATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT,
PuBLIC BUILDINGS, AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

4TH DISTRICT, MARYLAND

HOUSE COMMITTEE ON

SCIENCE, SPACE, AND TECHNOLOGY @nngregg Ut the ’@nl’tgh étatez SUBCOMMITTEE ON HIGHWAYS AND TRANSIT

SUBCOMMITTEE ON THE ENVIRONMENT SUBCOMMITTEE ON WATER RESOURCES

SUBCOMMITTEE ON SPACE, RANKING MEMBER %uuge U'[ Reptegentatl’h Bg AND ENVIRONMENT
TWashington, BE 20515-2004

September 2, 2015

John Colmers

Chairman, Health Services Cost Review Commission
4160 Patterson Avenue

Baltimore, MD 21215

Dear Chairman Colmers:

I am writing to express support for the proposal from Maryland’s hospitals to create a hospital-led
employment program that hires from communities with high rates of poverty and unemployment.
Maryland may be one of the wealthiest states in the nation, but we continue to experience health
disparities associated with low income. Further, empirical evidence has shown that the inability to
obtain employment with growth opportunities consistently contributes to the cycle of poverty.

A hospital employment program that targets impoverished communities not only improves the
economic stability of those communities, but also will have a positive impact on the overall physical
health of these communities.

As you know, hospitals are some of the largest employers in many of Maryland’s diverse
communities, and I support a program that will hire thousands of Marylanders from low-income,
high-unemployment zip codes. Because Maryland’s All-Payer Model Agreement shifts hospital care

towards a population health approach, I believe this program is consistent with the Model
Agreement.

I strongly support this collaborative and innovative approach toward population based health care.

Sincerely,

Ao 2 Ecdrrcty

Donna F. Edwards

Member of Congress
5001 SiLVER HiLL RoaD 2445 RAYBURN House OFFICE BUILDING 877 BALTIMORE ANNAPOLIS BOULEVARD
SuITe 106 WasHINGTON, DC 20515-2004 RiTcHIE COURT OFFICE BUILDING

SUITLAND, MARYLAND 20746 TELEPHONE: (202) 225-8699 UnNiT 101
TELEPHONE: (301} 5167601 Fax: {202) 225-8714 SeveRNA Park, MD 21146
Fax: (301) 516-7608 TeLEPHONE: {410) 421-8061

Fax: (410} 421-8065
NOT PRINTED AT GOVERNMENT EXPENSE A-3

http://donnaedwards.house.gov



DONNA F. EDWARDS

4TH DisSTRICT, MARYLAND

HOUSE COMMITTEE ON

SCIENCE, SPACE, AND TECHNOLOGY @ungrgﬂg Uf ﬂJB aan[tth étﬂttﬁ

SUBCOMMITTEE ON THE ENVIRONMENT

SUBCOMMITTEE ON SPACE, RANKING MEMBER %Duﬂe U'[ Reprezentatl’h Bg
Washington, BEL 205152004

cc: Herbert Wong, PhD, Vice Chairman
George H. Bone, MD
Stephen F. Jencks, MD, MPH
Jack C. Keane
Donna Kinzer, Executive Director

Bernadette Loftus, MD
Thomas R. Mullen
5001 SiLveR HiLL Roap 2445 RayBuRN House OFFICE BuiLDING
SuiTe 106 WAasHINGTON, DC 20515-2004
SUITLAND, MARYLAND 20746 TELEPHONE: {202) 225-8699
TELEPHONE: (301) 516-7601 Fax: (202) 225-8714

Fax: (301) 516-7608

NOT PRINTED AT GOVERNMENT EXPENSE
http://donnaedwards.house.gov

HOUSE COMMITTEE ON
TRANSPORTATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE

SuBCOMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT,
PusLic BUILDINGS, AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

SUBCOMMITTEE ON HIGHWAYS AND TRANSIT

SUBCOMMITTEE ON WATER RESOURCES
AND ENVIRONMENT

877 BALTIMORE ANNAPOLIS BOULEVARD
RiTcHie COURT OFFICE BUILDING
UniT 101
SEVERNA PARK, MD 21146
TELEPHONE: {410} 421-8061
FAx: (410) 421-8065

A-4



C.A. DUTCH RUPPERSBERGER PERMANENT SELECT COMMITTEE
2nD DISTRICT, MARYLAND ON INTELLIGENCE

RepLy To: RANKING MEMBER

2416 Raveurn House OFFice BuiLDing P I + - -
N s soe Congress of the United States
Fax: (202) 225-30¢ - -
] 375 West Pr\rwcw:t\ me:o‘::nu 200 m'ultﬁl: ut mrl’lrrﬁrlltattnrﬁ
TeN0) 626.2701 Washington, DC 205315-2002
Fax: (410) 628-2708
www .dutch.house. gov
August 31, 2015

Mr. John Colmers

Chairman

Health Services Cost Review Commission
4160 Patterson Avenue

Baltimore, Maryland 21215

Dear Mr. Colmers:

I am writing to express my support for Johns Hopkins’ proposal to create a hospital-led
employment program that hires from communities with high rates of poverty and unemployment.
This program was modeled on Maryland’s Nursing Support Program, which alleviated a severe
nursing shortage and saved the state over $100 million by reducing hospitals’ dependence on
contract nurses. Johns Hopkins’ current proposal aims to create 1,000 jobs with a budget of less
than $40 million per year using a portion of the “cushion” from Maryland’s All-Payer Model

Agreement.

The correlation between poverty and poor health is widely recognized. As some of the
state’s largest employers and community anchors, hospitals are uniquely positioned to address
both of these issues. A hospital employment program that targets impoverished communities will
improve not only the economic stability but also the overall health of these communities. As
hospitals shift their focus to providing holistic, community-based care, this employment program
will address the underlying causes of poverty and provide resources to expand the community
health workforce.

I strongly support this collaborative and innovative approach toward population-based
health care and I hope you will give this proposal serious consideration. Thank you very much
for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

O A B @WJ‘@“

C.A. Dutch Ruppersberger
Member of Congress

CADR:ng



JOHN P. SARBANES 2444 RavaurN House OFFICE BUILDING
3RO DISTAICT, MARYLAND WAS{'{B';T%N_:;_B&?S'S

Fax: {202} 225-9219

COMMITTEE ON

ENERGY AND COMMERCE @ongress of the nited States
House of Representatives

MWashington, BE 205152003

www. sarbanes.house.gov

September 1, 2015

Mr. John Colmers

Health Services Cost Review Commission
4160 Patterson Avenue

Baltimore, MD 21215-2254

Dear Mr. Colmers:

| am writing to express my strong support for the proposal submitted to the Health Services
Cost Review Commission {HSCRC) by Maryland’s hospitals. The proposal will create a health
employment program which will utilize funds to hire healthcare professionals from
communities with high rates of poverty and unemployment within Baltimore City.

Tens of thousands of manufacturing jobs in the Baltimore metropolitan area have been lost
over the last 40 years. This loss has resulted in a critical need of new entry level employment
with opportunities for career advancement. This employment program will allow for the
expansion of up to 1,000 hospital employed positions to be hired from low income, high
unemployment areas. A hospital employment program that targets impoverished communities
will improve the economic stability of the entire city.

The proposed employment program is consistent with the Maryland All-Payer Model
Agreement that shifts hospital care towards a population health approach. Hospitals in
Maryland are uniquely positioned to help in this process. While the program is intended to
address the immediate issues facing Baltimore City, this endeavor wili create a model that can
be applied to any community in need of employment opportunities.

I ask that you give all appropriate consideration to the health employment program proposal to

HSCRC.
Sincerely,
"L P' 4? .;A-Q-..’—
John P. Sarbanes
Member of Congress
JPS/jl
600 BALTIMORE AVENUE 44 CALVERT STREET 3901 NaTionaL DRIVE
Sure 302 SwiTE 349 SwiTe 220
Towson, MD 21204 ANNaPOLIS, MD 21401 BuRTONSVILLE, MD 20866
(410} 832-8890 {410} 295-1679 (301) 421-4078

Fax: (410} 832-8898 Fax: (410) 295~1682 Fax: {307 421-4079
PRINTEDC ON RECYCLED PAPER



CHRIS VAN HOLLEN 1707 LONGWORTH HOUSE OFFICE BUILDING
WAasHINGTON, DC 20615
8TH DISTRICT, MARYLAND (202) 225-5341

COMMITTEE ON THE BUDGET DISTRICT OFFICES:

Congress of the United States B
Tbouge of Representatives

(301) 424-3501

205 CENTER STREET
SUITE 206

Wdﬂbingtnn, ZB@: 20515 MouNT ARy, MD 21771
(301) 829-2181
August 26, 20 1 5 www.vanhollen.house.gov

Mr. John M. Colmers

Chairman

Maryland Health Services Cost Review Commission
4160 Patterson Ave.

Baltimore, MD 21215

Dear Chairman Colmers:

[ am writing to express my strong support for the efforts of Johns Hopkins University
Hospital and other Maryland hospitals to create a hospital-led employment program
that hires residents of communities with high rates of poverty and unemployment.

Funding for this proposal will enable this collaborative hospital employment program to
develop career pathways to jobs in the high growth healthcare industry for un- and under-
employed Maryland residents of communities experiencing high rates of poverty. Hospitals
provide a variety of entry-level positions that offer competitive salaries and benefits. Not only
will this employment program improve the economic stability of the communities, but it will
also have a positive impact on the overall health of these communities.

The proposed program is a collaborative and innovative approach toward population-

based health care. Turge you to give it your most serious consideration.

Sincerel

R

Chris Van Hollen
Member of Congress

cc: Herbert Wong, PhD, Vice Chairman
George H. Bone, MD
Stephen F. Jencks, MD, MPH
Jack C. Keane
Donna Kinzer, Executive Director
Bernadette Loftus, MD
Thomas R. Mullen

THIS STATIONERY PRINTED ON PAPER MADE OF RECYCLED FIBERS



o) 53:}1} 8 G
"F‘\ f_.‘::'_.L

{6 s o

G 7

R _w“-\_ P o 1e .
Tronas VO Mgk Mg, Ji. E‘-"’&.—,‘ St ‘ Michagn I, Iiﬂll.-LH .
PRESIDENT OF THE SENATE SPEAKER OF THE Housk

THE MARYLAND GENERAL ASSEMBLY
STATE HousEk
ANNAPOLIS, MARYLAND 21401-1991

September 9, 2015

John M. Colmers

Chairman, Health Services Cost Review Commission
4160 Patterson Avenue

Baltimore, MD 21215

Dear Chairman Colmers:

As the presiding officers of the Maryland General Assembly, we offer our full support of the Hospital
Employment Program.

The success of Maryland’s unique hospital rate setting system is not only a source of pride for the State, it
is also a platform for innovations that improve the health of Maryland’s residents. We believe the
Hospital Employment program represents a broad based collaboration that addresses the social and
economic conditions that contribute to poor health. Creating an employment path for Maryland’s most
economically disadvantaged communities will not only bring stability and improved health to those
communities but it will also improve the overall quality of living for all Marylanders.

We applaud all those involved in this innovative approach to population health. Thank you for your time
and consideration.

Sincerely,

%Wmm

Thomas V. MlkLN[l]IBI' [Jr
Senate President Speaker of the House

ce: Herbert Wong, PhD, Vice Chairman
George H. Bone, MD
Stephen F. Jencks, MD, MPH
Jack C. Keane
Donna Kinzer, Executive Director
Bernadette Loftus, MD
Thomas R. Mullen



PeTErR A. HAMMEN
46th Legislative District

Baltimore City

Chair

Health and Government
Operations Committee

Annapolis Office
The Maryland House of Delegates
6 Bladen Street, Room 241
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
410-841-3770
800-492-7122 Ext. 3770

District Office
821 S. Grundy Street
Baltimore, Maryland 21224

THE MARYLAND HOUSE OF DELEGATES 4103423142

ANNAPOLIS, MARYLAND 21401

September 9, 2015

John M. Colmers

Chairman, Health Services Cost Review Commission
4160 Patterson Avenue

Baltimore, MD 21215

Dear Chairman Colmers:

I am writing to express my strong support of the Hospital Employment Program. As Chairman of the
House Health and Government Operations Committee, | work with committee members to shape health
policy for our state. As we work to meet the goals of Maryland’s All-Payer Model Agreement, we must
look to new sources of partnership and innovation. The Hospital Employment Program aligns with the
new All-Payer Model Agreement’s focus on population health by creating community-based jobs
targeting overall population health. This program utilizes our unique waiver system to improve
economic and health outcomes for the pockets of Maryland that need stability most. As a
representative of Baltimore City | welcome the opportunity to support a program poised to provide
significant support to City residents. Additionally, this targeted employment program, focused on the
State’s most disadvantaged communities, has the potential to produce savings from improved overall
community health.

The Maryland All-Payer Model Agreement provides Maryland with the unique opportunity for
innovation. The Hospital Employment Program is a strong example of the type of collaboration we need
to be successful under the new agreement. | strongly support this innovative approach to population
health.

Sincerely,

"Re 0l

Peter A. Hammen

cc: Herbert Wong, PhD, Vice Chairman
George H. Bone, MD
Stephen F. Jencks, MD, MPH
Jack C. Keane
Donna Kinzer, Executive Director
Bernadette Loftus, MD
Thomas R. Mullen



The Maryland House of Delegates
6 Bladen Street, Room 121
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
410-841-3407 - 301-858-3407

800-492-7122 Lxt. 3407
Fax 410-841-3416 - 301-858-3416
Maggie.McIntosh@house.state.md.us

Macere Mclntoss
Legislative District 43
Baltimore City

Chair

Appropriations Committee

The (}Waryldnd House of Delegates

ANNAPOLIS, MARYLAND 21401

September 9, 2015

John M. Colmers

Chairman, Health Services Cost Review Commission
4160 Patterson Avenue

Baltimore, MD 21215

Dear Chairman Colmers:

As Chair of the Maryland General Assembly House Committee on Appropriations, | am writing to express
my support of the Hospital Employment Program. This program aims to improve the health, economy
and stability of some of the state’s most disadvantaged communities through a targeted employment
program that offers hospital-based jobs to those who need them most.

The success of Maryland’s unique hospital rate setting system is not only a source of pride for the State,
it is also a platform for innovations that improve the health of Maryland’s residents. | believe the
Hospital Employment program represents a broad based collaboration that addresses the social and
economic conditions that contribute to poor health. Creating an employment path for Maryland’s most
economically disadvantaged communities will not only bring stability and improved health to those
communities but it will also improve the overall quality of living for all Marylanders. | applaud all those
involved for this innovative approach to population health.

Sincerely,

cc: Herbert Wong, PhD, Vice Chairman
George H. Bone, MD
Stephen F. Jencks, MD, MPH
Jack C. Keane
Donna Kinzer, Executive Director
Bernadette Loftus, MD
Thomas R. Mullen



STEPHANIE RAWLINGS-BLAKE
MAYOR

100 Holliday Street, Room 250
Baltimore, Maryland 21202

September 9, 2015

Mr. John M. Colmers

Chairman, Health Services Cost Review Commission
3910 Keswick Road

Suite N-2200

Baltimore, Maryland 21211

Dear Chairman Colmers:

I am writing to express my enthusiastic support of the Hospital Employment Program. This program
represents the widespread collaboration between the City, the State, Maryland’s hospitals, business leaders
and insurers to address health and income disparities within the most disadvantaged communities. Given the
number of qualifying zip codes that meet the criteria of the program, these efforts will make a substantial
difference in improving the quality of life for may Baltimore City residents.

If you have any questions, please contact Kaliope Parthemos on (410) 396-4876 or
Kaliope.parthemos@baltimoremorecity.gov .

Sincerely,

Stephanie Rawlings-Bl
Mayor
City of Baltimore

Cc: Kaliope Parthemos, Chief of Staff
Dr. Leana Wen, Baltimore City Health Commissioner
Herbert Wong, PhD, Vice Chairman
George H. Bone, MD
Stephen F. Jencks, MD, MPH
Jack C. Keane
Donna Kinzer, Executive Director
Bernadette Loftus, MD
Thomas R. Mullen

phone: 410.396.3835 fax: 410.576.9425 email: mayor@baltimorecity.gov A-11



STATE OF MARYLAND

DHMH

September 8. 2015

John M. Colmers

Chairman

The Health Services Cost Review Commission
4160 Patterson Avenue

Baltimore, MD 21215 \r)
Dear Chairman Coln;gﬁ\

The Department has reviewed the Health Employment Program document prepared
by the Maryland Hospital Association. In short, the proposal will build into hospital rates $40
million in additional funds to hire about 1,000 workers. The types of workers include
community health workers, Medicaid and Health Benefit Exchange enrollment assistors, peer
support specialists, as well as more traditional hospital employees, including environmental
services, dietary staff, nursing assistants, escorts, and security personnel. We are writing to

express our concern about the Health Employment Program and urge the HSCRC to conduct
a comprehensive review of the hospital proposal before moving forward.

A Mechanism Already Exists for Funding this Initiative

The HSCRC has already made infrastructure adjustments to the hospitals rates totaling
almost $200 million. These adjustments are not one-time adjustments; rather, they have been
built permanently into hospital global budgets. Hospitals will receive these infrastructure
monies every year unless the Commission takes action to end it.

The HSCRC built a 0.325 percent infrastructure adjustment into global budgets for FY 2014
and FY 2015, for a cumulative amount of roughly $100 million. Another 0.4 percent
infrastructure adjustment was built into FY 2016 rates, and the hospitals have the potential to
receive another 0.25 percent adjustment starting January 1, 2016. The additional 0.25
percent will be competitive, meaning that a hospital’s ability to receive the additional 0.25
percent will depend on the quality of the hospital proposal or plan submitted on December 1,
2015. Nothing precludes the hospitals from submitting a proposal that includes a Health
Employment Program. The estimated impact on the FY 2016 infrastructure adjustment is
$100 million, meaning that in FY 2016 and every year thereafter, hospitals will receive $200
million in additional infrastructure monies.

Costs Will Not Be Offset Without Return on Investment from Hospital Global Budgets

We disagree that the savings will be largely offset from fewer people utilizing public
programs such as Medicaid. Under federal eligibility requirements, and depending a number

201 W. Preston Street — Baltimore, Maryland 21201
Toll Free 1-877-4MD-DHMH — TTY/Maryland Relay Service 1-800-735-2258
Web Site: www.dhmh.maryland.gov



HSCRC| Health Employment Program
September 8, 2015
Page 2

of factors, including the income, cost of other coverage offered and household size of the
individuals participating, they or their family members could remain eligible for Medicaid.

Additionally, during our Community Health Workers workgroup sessions, many participants
questioned whether additional Community Health Workers would have the opposite effect on
the Medicaid budget—that is, create more opportunities to enroll individuals on

Medicaid. In the past, the Department has seen the utilization of Community Health Workers
as a way to better coordinate care for our high cost populations more effectively. We
believe, notwithstanding the potential outreach impact that additional Community Health
Workers could result in additional savings to the overall program. A large component of
those savings would come from hospital services. The proposal does not mention any of
these savings being passed onto payers through a reduction in future hospital global budget
revenues. Without a formula in place for payers to realize a return on investment accrued by
the savings achieved by hospitals, there will be no offsetting of costs.

Applicants for the competitive 0.25 infrastructure rate increase are required to submit a
calculation for the expected return on investment for their proposed interventions; should a
separate Hospital Employment Program be created, it is the Department’s position that a
similar costing exercise should be produced.

Proposal Lacks Accountability to the Pavers

The proposal outlines that hospitals receiving monies through the Health Employment
Program will be required to submit biannual reports to HSCRC detailing the incremental
employees hired and the costs associated with these hires. The proposal does not include a
process where payers can provide feedback and recommendations on the new positions or the
program in general. Medicaid pays for roughly 20 percent of hospital charges in

Maryland. In other words, Medicaid will pay roughly $8 million of the $40 million proposal
annually. The Department wants to ensure that an equal portion of any monies is devoted to
employees who benefit the Medicaid population. The current proposal lacks this feedback
mechanism or any measures to evaluate the program’s impact.

The Department looks forward to working with the HSCRC on his important
initiative. Please contact Shannon McMahon, Deputy Secretary of Health Care Financing at
410-767-5807 should you have any questions.

Sincerely,

‘—_\-

an T. Mitchell
Secretary



Chet Burrell
President and Chief Executive Officer

2T ‘e
CareFirst BlueCross BlueShield (:a F Sl
1501 S. Clinton Street, 17" Floor re .l.r ot o o .

Baltimore, MD 21224-5744
Tel: 410-605-2558

Fax: 410-781-7606
chet.burrell@carefirst.com

October 21, 2015

Mr. John Colmers

The Maryland Health Services
Cost Review Commission

4160 Patterson Avenue

Baltimore, MD 21215

Dear Chairman Colmers,

I am writing to provide comments regarding the “Health Employment Program” (HEP) that was
proposed by Johns Hopkins Hospital and other hospitals to the HSCRC on September 9, 2015.

As you know, the proposal would have the HSCRC put $40 million annually in additional funds
into the rates of hospitals principally located in the city of Baltimore to fund approximately 1,000
additional jobs for disadvantaged inner city residents. While we certainly recognize the difficult
economic and social circumstances that are challenging the inner city of Baltimore, we see this
proposal as seriously flawed.

The following four points more specifically constitute our view of the proposal:

First, while the central purpose of the program is to increase employment opportunities for inner
city residents with limited education and job experience, we question how the hospitals will use
such individuals to provide needed capabilities. If the hospitals seek to hire more skilled and
educated persons, this misses the target population most in need. Further, if the jobs to be
created are really needed and are not simply “make work” jobs to fulfill a jobs program, then we
question why the hospitals would not simply employ these individuals in the normal course of
their operations.

Second, Johns Hopkins and the other hospitals have proposed a program of employment to
which they would contribute no financial support. Instead they would pass the entire bill for the
program along to other employers and individuals in the form of higher hospital rates (and
ultimately health care premiums). With employers and individuals struggling to pay health care
premiums, we think increasing their burden is not justified and we see no basis to believe that the
expenditure of $40 million for the proposed jobs would result in equivalent or greater savings.

In effect, it would be like CareFirst suggesting it wanted to hire 1,000 new employees while
handing the bill for this to Johns Hopkins and other hospitals. What at first seems like a virtuous
attempt to fill a legitimate need becomes distinctly less so when one realizes that the sponsors
intend others to pay for the program while paying nothing themselves.

CareFirst BlueCross BlueShield is an independent licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Asscciation. ® Registered trademark of the
Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association. ®" Registered trademark of CareFirst of Maryland, Inc,



Third, hospitals have been provided an increase of approximately $160M in rates to satisfy
infrastructure changes under the new waiver model. If hospitals are committed to the dual
objectives of improving community based care and raising employment levels in their
communities, we ask why some of this additional funding would not be used for the achievement
of these goals? This is particularly pertinent since all financial savings through lower utilization,
improved community health, etc. will result in greater GBR savings that will accrue solely to the
hospitals.

Fourth, since the advent of the new hospital all payer waiver in Maryland, hospital profit
margins have soared to all time high levels on their regulated businesses. The hospitals suggest
that the $40 million HEP is a small amount for the payers (ultimately employers and individuals)
to bear. If the cost is so modest, why, we ask, could the hospitals not easily bear this small
amount themselves out of the generous margins they are now enjoying? Indeed, we see the HEP
as an activity that is consistent with the hospital’s community benefit responsibilities. What, we
would ask, holds them back - particularly in light of the large reductions in hospital charity care
in recent years caused by ACA enrollment?

In sum, we believe that the proposed goal is laudable and that the funds for its achievement are
available based on actions the HSCRC already has taken for the hospitals.

A proper judgment of this proposal turns not on the details of how it might be administered but
rather, on the fact that its laudable purpose should be carried out in a fundamentally different
way. Funding additional jobs by raising hospital rates is an unsound policy that has no obvious
limits: if hospital rates can be raised to create jobs, why couldn’t they be raised to fund myriad
other social projects of greater or lesser merits?

The HSCRC’s statutory role is to approve hospital rates that are consistent with the efficient and
effective provision of hospital services. It is not the HSCRC’s function to serve as the arbiter of
resource expenditures in activities across a broad range of social purposes.

Pre$ident & CEO

ce Herbert Wong, PhD Vice Chairman
Stephen F. Jencks, MD
George H. Bone, MD
Jack C. Keane
Bernadette Loftus, MD
Thomas R. Mullen
Donna Kinzer, Executive Director
Van Mitchell, State of Maryland DHMH

CareFirst BlueCross BiueShield is an independent licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association. ® Registered trademark of the
Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association. @ Registered trademark of CareFirst of Maryland, Inc.



BUJLD

COMMITIED 10 CHANGE

October 14, 2015

Dr. Bernadette Loftus

Health Services Cost Review Commission
4160 Patterson Ave.

Baltimore, MD 21215

Dear Dr. Loftus:

As Maryland's largest citizens' power organization representing more than 40 faith, school, and community
institutions and over 20,000 members, Baltimoreans United in Leadership Development (BUILD) is asking for
your support of the Healthcare Workers Opportunity Initiative. We believe this is a critical time in our city’s
history. We must act boldly to address the many issues of Baltimore city. This initiative is a major step in the
right direction. It will create the opportunity to employ over 1,000 families in our city plus introduce families to
more informative and engaged healthcare options and outcomes. We have listened to over 5,000 people across
our city and overwhelmingly they have told us jobs is the most important issue facing their families.

BUILD has a 38 year track record of organizing to better Baltimore by winning the first living wage ordinance
in the country, developing over 1200 affordable homes, and founding College Bound and the Child First
Authority. Most recently, BUILD created Turn Around Tuesday to address the culture of violence in our City.
Turn Around Tuesday is a jobs movement to help put Baltimore back to work by creating a jobs pipeline with
hospitals, universities, and construction firms to hire returning citizens and residents living in distressed
neighborhoods. Already, 74 men and women who had little to no opportunity for work have secured
employment with an 89% six month retention rate. The unrest in Baltimore continues to galvanize us to create
further opportunities with Baltimoreans.

BUILD is encouraged that area hospitals want to make a commitment to provide hiring opportunities, with
training, and upward mobility within the health care field for area residents. Their proposal for a .25% rate
increase to fund the hiring of 1,000 residents is promising. BUILD supports this proposal and asks you to join
with us and stand for families all across our city.

Please contact BUILD Organizer, Terrell Williams, at 202-427-6876 or via email at novellaell(@msn.com to
schedule a meeting to discuss this important matter. We thank you in advance. BUILD looks forward to the
opportunity to work with you to build a better Baltimore.

Sincerely,
'] — 7
| Lr S A [
Rev. Glenna Huber Rev. Andrew Foster Connors
BUILD Co Chair BUILD Co Chair

Baltimoreans United in Leadership Development 2439 Maryland Ave., 1*Floor, Baltimore MD 21218 | 410-528-0305 |



PRESIDENT
George Gresham

SECRETARY TREASURER
Maria Castaneda

EXECUTIVE VICE-PRESIDENTS
Norma Amsterdam
Yvonne Armstrong
Lisa Brown
Angela Doyle
George Kennedy
Steve Kramer
Joyce Neil
John Reid
Bruce Richard
Mike Rifkin
Monica Russo
Rona Shapiro
Neva Shillingford
Milly Silva
Veronica Turner
Laurie Vallone
Estela Vazquez

VICE-PRESIDENTS AT LARGE
Mark Bergen
Gerard Cadet
Rickey Elliott
Dale Ewart
Tim Foley
Pear| Granat
Vanessa Johnson
Pat Lippold
Barbara Rosenthal
Helen Schau
Allan Sherman
Minerva Solla
Katherine Taylor
Calia Weislo

VICE-PRESIDENTS
Jacqueline Alleyne
Shaywaal Amin
Rannie Babb
Carolyn Brooks
Sally Cabral
Donald Crosswell
Robert Davis Gibson
Jude Derisme
Armeta Dixon
Enid Eckstein
Camille Edwards
lerry Fishbein
Vlagimir Fortunny
lennifer Foster-Epps
Roy Garcia
Frances Gentle
Ericka Gomez
Derek Grate, Sr,
Rebecca Gutman
Ruth Heller
Kwal Kin (David) Ho
Todd Habler
Antonio Howell
Herbert Jean-Baptiste
Brian loseph
Keith Joseph
Maria Kercado
Tyrek Lee
Rosa Lomuscio
Winslow Luna
Coraminita Mahr
Dalton Mayfield
Rhina Molina
Rabert Moore*
Aida Morales
Isaac Norter
Vasper Phillips
Bruce Popper
Lawrence FA Parter
Rhadames Rivera
Victor Rivera
Rene R. Ruiz
Clauvice 5t, Hilaire
James Scordato
lahn Seales
Berta Silva
Patricia Smith
Greg Speller
Clare Thompsan
Oscar Torres Fernandez
Kathy Tucker
Antoinette Turner
Ana Vazquez
Julio Vives
Lisa Wallace
Margaret West-Allen
Daine Williams
Cynthia Wolff
Gladys Wrenick

GENERAL COUNSEL
Daniel J. Ratner

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER &
DIRECTOR OF ADMINISTRATION
Michael Cooperman

=Acting

1199SEIU

United Healthcare Workers East
November 11, 2015

John M. Colmers

Chairman, Health Services Cost Review Commission
4160 Patterson Avenue

Baltimore, MD 21215

Dear Chairman Colmers:

1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East represents 9,000 healthcare workers
throughout Maryland and the District of Columbia, many of whom live and work
in Baltimore City. 1199SEIU represents workers at almost every stage of the
health care delivery process, both in long term care facilities and hospitals.
1199SEIU also jointly operates a labor-management fund that provides
educational and job training programs to eligible members. It is with this
expertise that we urge the Health Services Cost Review Commission
(HSCRC) to consider our concerns and suggestions towards improving the
proposed Health Job Opportunity Program currently under review - in the
short term through this letter and in the future as a member of the potential
program review panel and/or workgroup.

Through their consideration of the proposal, the HSCRC acknowledged the role
that the hospital industry plays in the economic well-being of Baltimore and its
residents. The themes in the hospital’s proposal are ones which our union has
worked to highlight for many years. Our most recent and public evidence of this
was our 2014 campaign to improve the economic security of workers at Johns
Hopkins Hospital through wage increases designed to pull workers out of poverty.
We have long advocated for improved wages and benefits for the workers at all
levels of the healthcare workforce. Entry-level healthcare jobs MUST provide a
meaningful pathway for workers to the middle class.

As mentioned above, our union also developed infrastructure and expertise in the
details of workforce development. The 1199SEIU Training and Upgrading Fund
(TUF) of the Maryland/DC region provides a safe and confidential space for
union members to meet their educational goals. The Fund offers career and
educational counseling services, coaching/case management, skill assessment,
continuing education, tuition benefits and development of individual career and
educational plans to thousands of 1199 members throughout the state.

We urge the HSCRC to consider that the systemic poverty which hospitals seek to
address will not be solved by merely creating new jobs. The proposal as currently
written suggests that the HSCRC establish a program review panel to determine
which hospital applications should be funded. Should the HSCRC move forward
with this proposal, we urge the Commission to include stakeholders who can offer
guidance and expertise on the challenges faced by entry-level workers (such as
our union’s Training and Upgrading Fund) onto such a program review panel.

NEW YORK CITY
PRINCIPAL
HEADQUARTERS
310 West 43rd 5t
Hew York, NY 10036
(212) 582-1890
Www.1199seiu.0rg

Tel. (518) 396-2300
Fax (518) 438-1140

ALBANY BALTIMORE, MARYLAND MASSACHUSETTS BUFFALD FLORIDA GOUVERNEUR
155 Washington Ave. 611 North Eutaw Street 150 Mt Vernan Street, 3rd Fl, 2421 Main Street, Suite 100 14645 NW 77 Avenue, Ste. #201 95 E Main Street
Albany, NY 12210 Baltimore, MD 21201 Dorchaster, MA 02125 Buffalo, NY 14214 Miami Lakes, FL 33014 Gouvernaur, NY, 13642

Tel. (716) 982-0540
Fax {716) 876-0930

Tel. (305) 623-3000
Fax (305) 826-1604

SYRACUSE WHITE PLAINS
250 South Clinton, Suite 200 99 Church 5t.
Syracuse, NY 13202 White Flains, NY 10601
Tel. (315) 424-1743 Tel. (914) 993-6700
Fax (315) 479-6716 Fax (914) 993-6714

Tel. (315) 287-9013

Tel. (410) 332-1199
Fax (315) 287-7226

Fax (410) 332-1895

Tel. (617) 284-1199
Fax (617) 4747150

HICKSVILLE
100 Duffy Ave., Suite 3 West
Hicksville, NY 11801
Tel. (516) 542-1115
Fax (516) 542-0919

MEW JERSEY
555 Route 1 South, 3rd FI.
Iselin, NJ 08830
Tel. (732) 287-8113
Fax (732) 2B7-8117

ROCHESTER
259 Monroe Ava., Suite 220
Rochester, NY 14607
Tel. (585) 244-0830
Fax (585) 244-0956



We also want to note that while hospitals have long been Baltimore City’s largest
employers, they are not traditionally viewed as experts in workforce development
for the people who are being targeted in this proposed program. This program as
designed requires hospitals to engage in a process that they have never been asked
to engage in before. While some of the City’s hospitals have embarked on
relationships with community workforce organizations that assist individual
employees in their career development goals, the sheer scale of what is being
proposed requires hospitals to confront the challenges of workforce development
in ways they have never had to in the past.

The Nurse Support I Program and the Nurse Support II Program (NSP Programs)
have been cited as precedent for a collaborative response to this state’s workforce
crisis. While the NSP Programs have increased the number of nurses in Maryland,
the workforce development strategies designed to address adults with limited
education and income, or who live in high-poverty neighborhoods, are quite new
to hospitals as employers.

We believe that hospitals must be able to provide specific details about what their
outreach and retention strategies from low-income/high-unemployment zip codes
would look like. And with the challenges of systemic poverty in mind, we
propose to the HSCRC that in such a program, hospitals should detail the
following:

* Assessment tools used by hospitals to identify candidates who will
succeed. For example, how will the net be cast in poverty stricken
communities to identify eligible workers? What will be the pre-requisite
skills needed for workers to apply for these jobs? What assessment tools
will be used to verify that the workers who are placed in these
opportunities will succeed?

e Methods that will be used to train new entrants for the workforce. For
example, will workers be trained cohort-style? Will they be grouped with
incumbent workers? Details on how these workers will be trained will not
only hold hospitals accountable, but also be useful for future evaluation of
whether a specific hospital could retain workers, and why they were able
to do so.

® Details about the case management and support systems that will be in
place for workers to help them succeed. We have long heard from low-
wage hospital workers on the difficulties they face utilizing education
programs that exist in their institutions.

If the HSCRC were to move forward with this initiative, increased transparency

would be critical to its success. For example, we believe that the HSCRC should
collect demographic information about the participants in this program so that its
strengths and weaknesses can be assessed in the future. Requiring submission of
information such as the age range, education, prior experience and credentials of

1799SEIU

United Healthcare Workers East

wlENY,



workers who enter into hospital employment - and are retained —would also help
stakeholders evaluate the program, adjust its goals and - ideally - replicate its
success.

Should the HSCRC determine that further review and/or development of the
proposal is required, we believe that our Training and Upgrading Fund could
provide additional insight into the components required to initiate true workforce
development that leads individuals towards economic stability and improves the
health of our communities.

Sincerely,

“\ gf uJJC" - u,u__‘.ﬁ ~

Brock-Cancellieri
enior Policy Analyst
1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East

1799SEIU

United Healthcare Waorkers East

LSV



%

The
League
of

Life and
Health
Insurers
of
Maryland

200 Duke of Gloucester Street
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
410-269-1554

November 13, 2015

John M. Colmers,

Chair

Health Services Cost Review Commission
4160 Patterson Avenue

Baltimore, Maryland 21215

Re: Hospital Job Opportunity Proposal
Dear Mr. Colmers:

The League of Life and Health Insurers of Maryland, Inc. (the League) is the trade association
representing carriers who write life and health insurance in Maryland. Through our various
membership categories, we work with every carrier writing major medical health insurance in this
State. The League has had an opportunity to review the Health Employment Program proposal
put forward by the Maryland Hospital Association and under consideration by the HSCRC. While
we appreciate the effort to identify creative ways to address the daunting issue of poverty and
unemployment in Baltimore and other areas of the State, especially as it relates to disadvantaged
youth, for the reasons articulated below, we must oppose this program and urge the Commission
to decline the request to support it through an increase in hospital rates.

Hospitals Have the Ability to Pay for the Program out of Existing Revenue Budgets

Two years into the implementation of the new waiver, hospitals are making record profits on
regulated business — 5.86% for FY2015, up from 4.28% in FY2014. In fact, there are only five
hospitals in the state that failed to realize a profit during that time period. In addition and more
significantly, the HSCRC has already made infrastructure adjustments to the hospitals’ rates
totaling almost $200 million. These are not one-time adjustments; rather, they have been built
permanently into hospital global budgets. That means unless the Commission takes action,
hospitals will receive this money year after year. As a result, a portion of these funds could - and
should- adequately fund this proposed program without the need for an additional increase.

Cost of E mployment Programs for Hospital Wor kers S hould Not be Born by C onsumers
and Businesses

Every additional increase to hospital rates has a direct impact on premiums paid by individuals,
and employers - small and large, insured and self funded - in the State of Maryland. This
proposal comes at a time of increased concern for rising insurance premiums, stringent Medical
Loss Ratio requirements which must be met by carriers and a need to see a reduction of overall
healthcare costs. At a time when all stakeholders in the health care community are working to



identify ways to reduce costs to the system, this program achieves the opposite effect, adding yet
another layer of expense to premiums that have already experienced significant increases on
average over the past several years.

Using the Rate Setting System to Cover the Costs of an Emplovment Program Goes Beyond
the Purposes of the Rate-Setting System

While there have been instances in the past where “employment” programs have been funded
through hospital rates, those initiatives were on a much smaller scale with a purpose that more
closely aligned with health care and the provision of clinical services. For example, the nursing
support programs were created in response to a real, near crisis in the form of a nursing shortage.
In addition, the average cost provided through rates to fund these nurse support programs was far
less than $40 million annually — averaging closer to $10 million on an annual basis. While one
can argue that community health workers may extend the ability of the hospitals to provide care
to the community, the current proposal envisions hiring positions that go well beyond community
health workers, to include general facility support such as janitors and security guards. All
hospital related expenses necessary to satisfy current hospital service area populations are already
currently funded in hospital rates.

The League supports the concept of this initiative which is intended to improve community health
while addressing longstanding economic issues; however, as noted above, we cannot support the
proposed funding arrangements which would increase hospital rates an additional $40 million to
address issues that go beyond the scope of the all-payer system. Funding of jobs necessary to
conduct hospital operations should be covered within the hospitals’ current rate base. Any
additional jobs should have a direct impact on a hospital’s ability to improve population health
and lower utilization of hospital services, all of which will improve hospitals’ global budget
savings.

For these reasons, we strongly urge the Commission to vote against any hospital rate increase to
support this program.

Very truly yours,

Kimberly Y. Robinson, Esq,
Executive Director

Cc: Donna Kinzer, Executive Director, Health Services Cost Review Commission



BARBARA A. MIKULSKI
MARYLAND

Nnited States Denate

WASHINGTON, DC 20510-2003

November 5, 2015

Mr. John M. Colmers

Chairman

The Maryland Health Services Cost Review Commission
4160 Patterson Avenue

Baltimore, MD 21215

Dear Mr. Colmers;

In September, you received a letter from me in support of an exciting and innovative new proposal from
Maryland’s hospitals, called the “Health Job Opportunity Program.” This proposal, submitted to the Health
Services Cost Review Commission (HSCRC), would create a hospital-led employment program to hire 1,000
additional people from Maryland communities with high rates of poverty and unemployment. [ am so excited
about the promise that this proposal has for our most distressed communities.

We have very real challenges facing Baltimore City that deserve more aggressive, comprehensive, and
innovative solutions. The recent tragic death of Freddie Gray brought to light what many of us already knew to
be true: we must address issues of social inequality in Baltimore City. The lack of stable, entry-level
employment with opportunities for career advancement is a contributing factor to this social inequality.
Unemployment contributes to poverty and poverty contributes to poor health. It is staggering that residents in
Guilford have a life expectancy of nearly 20 years longer than residents of Greenmount East.

This is where the “Health Job Opportunity Program” could help play a pivotal role. As you know,
Maryland’s modernized all-payer waiver encourages hospitals to pursue creative solutions to improve the
overall health and wellness of our communities. Since meaningful and stable employment can contribute to
greater social and economic stability for underserved regions, and since hospitals have a role to play as some of
our state’s largest employers and community anchors, I am excited about what the “Health Job Opportunity
Program” could mean to Baltimore City.

By creating this program — to allow for the expansion of up to 1,000 hospital-employed positions to be
hired from low-income, high-unemployment areas — we could accomplish two important goals. First, by
providing stable entry-level employment with advancement opportunities, we would be improving the overall
socioeconomic determinants of health in distressed communities. And second, by expanding the community
health workforce, we would assist Maryland’s hospitals in providing health care to those in need.

I'would urge the HSCRC to give the “Health Job Opportunity Program” every favorable consideration
and stand ready to help in any way possible to get this proposal implemented on behalf of the people of
Maryland. Thank you and please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions or concerns.

B lin A Dbt

Barbara A. Mikulski
United States Senator




OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT & CEQO

f’ _r‘b @

_&, é‘ \é,,.l November 17, 2015
HEALTH SERVICES

Health Services Cost Review Commission (HSCRC)
University 7 C/0 Donna Kinzer, Executive Director
Affliated : 416(? Patterson Avenue
; Baltimore, Maryland 21215

RE: Response to Preliminary Staff Report on Health Job Opportunity Proposal
Dear Commissioners and Staff:

On behalf of Mercy Medical Center, this letter is to offer comment regarding the Health
Services Cost Review Commission (HSCRC) preliminary staff recommendations on the
Health Job Opportunity Program Proposal. Mercy Medical Center was proud to
participate in the development of the proposal and supports the effort of expanding
1,000 hospital employed positions to be hired from low income, high unemployment
areas for the purpose of: (1) Improving the overall socioeconomic determinants of
health in the community and (2) Expanding the community health workforce to assist
hospitals in improving population health.

As noted in the jobs program proposal, Baltimore and other parts of Maryland are
especially challenged with high poverty rates which correlate to significant health
disparities and poor health with higher costs to the health care system. The proposal
represents a relatively small, targeted, and appropriate front-end investment to address
the issue in a way that meets the triple aim of better care, better health, and lower
costs. The proposal is aligned with Maryland’s All-Payer model and should be viewed as
complementary to other ongoing efforts in the state to improve public health and
reduce health disparities while also recognizing that more work and investment is
clearly needed.

Further, as large employers with existing, effective workforce development programs
designed for entry-level and lower-skill workers, health systems are uniquely-positioned
to expand career development opportunities through increased access to education,
mentorship, and general skills-building. For example, at Mercy Medical Center we offer
a host of programs specifically for this purpose including; tuition assistance, continuing
education, computer training, GED preparation, literacy, and a comprehensive “Career
Ladder” program that assists individuals in earning promotions and higher wages. The
jobs program proposal would allow institutions like Mercy to expand these workforce
development opportunities to more individuals in targeted communities while also
supporting population health efforts.

Regarding the staff recommended options which seek to earmark dollars away from the
Transformation Implementation Grants, Mercy agrees with our hospital partners who
believe this approach would be disruptive to significant planning efforts already
underway to respond to the Transformation Plan and RFP requirements.

345 ST. PAUL PLACE @ BALTIMORE, MD 21202-2123 @ (410) 332-9202 Fax (410) 962-1303
TTY (410) 332-9888




In conclusion, printed on the doors of our hospital is a welcome from the Sisters of
Mercy and a declaration of a core belief to serve “all people of every creed, color,
economic and social condition.” We have carried on that principle for over 140 years in
downtown Baltimore, especially during times of great challenge. With the April unrest,
Baltimore has experienced a devastating manifestation of poverty, lack of access to jobs
and upward mobility. We support jobs proposal to address the challenge while
improving the health of our communities. Thank you for the opportunity to comment.

Sincerely,

O s QO



’ Health Services Cost
Review Commission




Reviewed Guiding Principles For Performance-Based
Payment Programs

Program must improve care for all patients, regardless of payer

Program incentives should support achievement of all payer model
targets

Program should prioritize high volume, high cost, opportunity for
improvement and areas of national focus

Predetermined performance targets and financial impact
Hospital ability to track progress
Encourage cooperation and sharing of best practices

Consider all settings of care

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ HSCRC

’ 2 Health Services Cost
Review Commission




RY2018 Readmission Reduction Incentive Program
Update Considerations

» Measure updates (e.g., planned admissions definitions, transfer logic)
Medicare versus all payer rates
Consideration of nhon-Maryland peer group rates
Improvement target

>

>

4

» Payment adjustment structure and amounts

» Adjustments/protections based on socio-economic and other factors
4

Draft recommendation in January 2016 and Final in February 2016

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ HSCRC

’ 3 Health Services Cost
Review Commission




RY2018 MHAC Update Considerations

» Analysis of statistical validity and reliability and small hospital, small cell size
issues

» Evaluation of PPC tier groups

» Setting the statewide target

» Maximum at risk determination
» Monitoring of ICD-10 Impact

» Draft recommendation in December 2015 and final in January 2016

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ HSCRC

’ 4 Health Services Cost
Review Commission




Potentially Avoidable Utilization Measure

» Expanding the definition to other areas (9 Months)
» Nursing home admissions
» High risk patient utilization
» Sepsis admissions
» Avoidable Emergency Department Visits

» Risk adjusted measure of PAUs (18 months)

’ 5 Health Services Cost
Review Commission




Efficiency Measure Considerations

»Measurement of Total Cost of Care (need all payer claims)

»Risk Adjustment
»Demographics (Age, Sex, Social/economic factors)

»Risk Adjustment Methodology
»Denominator

»Virtual Patient Service Area
»Out of State Utilization Adjustment

»Benchmarks

»Timelines
» Per Case measure revisions (next 3 months)
» Per Capita Hospital Cost (next 9 months)
» Per Capita Total Cost (next 18 months)

HSCRC

’ 6 Health Services Cost
Review Commission




Key Strategic Considerations

»Prioritization
»Leverage IT tools and measures
»Use existing data and measures if possible

»Care coordination
»Measures must be developed/adopted
»Consider measures that are important to patients (functional status, quality of life)

» Condition-specific bundles
» Target high cost, common procedures
»Cut across measurement domains and settings of care

»Consider “value”

’ 7 Health Services Cost
Review Commission




Disclosure of Hospital Financial and
Statistical Data: Fiscal Year 2014

Heath Services Cost Review Commission
4160 Patterson Avenue
Baltimore, Maryland 21215
(410) 764-2605

November 2015



Executive Summary

The Maryland Health Services Cost Review Commission (HSCRC) has completed the
annual hospital financial disclosure report for fiscal year (FY) 2014.

FY 2014 was ayear of significant change for Maryland’ s hospital industry. Under the
terms of along-standing agreement with the federal government, Maryland sought to constrain
the growth in the charge per case for Medicare inpatient hospital stays. Effective January 1,

2014, the State entered into a new agreement with the federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services (CMS). Under the new All-Payer Model, the State' s focus shifted from controlling the
charge per case for Medicare inpatient hospital stays to controlling per capita hospital revenue
growth (combined inpatient and outpatient hospital costs) for al payers. The new Model will
assess whether Maryland’ s all-payer system for hospital paymentsis a successful model for
achieving the three-part aim of:

e Lower costs
e Better patient experience
e |mproved health

Since FY 2014 straddles the January 2014 implementation date for the new waiver, this
report focuses on performance on the new Model’ s financial and quality metrics, aswell as
traditional measures of hospital financial health.

This new report shows that for Maryland acute hospitalsin FY 2014:

1) Gross all-payer per capita hospital revenues from services provided to Maryland
residents grew 1.60 percent, slower than the per capita growth in the Maryland
economy of about 2 percent in FY 2014.

2) Medicare fee-for-service hospital charges per Maryland Medicare beneficiary
dropped 0.86 percent. Under the new waiver agreement with the federal
government, Maryland must generate savings for Medicare by holding the growth

in Medicare fee-for-service hospital payments below the national growth rate

2



3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

during the five-year period of the waiver (calendar year [CY] 2014 through CY
2018). National dataare not available for FY 2014, but CY 2014 data indicate that
Maryland costs grew about two percentage points slower than the nation.

Profits on regulated activitiesincreased in FY 2014, from $677 million (or 5.3
percent of regulated net operating revenue) in FY 2013 to $950 million (or 7.4
percent of regulated net operating revenue).

Profits on operations (which include profits and losses from regulated and
unregulated day-to-day activities) increased from $164 million (or 1.2 percent of
total net operating revenue) in FY 2013 to $424 million in FY 2014 (or 3.0
percent of total net operating revenue).

Total excess profits (which include profits and losses from regulated and
unregulated operating and non-operating activities) increased substantially from
$549 million in FY 2013 (or 3.8 percent of the total revenue) to $901 millionin
FY 2014 (or 6.1 percent of the total revenue).

Total regulated net patient revenue rose slightly from $12.5 billion in FY 2013 to
$12.7 billion in FY 2014, an increase of 1.8 percent. If two hospitals that reported
only 6 months of datain FY 2014 due to the conversion from a December 31
fiscal year end to a June 30 fiscal year end are removed from the calculation, then
regulated net patient revenue grew from $12.2 billion in FY 2013 to $12.5 hillion
in FY 2014, an increase of 3.0 percent.

In 2014, Maryland hospitalsincurred $1.0 billion in uncompensated care,
approximately seven cents of uncompensated care cost for every dollar of gross
patient revenue;.

Gross regulated revenue associated with potentially preventable complications
(PPCs) occurring during a hospital admission declined from $391 millionin FY
2013 to $292 million in FY 2014, a decrease of 25 percent. The gross regul ated
revenues from readmissions fell from $1.306 billion in FY 2013 to $1.285 billion
in FY 2014. This decline in revenue reflects improvement in the quality of care



delivered in Maryland hospitals, where readmissions rates declined faster than the

national levels for Medicare.
The HSCRC, the country’ s pioneer hospital rate review agency, was established by the Maryland
General Assembly in 1971 to regulate rates for all those who purchase hospital care. It isan
independent Commission functioning within the Maryland Department of Health and Mental
Hygiene. It consists of seven members who are appointed by the Governor. The HSCRC' s rate
review authority includes assuring the public that: (a) a hospital's total costs are reasonable; (b) a
hospital's aggregate rates are reasonably related to its aggregate costs; and (c) rates are set

equitably among all purchasers of care without undue discrimination or preference.



Introduction

Effective January 1, 2014, Maryland entered into a new hospital All-Payer Model with
the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). Under the new Model, the State' s focus
shifted from controlling the charge per case for a hospital stay to controlling the per capitatotal
hospital cost growth. The new Model will assess whether Maryland’ s all-payer system for
hospital payments, which is now accountable for the total hospital cost of care on a per capita
basis, is a successful model for achieving the three-part aim of:

e Lower costs
o Better patient experience

e |mproved health

To facilitate these goals, every acute care hospital in Maryland agreed to a global budget.
Global budgets remove the incentives for hospitals to grow volumes and instead focus hospitals
on reducing potentially avoidable utilization (PAU), improving population health, and improving
outcomes for patients. Maryland’ s performance under the waiver is measured by:

e Thegrowth in gross per capita all-payer hospital revenues since calendar year (CY) 2013.
Maryland has committed to holding the average annual growth rate over the five-year life
of the Model to 3.58 percent.

e Generating savings for Medicare by holding the growth in Maryland Medicare fee-for-
service hospital payments per beneficiary below the national Medicare per beneficiary
fee-for-service growth rate. Maryland has committed to saving Medicare $330 million

over five years by beating the national per capita hospital growth rate.

e Reducing potentially preventable complications (PPCs) by an aggregate of 30 percent
over the five-year life of the Model.

e Reducing Maryland' s Medicare readmission rate to the national average by the final year
of the five-year Model.



Since fiscal year (FY) 2014 straddles the January 2014 implementation date for the new
waiver, this report focuses on performance on the new Model’ s financial and quality metrics, as
well astraditional measures of hospital financial health. FY 2014 also marks atransition year for
two hospitals (University of Maryland Upper Chesapeake and University of Maryland Harford
Memorial) that changed from a December 31 fiscal year end to a June 30 fiscal year end. This
transition results in those hospital s reporting 12 months of data for FY 2013 and 6 months for FY
2014. Unless noted in the text, all summary data referenced in the text include the FY 2013 and
FY 2014 audited data submitted by these two hospitals. Statewide summary data are presented
with and without the two hospitals in the tables on pages 1 and 1a of the data section of this
report.

In contrast to prior disclosure reports, this report includes hospital level data on revenues
associated with readmissions and other forms of potentially avoidable utilization (PAU).
Readmission and PAU charges provides afinancial indicator of opportunity for improvementsin
selected areas if we successfully transform health care for the benefit of the consumers.
Reducing charges for PAU and readmissions will also free hospital resources for additional

investments in health care transformation.

Despite implementing the new waiver agreement halfway into FY 2014, Maryland’s

performance on many of the new waiver metrics was favorable:

e All-payer per capita hospital revenues grew 1.60 percent, which is below both the per
capita growth of the Maryland economy in both CY 2013 and CY 2014 and well below

the 3.58 percent annual growth gap contained in the waiver agreement.

e Medicare fee-for-service hospital charges per Maryland Medicare beneficiary dropped
0.86 percent. National data are not available for FY 2014, but CY 2014 dataindicate that
Maryland costs grew about two percentage points slower than the nation.

e Grossregulated revenue associated with PPCs occurring during a hospital admission
declined from $391 million in FY 2013 to $292 million in FY 2014, a decrease of 25

percent. This decline reflects improvement in the quality of care delivered in Maryland

6



hospitals. Gross regul ated revenues from readmissions also dropped, falling from $1.306
billionin FY 2013 to $1.285 hillionin FY 2014.

Spending on PAU also dropped, falling from $2.253 billion in FY 2013 to $2.184 hillion

in FY 2014, a decrease of 3 percent.

Data on the collective financial performance of Maryland hospitals are summarized below.

Gross regulated revenue growth. Gross patient revenue on regul ated services increased
1.7 percent from $15.3 billion in FY 2013 to $15.5 billionin FY 2014.

Net regulated patient revenue. Total regulated net patient revenue rose slightly from
$12.5billionin FY 2013 to $12.7 billion in FY 2014, an increase of 1.8 percent.

Profits on regulated activities. Profits on regulated activities increased in FY 2014, from
$677 million (5.3 percent of regulated net operating revenue) in FY 2013 to $950 million

(7.4 percent of regulated net operating revenue).

Profits on operations. Profits on operations (which include profits and losses from
regulated and unregulated day-to-day activities) increased from $164 million (or 1.2
percent of total net operating revenue) in FY 2013 to $424 million in FY 2014 (or 3.0
percent of total net operating revenue).

Total excess profit. Total excess profits (which include profits and losses from regulated

and unregulated operating and non-operating activities) increased substantially from $549
million in FY 2013 (or 3.8 percent of the total revenue) to $901 million in FY 2014 (or

6.1 percent of the total revenue).

In Maryland alone, uncompensated care is financed by all payers, including Medicare and

Medicaid, as the payment system builds the predicted cost of uncompensated care into the rates,

and all payers pay the same rates for hospital care. Because the rates cover predicted

uncompensated care amounts, hospitals have no reason to discourage patients who are likely to

be without insurance. Thus, Maryland continues to be the only State in the nation that assuresits

citizens that they can receive care at any hospital, regardless of their ability to pay. Asaresult,

7



there are no charity hospitals in Maryland; patients who are unable to pay are not transferred into
hospitals of last resort. Because the actual uncompensated care is not reimbursed by the system,
hospital s have incentives to pursue compensation from patients who generate uncompensated
care expenses.

Additionally, the mark-up in Maryland hospitals—the difference between hospital costs and
what hospitals ultimately charge patients—remained the lowest in the nation. The average mark
up for hospitals nationally is more than 4.5 times that of Maryland Hospitals, according to the
most recent data from the American Hospital Association (AHA). In the absence of rate setting,
non-Maryland hospitals must artificially mark up their chargesin order to cover shortfalls due to
uncompensated care, discounts to large health plans and low payments from Medicare and
Medicaid.

Contents of Report

Under its mandate to publicly disclose information about the financial operations of all
hospitals, the Maryland Health Services Cost Review Commission (HSCRC) has prepared

comparative financial information from the respective hospitals.

Gross Patient Revenue, Net Patient Revenue, Other Operating Revenue, Net Operating
Revenue, Percentage of Uncollectible Accounts, Total Operating Costs, Operating Profit/L 0ss,
Non-Operating Revenue and Expense, and Excess Profit/Loss, as itemized in this report, were
derived from the Annual Report of Revenue, Expenses, and Volumes (Annual Report) submitted
to the HSCRC. The Annual Report is reconciled with the audited financial statements of the
respective institutions.

Thisyear’ s Disclosure Statement al so includes the following three Exhibits:

e Exhibit I - Change in Uncompensated Care (Regulated Operations)

e Exhibit Il - Changein Total Operating Profit/Loss (Regulated and Unregul ated
Operations)

e Exhibit 11l — Total Excess Profit/Loss (Operating and Non-Operating Activities)



The following explanations are submitted in order to facilitate the reader’ s understanding of this

report:

Gross Patient Revenue refers to al regulated and unregul ated patient care revenue and

should be accounted for at established rates, regardless of whether the hospital expectsto collect
the full amount. Such revenues should also be reported on an accrual basis in the period during
which the serviceis provided; other accounting methods, such as the discharge method, are not
acceptable. For historical consistency, uncollectible accounts (bad debts) and charity care are

included in gross patient revenue.

Net Patient Revenue means all regulated and unregulated patient care revenue realized by

the hospital. Net patient revenueis arrived at by reducing gross patient revenue by contractual
allowances, charity care, bad debts, and payer denials. Such revenues should be reported on an

accrua basisin the period in which the serviceis provided.

Other Operating Revenue includes regulated and unregul ated revenue associated with

normal day-to-day operations from services other than health care provided to patients. These
include sales and services to non-patients and revenue from miscellaneous sources, such as rental
of hospital space, sale of cafeteriameals, gift shop sales, research, and Part B physician services.
Such revenue is common in the regular operations of a hospital but should be accounted for

separately from regulated patient revenue.

Net Operating Revenue is the total of net patient revenue and other operating revenue.

Uncompensated Care is composed of charity and bad debts. Thisis the percentage

difference between billings at established rates and the amount collected from charity patients
and patients who pay less than their total bill, if at al. For historical consistency, uncollectible

accounts are treated as a reduction in revenue.

Total Operating Expenses equal the costs of HSCRC regulated and unregulated inpatient

and outpatient care, plus costs associated with Other Operating Revenue. Operating expenses are

presented in this report in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles with the



exception of bad debts. For historical consistency, bad debts are treated as a reduction in gross

patient revenue.

Operating Profit/L ossis the profit or loss from ordinary, normal recurring regulated and

unregulated operations of the entity during the period. Operating Profit/Loss also includes
restricted donations for specific operating purposes if such funds were expended for the purpose

intended by the donor during the fiscal year being reported upon.

Non-Operating Profit/L oss includes investment income, extraordinary gains, and other

non-operating gains and | osses.

Excess Profit/L oss represents the bottom line figure from the Audited Financial

Statement of the institution. It is the total of the Operating Profit/Loss and Non-Operating
Profit/Loss. (Provisions for income tax are excluded from the calculation of profit or loss for

proprietary hospitals.)

Potentially Avoidable Utilization (PAU) isthe general classification of hospital care that

is unplanned and can be prevented through improved care, care coordination, effective
community based care, or care cost increases that result from a PPC occurring in a hospital. The
HSCRC intends to continue to refine the measurement of PAU. Currently, the following
measures are included as PAU cost measures:

e 30-day, all-cause, all-hospital inpatient readmissions, excluding planned
readmissions, based on similar specifications for Maryland Readmission Reduction
Incentive Program but applied to all inpatient discharges and observation stays
greater than 23 hours.

e Prevention quality indicators (PQI) as defined by the Agency for Healthcare Research
and Quality (AHRQ) applied to al inpatient discharges and observation stays greater
than 23 hours. The PQIs included are the 12 acute and chronic PQIsincluded in the
PQI-90 Composite measure and PQI 02 (Perforated Appendix). It does not include
PQI 09 (low birth weight).

10



e 65 PPCs calculated under the Maryland Hospital Acquired Conditions Program and
estimated average cost of PPCs.

Readmissions refer to the methodology for the readmission incentive program that
measures performance using the 30-day all-payer all-hospital (both intra- and inter-hospital)
readmission rate with adjustments for patient severity (based on discharge APR-DRG Severity of
[lIness) and planned admissions.

Potentially Preventable Complications (PPCs) consist of alist of 65 measures devel oped

by 3M. PPCs are defined as harmful events (e.g., an accidental laceration during a procedure) or
negative outcomes (e.g., hospital-acquired pneumonia) that may result from the process of care
and treatment rather than from a natural progression of underlying disease. The conditions are
excluded if present on admission (POA) indicators show that the patient arrived at the hospital
with the condition. Hospital payment is linked to hospital performance by comparing the
observed number of PPCs to the expected number of PPCs.

Financial information contained in this report provides only an overview of the total
financial status of the institutions. Additional information concerning the hospitals, in the form
of Audited Financial Statements and reports filed pursuant to the regulations of the HSCRC, is
available at the HSCRC' s offices for public inspection between the hours of 8:30 am. and 4:30
p.m. and in PDF under Financial Data Reports/Financial Disclosure on the HSCRC website at
http://www.hscrc.state.md.us.

Notes to the Financial and Statistical Data

1 Admissionsinclude infants transferred to Neo-Natal Intensive Care units in the hospital

in which they were born.

2. Revenues and expenses applicable to physician Part B professional services are only
included in regulated hospital datain hospitals that had HSCRC-approved physician rates
on June 30, 1985, and that have not subsequently requested that those rates be abolished

so that the physicians may bill fee-for-service.

11



The Specialty Hospitals in this report are: Adventist Behavioral Health Care-Rockville,
Adventist Rehabilitation Hospital of Maryland, Brook Lane Health Services, Adventist
Behavioral Health-Eastern Shore, Levindale Hospital, Mt. Washington Pediatric

Hospital, Sheppard Pratt Hospital, St. Luke Institute, and University Specialty Hospital.

In accordance with Health-General Article, Section 19-3A-07, three free-standing
medical facilities—Queen Anne's Freestanding Medical Center, Germantown Emergency
Center, and Bowie Health Center—fall under the rate-setting jurisdiction of the HSCRC.
The HSCRC setsrates for al payers for emergency services provided at Queen Anne's
Freestanding Medical Center effective October 1, 2010, and at Germantown Emergency
Center and Bowie Health Center effective July 1, 2011.

University Specialty Hospital ceased operations effective August 1, 2012.

St. Luke Institute’ s license was changed from a specialty hospital to aresidential
treatment center and is no longer under the jurisdiction of the HSCRC.

Effective July 1, 2013, data associated with the University of Maryland Cancer Center
was combined with that of the University of Maryland Medical Center.

Effective January 1, 2014, Levindale Hospital was designated by CM S as an acute care
hospital, rather than a specialty hospital .

12



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COWM SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014

Page 1

Al'l Acute Hospitals

FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG

Gross Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Services
Unr egul at ed Services
TOTAL

Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces
Unr egul at ed Services
TOTAL

Ot her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces
Unr egul at ed Services
TOTAL

Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces
Unr egul at ed Services
Tot al

Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Servi ces
Tot al

Net Operating Profit (Loss):

Regul at ed Servi ces
Unr egul at ed Services
Tot al

Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):

Non- Oper ati ng Revenue
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses

Total Excess Profit (Loss):

Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions:

June 2014t

15, 518, 095, 671
1,768, 896, 735
17, 286, 992, 406

12,728, 114, 584
800, 936, 290
13, 529, 050, 874

194, 058, 722
470, 074, 651
664, 133, 374

12,922,173, 306
1,271, 010, 942
14,193, 184, 248

11,971, 929, 258
13, 768, 978, 002

950, 244, 066
-526, 037, 747
424, 206, 319
476,672, 214
494,572,512
17,900, 298

900, 878, 596

580, 552

Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits:

Readmi ssi on Char ges:

Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent:

Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate:

Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs:

4,946, 138

1, 305, 914, 959
13.74%

292, 048, 845
1.03

2,183, 817, 837

June 2013

15, 264, 777, 897
1, 711, 246, 172
16, 976, 024, 068

12, 507, 457, 797
784,503, 042
13, 291, 960, 839

214, 234, 890
447,891, 664
662, 126, 554

12,721, 692, 687
1,232, 394, 706
13, 954, 087, 393

12, 044, 797, 691
13, 790, 417, 381

676, 894, 996
- 513, 224, 985
163, 670, 011

379, 251, 306
393, 729, 556
14, 478, 250

549, 062, 753

616, 184
4,832, 757

1, 284, 930, 707
13. 52%

391, 921, 691
1.36

2, 253, 490, 330

June 2012

14,871, 078, 832
1, 633, 601, 230
16, 504, 680, 062

12, 275, 982, 668
791, 489, 147
13, 067, 471, 815

153, 760, 532
401, 398, 299
555, 158, 830

12, 429, 743, 200
1,192, 887, 446
13, 622, 630, 646

11, 649, 000, 119
13, 308, 115, 226

780, 743, 081
- 466, 227, 662
314, 515, 420

- 84,897, 304

81, 100, 427

165, 997, 731

229,618, 116

638, 274
4,898, 998

1 Thetotasfor FY 2014 include 12 months for Levindale (now designated as an acute care hospital by CMS) and six (6) months for UM
Harford Memorial and UM Upper Chesapeake, to accommodate changing from a December 31 fiscal year end to June 30 fiscal year end.

13



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COWM SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014

Page 1la

Al'l Acute Hospitals

FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG

Gross Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Services
Unr egul at ed Servi ces
TOTAL

Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces
Unr egul at ed Services
TOTAL

O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces
Unr egul at ed Services
TOTAL

Net QOperating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces
Unr egul at ed Servi ces
Tot al

Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Servi ces
Tot al

Net Operating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Servi ces
Unr egul at ed Services
Tot al

Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue

Non- Qper ati ng Expenses

Total Excess Profit (Loss):

Total Regul ated I npatient Adm ssions:

Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits:

2The six (6) months from UM Harford Memorial and UM Upper Chesapeake have been removed from the FY 2014 totals for comparison

pUrpOSes.

June 20142

15, 306, 904, 471
1, 768, 718, 935
17,075, 623, 406

12, 544, 666, 384
800, 806, 690
13, 345, 473,074

192, 065, 322
468, 623, 952
660, 689, 275

12, 736, 731, 706
1, 269, 430, 643
14, 006, 162, 349

11, 816, 338, 858
13, 606, 104, 402

920, 392, 866
-520, 334, 847
400, 058, 019

474,569, 414

492, 469, 712

17,900, 298

874,627, 496

572, 261
4,834, 439

June 20133

14,871, 277, 796
1, 710, 888, 872
16, 582, 166, 668

12, 185, 162, 458
784, 320, 742
12, 969, 483, 200

208, 843, 890
444,769, 664
653, 613, 554

12, 394, 006, 348
1, 229, 090, 406
13, 623, 096, 754

11,747,619, 679
13, 481, 889, 082

646, 386, 669
-505, 178, 997
141, 207, 672

367, 789, 306

382, 267, 556

14, 478, 250

515, 138, 414

598, 868
4, 655, 068

June 2012

14,871, 078, 832
1, 633, 601, 230
16, 504, 680, 062

12, 275, 982, 668
791, 489, 147
13,067, 471, 815

153, 760, 532
401, 398, 299
555, 158, 831

12, 429, 743, 200
1,192, 887, 446
13, 622, 630, 646

33, 649, 000, 119
35, 308, 115, 226

780, 743, 081
-466, 227, 662
314, 515, 419

- 84,897, 304

81, 100, 427

165, 997, 731

229, 618, 116

638, 274
4,898, 998

3The twelve (12) months of Harford Memorial and Upper Chesapeake have been removed from the FY 2013 totals for comparison.

14



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COWM SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 2
Anne Arundel Medical Center
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
Gross Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Services 554, 132, 400 541, 867, 800 523, 717, 000
Unr egul at ed Services 6, 868, 600 8,377, 200 11, 747, 200
TOTAL 561, 001, 000 550, 245, 000 535, 464, 200
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 451, 481, 300 444,013, 900 435, 998, 560
Unr egul at ed Services 6, 553, 400 7, 464, 500 8, 958, 100
TOTAL 458, 034, 700 451, 478, 400 444, 956, 660
Ot her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 7,047, 500 8, 188, 700 8,841, 100
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 18, 947, 490 17, 847, 500 16, 847, 655
TOTAL 25,994, 990 26, 036, 200 25, 688, 755
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 458, 528, 800 452, 202, 600 444,839, 660
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 25, 500, 890 25, 312, 000 25, 805, 755
Tot al 484, 029, 690 477,514, 600 470, 645, 415
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Servi ces 433, 202, 797 436, 200, 149 421, 842,523
Tot al 471,917, 600 476, 400, 000 461, 597, 285
Net Operating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Servi ces 25, 326, 003 16, 002, 451 22,997, 137
Unregul ated Services -13, 213,903 - 14, 887, 851 - 13,949, 007
Tot al 12,112,100 1, 114, 600 9, 048, 130
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 27,091, 100 44,226, 600 -41, 045, 021
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 27,091, 100 44,226, 600 -41, 045, 021
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 39, 203, 200 45, 341, 200 -31, 996, 892
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 26, 816 28,142 28,014
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 185, 132 180, 461 172, 099
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 29, 937, 886 32,221, 736
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 12. 80% 12. 68%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 9, 612, 798 10, 811, 675
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.04 1.16
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 58, 578, 209 63, 462, 083

15



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COWM SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 3
Atl antic General Hospital
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
Gross Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Services 102, 693, 200 99, 487, 100 95, 474, 200
Unr egul at ed Services 25,414,008 20, 124, 652 16, 165, 328
TOTAL 128, 107, 208 119, 611, 752 111, 639, 528
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 83, 845, 400 81, 125, 900 77,261, 700
Unr egul at ed Services 13, 780, 408 11, 081, 452 9, 419, 228
TOTAL 97, 625, 808 92, 207, 352 86, 680, 928
Ot her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 1, 310, 947 1,917,695 203, 836
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 1, 213, 122 1, 324, 606 841, 017
TOTAL 2,524,069 3,242,301 1, 044, 853
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 85, 156, 347 83, 043, 595 77,465, 536
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 14, 993, 530 12, 406, 058 10, 260, 245
Tot al 100, 149, 877 95, 449, 653 87,725,781
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Servi ces 76, 554, 862 73, 821, 246 69, 630, 609
Tot al 101, 635, 006 94, 222, 926 87,169, 172
Net Operating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Servi ces 8, 601, 500 9, 222, 349 7,834,927
Unr egul at ed Services -10, 086, 613 -7,995, 621 -7,278, 318
Tot al -1, 485, 113 1, 226, 727 556, 609
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 2,461, 360 1, 499, 225 899, 431
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 2,461, 360 1, 499, 225 899, 431
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 976, 248 2,725,952 1, 456, 040
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 3,342 3,086 3,054
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 57,024 57,507 57,546
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 6, 536, 496 6, 803, 892
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 12. 85% 12. 50%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 1, 168, 922 1, 018, 245
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.03 0.87
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 13, 229, 885 13, 145, 463

16



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 4
Bon Secours Hospital
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG August 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 129, 714, 300 121, 044, 100 130, 651, 800
Unr egul at ed Services 26, 341, 350 27,611,031 29, 355, 513
TOTAL 156, 055, 650 148, 655, 131 160, 007, 313
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 99, 985, 454 95, 981, 563 105, 446, 308
Unregul ated Services 15, 078, 939 14, 547, 696 15, 297, 999
TOTAL 115, 064, 392 110, 529, 259 120, 744, 306
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 1, 585, 024 -187, 258 -311, 199
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 4,245, 338 3,163, 706 3,352, 382
TOTAL 5, 830, 362 2,976, 447 3,041, 184
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 101, 570, 478 95, 794, 305 105, 135, 109
Unr egul at ed Services 19, 324, 277 17,711, 401 18, 650, 381
Tot al 120, 894, 754 113, 505, 706 123, 785, 490
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 85, 614, 206 93, 233, 875 90, 614, 221
Tot al 118, 891, 000 124, 525, 202 122, 564, 724
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 15, 956, 273 2,560, 429 14, 520, 888
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -13,952, 517 -13,579, 925 -13, 300, 123
Tot al 2,003, 755 -11, 019, 496 1, 220, 765
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 1, 565, 750 1, 392, 305 383, 037
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue 1, 565, 750 1, 435, 493 387, 108
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 43,188 4,072
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 3,569, 505 -9,627,191 1, 603, 802
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 4,660 5, 894 6, 579
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 37,681 41, 340 40, 473
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 25, 891, 416 23, 402, 406
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 19. 35% 19. 32%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 1, 457,874 2,774, 845
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 0. 69 1.35
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 36, 187, 844 34, 240, 166

17



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 5
Bowi e Energency Center
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 16, 513, 400 13,677,900 11, 999, 900
Unr egul at ed Services 9, 852, 802 16, 278, 037 18, 286, 174
TOTAL 26, 366, 202 29, 955, 937 30, 286, 074
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 12, 399, 706 9,812, 164 8,676, 283
Unregul ated Services 4,648,934 5, 639, 207 7,121, 389
TOTAL 17, 048, 641 15, 451, 371 15, 797, 672
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 867 7,168 13, 057
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 0 0 0
TOTAL 867 7,168 13, 057
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 12, 400, 574 9, 819, 332 8, 689, 340
Unregul ated Services 4,648,934 5, 639, 207 7,121, 389
Tot al 17, 049, 508 15, 458, 539 15, 810, 729
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Servi ces 10, 457, 177 10, 764, 397 9, 256, 547
Tot al 15, 071, 710 16, 611, 645 16, 353, 968
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 1,943, 397 - 945, 065 -567, 207
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 34,401 -208, 041 23,968
Tot al 1,977,798 -1, 153, 106 -543, 239
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 1,977,798 -1, 153, 106 -543, 239
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 0 0 0
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 35, 566 36, 040 35, 932

18



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COWM SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 6
Cal vert Menorial Hospital
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
Gross Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Services 141, 935, 300 138, 862, 900 135, 740, 500
Unr egul at ed Services 10, 240, 860 9, 162, 932 17, 105, 738
TOTAL 152, 176, 160 148, 025, 832 152, 846, 238
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 117, 478, 592 116, 275, 170 112, 025, 692
Unr egul at ed Services 4,675,516 4,562, 155 13, 276, 082
TOTAL 122, 154, 108 120, 837, 325 125, 301, 775
Ot her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 5,148, 688 4, 305, 853 3,698, 312
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 952, 342 663, 940 1, 480, 473
TOTAL 6, 101, 030 4,969, 793 5,178, 786
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 122, 627, 280 120, 581, 023 115, 724, 005
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 5, 627, 858 5, 226, 095 14, 756, 556
Tot al 128, 255, 139 125, 807, 118 130, 480, 560
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Servi ces 105, 829, 305 106, 039, 515 105, 451, 118
Tot al 119, 797, 306 118, 896, 903 130, 770, 372
Net Operating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Servi ces 16, 797, 976 14,541, 508 10, 272, 886
Unr egul at ed Services -8, 340, 143 -7,631, 293 -10, 562, 698
Tot al 8, 457, 833 6, 910, 215 - 289, 812
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): -1, 655, 105 6, 414 3,063, 317
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 514, 608 504, 618 3, 063, 317
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 2,169, 713 498, 204 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 6, 802, 728 6, 916, 629 2,773,506
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 5, 756 6, 835 7,405
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 65, 430 30, 762 67,610
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 6,912, 639 7,732,586
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 9.27% 10. 37%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 1, 238, 388 2,462, 748
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 0.87 1.33
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 16, 559, 469 18, 957, 422

19



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 7
Carroll County General Hospital
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 251, 985, 400 249, 075, 200 243, 424, 400
Unr egul at ed Services 74,612, 637 77,746, 543 74,684, 611
TOTAL 326, 598, 037 326, 821, 743 318, 109, 011
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 211, 421, 290 208, 787, 942 203, 507, 315
Unregul ated Services 33,726, 861 36, 390, 537 34,947, 553
TOTAL 245, 148, 151 245,178, 479 238, 454, 868
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 4,639, 865 3,551, 806 959, 950
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 961, 456 905, 052 874, 246
TOTAL 5,601, 321 4, 456, 858 1,834,196
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 216, 061, 155 212, 339, 748 204, 467, 265
Unregul ated Services 34, 688, 317 37, 295, 589 35, 821, 799
Tot al 250, 749, 472 249, 635, 337 240, 289, 064
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Servi ces 189, 824, 332 187, 052, 755 182, 701, 684
Tot al 229,948, 414 229, 386, 050 223,442, 869
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 26, 236, 823 25, 286, 993 21, 765, 581
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -5,435, 765 -5,037, 706 -4,919, 386
Tot al 20, 801, 058 20, 249, 287 16, 846, 195
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 6, 354, 928 10, 424, 416 -11, 976, 079
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue 9, 594, 707 11, 480, 669 1, 813, 742
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 3,239,779 1, 056, 253 13, 789, 821
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 27, 155, 986 30,673, 703 4,870, 116
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 11, 220 11, 585 12,276
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 88,578 89, 538 87,911
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 23, 043, 606 22,341,916
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 13. 38% 12. 48%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 5,232,274 5, 035, 941
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.14 1.13
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 42,072, 962 41, 334, 083

20



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 8
Doctors Community Hospital
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 222, 145, 400 216, 854, 500 214, 285, 300
Unr egul at ed Services 21,497,124 15, 472,076 14, 287, 965
TOTAL 243,642,524 232, 326, 576 228,573, 265
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 178, 102, 639 171,977,743 176, 759, 733
Unr egul at ed Services 21,502, 253 15, 430, 295 14, 210, 549
TOTAL 199, 604, 892 187, 408, 037 190, 970, 282
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 2,232,490 5,842, 396 118, 417
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 3,242, 342 3, 333, 007 6, 543, 172
TOTAL 5,474,832 9,175, 403 6, 661, 589
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 180, 335, 129 177, 820, 138 176, 878, 150
Unr egul at ed Services 24,744,595 18, 763, 302 20, 753,721
Tot al 205, 079, 724 196, 583, 440 197, 631, 871
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 170, 083, 752 173, 397, 492 170, 336, 837
Tot al 204, 184, 713 199, 300, 918 197, 169, 715
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Servi ces 10, 251, 378 4,422, 646 6, 541, 312
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -9, 356, 366 -7,140, 124 -6,079, 156
Tot al 895, 012 -2,717, 478 462, 156
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): -243, 211 1, 302, 400 - 156, 352
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue -243, 211 1, 302, 400 440, 832
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 597, 184
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 651, 801 -1,415, 078 305, 804
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 9, 709 10, 857 12, 052
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 68, 199 62, 700 97, 540
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 25, 008, 330 26,574,120
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 12. 98% 12. 96%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 5,122,391 7, 660,078
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.16 1.55
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 46, 457, 473 49, 789, 285

21



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 9
Fort Washi ngton Medical Center
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG Decenber 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 48, 565, 970 46, 156, 625 46, 176, 442
Unr egul at ed Services 404, 675 391, 018 565, 184
TOTAL 48, 970, 645 46, 547, 643 46, 741, 626
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 40, 450, 576 37, 357, 875 37, 540, 675
Unr egul at ed Services 404, 675 391, 018 565, 184
TOTAL 40, 855, 251 37,748, 893 38, 105, 859
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 1, 345,091 1, 717,070 1,761, 701
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 39, 088 41, 245 39,910
TOTAL 1, 384,179 1, 758, 315 1, 801, 611
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 41, 795, 667 39, 074, 945 39, 302, 376
Unr egul at ed Services 443,763 432, 263 605, 094
Tot al 42, 239, 430 39, 507, 208 39, 907, 470
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 39, 766, 800 37,851, 168 37, 600, 240
Tot al 40, 859, 285 38, 931, 926 38, 806, 268
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 2,028, 867 1,223,777 1,702,136
Unr egul at ed Servi ces - 648, 722 - 648, 495 - 600, 935
Tot al 1, 380, 145 575, 282 1, 101, 202
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 607 748 808
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 607 748 808
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 1, 380, 752 576, 030 1,102, 010
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 2,177 2,306 2,185
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 43, 635 42, 300 45, 263
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 4,759,174 3,998, 744
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 15. 03% 14. 69%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 458, 010 620, 940
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 0.77 1.31
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 9, 249, 582 8, 695, 159

22



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 10
Frederick Menorial Hospital
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 339, 660, 800 337,093, 700 334, 410, 300
Unr egul at ed Services 69, 997, 055 98, 857, 274 93, 637, 680
TOTAL 409, 657, 855 435, 950, 974 428, 047, 980
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 274,540, 716 276, 164, 675 267,942, 036
Unregul ated Services 38, 893, 323 54, 480, 258 59, 840, 190
TOTAL 313, 434, 038 330, 644, 933 327,782, 227
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 6, 545, 338 5, 039, 603 4,765, 628
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 3,683, 661 4,678, 290 4,623, 611
TOTAL 10, 228, 999 9,717,893 9, 389, 239
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 281, 086, 054 281, 204, 278 272,707, 664
Unregul ated Services 42,576, 984 59, 158, 548 64, 463, 802
Tot al 323, 663, 037 340, 362, 826 337,171, 466
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 264, 760, 912 263, 988, 130 263, 435, 625
Tot al 320, 533, 000 340, 965, 873 336, 582, 000
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 16, 325, 142 17, 216, 148 9,272,039
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -13, 195,104 -17, 819, 196 -8,682,574
Tot al 3,130, 038 -603, 048 589, 466
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 13, 863, 000 11, 341,981 -3, 588, 239
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue 16, 523, 000 14, 535, 107 4,221,761
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 2,660, 000 3,193, 127 7,810, 000
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 16, 993, 038 10, 738, 933 -2,998, 773
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 16, 383 17, 954 19, 107
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 118, 058 103, 642 100, 619
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 24,352, 223 26, 296, 569
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 11. 38% 11. 04%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 5,523, 089 7, 880, 262
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 0.93 1.21
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 47, 347, 569 51, 962, 805

23



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 11
Garrett County Menorial Hospital
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 45, 202, 600 42,302, 400 42,709, 900
Unr egul at ed Services 7,013, 510 8,618, 007 7,931, 586
TOTAL 52,216, 110 50, 920, 407 50, 641, 486
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 36,914, 781 34, 358, 738 33, 399, 378
Unregul ated Services 4,252,165 5,094, 768 4,881, 490
TOTAL 41, 166, 947 39, 453, 506 38, 280, 868
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 1, 918, 578 727,876 334, 136
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 299, 663 267,413 302, 418
TOTAL 2,218, 241 995, 289 636, 554
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 38, 833, 359 35, 086, 614 33,733,514
Unregul ated Services 4,551, 828 5,362,181 5,183, 908
Tot al 43, 385, 188 40, 448, 795 38,917, 422
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Servi ces 34,661, 815 32,516, 478 31,978, 077
Tot al 40, 023, 965 39, 162, 664 37,720, 740
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 4,171, 544 2,570, 135 1, 755, 437
Unr egul at ed Servi ces - 810, 322 -1, 284, 004 - 558, 755
Tot al 3,361, 223 1,286, 131 1,196, 682
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 877,732 754, 939 425, 243
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 877,732 754, 939 601, 391
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 176, 148
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 4,238, 955 2,041, 070 1, 621, 925
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 1, 865 2,009 2,177
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 23,401 26, 559 24,428
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 1, 527, 265 2,124,416
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 7.82% 8. 53%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 380, 113 382, 656
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.15 0. 96
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 4,824,184 5,108, 663

24



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 12

Ger mant own Ener gency Center
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:

Regul at ed Servi ces 14, 059, 900 12,992, 000 14, 429, 600

Unr egul at ed Services 0 0 0

TOTAL 14, 059, 900 12,992, 000 14, 429, 600
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):

Regul at ed Servi ces 9, 216, 478 9, 389, 152 10, 350, 133

Unr egul at ed Services 0 0 0

TOTAL 9, 216, 478 9, 389, 152 10, 350, 133
O her Operating Revenue:

Regul at ed Servi ces 7,567 14, 865 20, 575

Unr egul at ed Servi ces 263, 000 0 0

TOTAL 270, 567 14, 865 20, 575
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)

Regul at ed Servi ces 9, 224, 045 9, 404, 017 10, 370, 708

Unr egul at ed Services 263, 000 0 0

Tot al 9, 487, 045 9, 404, 017 10, 370, 708
Total Operating Expenses:

Regul at ed Services 11, 106, 309 11, 094, 387 10, 402, 573

Tot al 11, 406, 414 11, 289, 944 10, 758, 951
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):

Regul at ed Services -1, 882,264 -1, 690, 370 - 31, 865

Unr egul at ed Servi ces - 37,105 - 195, 557 - 356, 378

Tot al -1,919, 369 -1, 885,927 - 388, 243
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): -407, 785 - 378, 665 - 338, 377

Non- Qper ati ng Revenue -407, 785 - 378, 665 - 338, 377

Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): -2,327,154 -2, 264,592 - 726, 620
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 0 0 0
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 34,623 34,599 33, 815

25



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 13
Greater Baltinore Medical Center
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 426, 965, 000 421, 137, 700 426, 432, 400
Unr egul at ed Services 46, 343, 000 44,910, 725 43, 504, 800
TOTAL 473, 308, 000 466, 048, 425 469, 937, 200
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 357, 329, 000 352,971, 792 357,119, 673
Unregul ated Services 21, 736, 100 21, 816, 956 21, 597, 046
TOTAL 379, 065, 100 374,788,748 378, 716, 719
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 8, 765, 799 7,062, 683 8, 535, 246
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 14, 711, 200 12, 145, 411 10, 795, 400
TOTAL 23, 476, 999 19, 208, 094 19, 330, 646
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 366, 094, 799 360, 034, 475 365, 654, 919
Unregul ated Services 36, 447, 300 33,962, 367 32,392, 446
Tot al 402, 542, 099 393, 996, 842 398, 047, 365
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 335, 132, 100 330, 512, 612 339, 031, 966
Tot al 381, 697, 400 379, 062, 165 384,772,902
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 30, 962, 700 29, 521, 863 26, 622, 953
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -10, 118, 000 -14,587, 186 - 13, 348, 490
Tot al 20, 844, 700 14,934, 677 13, 274, 463
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 19, 695, 000 18, 295, 933 5,101, 873
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 20, 282, 900 18, 792, 504 6, 816, 966
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 587, 900 496, 571 1, 715, 093
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 40, 539, 700 33,230, 610 18, 376, 336
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 16, 896 17,180 18, 386
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 104, 016 101, 310 103, 539
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 23, 875, 059 24, 069, 438
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 11. 51% 11. 59%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 7,447, 441 10, 210, 625
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.15 1. 60
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 46, 187, 057 49, 363, 397

26



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 14
Holy Cross Hospital
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 468, 876, 700 461, 351, 200 453, 731, 600
Unr egul at ed Services 28, 978, 500 28, 420, 055 26, 444, 000
TOTAL 497, 855, 200 489, 771, 255 480, 175, 600
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 382, 981, 000 373, 367, 100 362, 831, 800
Unr egul at ed Services 14, 213, 000 13, 422, 946 12, 252, 600
TOTAL 397, 194, 000 386, 790, 046 375, 084, 400
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 6, 272, 300 6, 119, 000 4,593, 400
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 10, 731, 690 11, 136, 000 11, 802, 100
TOTAL 17, 003, 990 17, 255, 000 16, 395, 500
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 389, 253, 300 379, 486, 100 367, 425, 200
Unregul ated Services 24,944, 690 24, 558, 946 24, 054, 700
Tot al 414,197, 990 404, 045, 046 391, 479, 900
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 348, 206, 775 336, 499, 534 325, 133, 202
Tot al 390, 903, 000 379, 895, 000 364, 822, 000
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 41, 046, 525 42,986, 566 42,291,998
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -17, 751, 525 -18, 836, 520 -15, 634, 098
Tot al 23, 295, 000 24,150, 046 26, 657, 900
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 23, 263, 000 13, 278, 000 - 580, 000
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 23, 263, 000 13, 278, 000 - 580, 000
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 46, 558, 000 37,428, 046 26, 077, 900
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 27,507 27,676 27,918
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 114, 641 121, 384 122, 355
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 39, 862, 724 36, 734, 667
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 12. 72% 12.17%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 10, 526, 156 11, 557, 939
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.18 1.26
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 69, 379, 005 65, 899, 561

27



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 15
Howar d County General Hospital
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 281, 805, 600 278, 901, 600 275, 201, 900
Unr egul at ed Services 0 0 0
TOTAL 281, 805, 600 278,901, 600 275, 201, 900
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 232,598, 600 232,449, 101 228,528, 424
Unr egul at ed Services 0 0 0
TOTAL 232,598, 600 232, 449, 101 228,528, 424
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 62, 249 99, 739 75, 986
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 1, 995, 674 1, 681, 428 1, 921, 290
TOTAL 2,057,923 1, 781, 167 1, 997, 276
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 232, 660, 849 232,548, 840 228, 604, 410
Unr egul at ed Services 1, 995, 674 1, 681, 428 1, 921, 290
Tot al 234, 656, 523 234, 230, 268 230, 525, 700
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 222, 265, 553 214, 010, 558 210, 259, 612
Tot al 231,079, 634 223,533, 128 220, 890, 194
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 10, 395, 296 18, 538, 282 18, 344, 798
Unr egul at ed Servi ces - 6,818, 406 -7,841, 142 -8,709, 292
Tot al 3,576, 890 10, 697, 140 9, 635, 506
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 6, 309, 706 8,692, 566 -10, 905, 869
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue 4,133,076 1, 763, 387 2,601, 476
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses -2,176, 630 -6, 929, 179 13, 507, 345
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 9, 886, 601 19, 389, 706 -1, 270, 363
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 16, 270 16, 001 15, 680
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 104, 460 102, 700 106, 272
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 26, 597, 084 25, 008, 934
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 13.28% 12. 43%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 6, 201, 772 7,789, 046
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1. 27 1.57
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 46, 291, 094 47, 849, 825

28



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 16
Johns Hopki ns Bayvi ew Medi cal Center
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 605, 106, 300 596, 807, 300 584, 860, 100
Unr egul at ed Services 4, 406, 900 8,573, 900 9, 292, 400
TOTAL 609, 513, 200 605, 381, 200 594, 152, 500
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 484, 348, 000 476, 903, 000 464, 656, 600
Unregul ated Services 3, 663, 900 8, 006, 900 8, 655, 400
TOTAL 488, 011, 900 484, 909, 900 473, 312, 000
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 9, 049, 099 9, 832, 500 10, 640, 600
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 42, 960, 500 38, 516, 600 40, 589, 600
TOTAL 52, 009, 599 48, 349, 100 51, 230, 200
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 493, 397, 099 486, 735, 500 475, 297, 200
Unregul ated Services 46, 624, 400 46, 523, 500 49, 245, 000
Tot al 540, 021, 499 533, 259, 000 524,542, 200
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 472, 155, 588 480, 902, 619 453, 372, 164
Tot al 530, 603, 000 541, 313, 000 515, 400, 000
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 21, 241, 512 5,832,881 21, 925, 036
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -11, 823,012 -13, 886, 881 -12,782, 836
Tot al 9, 418, 500 - 8, 054, 000 9, 142, 200
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 1, 686, 500 1, 258, 000 1, 483, 500
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 1, 686, 500 1, 258, 000 1, 483, 500
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 11, 105, 000 -6, 796, 000 10, 625, 700
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 20, 529 21, 497 21,903
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 440, 573 434,814 458, 827
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 50, 884, 040 51, 725, 255
Ri sk Adj usted Readm ssi on Percent: 16. 05% 15. 72%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 7, 556, 155 15, 218, 356
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 0.83 1.62
Potential ly Avoidable Utilization Costs: 81, 149, 306 89, 464, 625

29



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014

Page 17

Johns Hopki ns Hospital

FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG

G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces
Unr egul at ed Services
TOTAL

Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces
Unr egul at ed Services
TOTAL

O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces
Unr egul at ed Servi ces
TOTAL

Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces
Unr egul at ed Services
Tot al

Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services
Tot al

Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services
Unr egul at ed Servi ces
Tot al

Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses

Total Excess Profit (Loss):

Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions:
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits:

Readmi ssi on Char ges:

Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent:

Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate:

Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs:

June 2014

2,172,517, 900
12, 351, 327
2,184, 869, 227

1,778, 796, 357
10, 509, 115
1,789, 305, 472

14, 656, 180
155, 742, 900
170, 399, 080

1, 793, 452, 537
166, 252, 015
1, 959, 704, 552

1, 768, 501, 426
1,928, 276, 090

24,951, 117
6,477,361
31, 428, 478
35,421, 690
35, 421, 690
0

66, 850, 174
48, 466

548, 274

172,736, 442

15. 64%

35, 869, 802
0. 98
221,715,714

30

June 2013

2,132, 419, 000
7,919, 391
2,140, 338, 391

1, 760, 717,473
6, 115, 491
1, 766, 832, 964

14,570, 644
131, 724, 408
146, 295, 052

1,775, 288, 117
137, 839, 899
1, 913, 128, 016

1, 757, 360, 894
1, 897, 159, 817

17,927, 223
-1, 959, 024
15, 968, 199
35, 094, 878
35, 094, 878
0

51, 063, 077
48, 261

536, 188

169, 582, 297

15. 00%

60, 288, 690
1. 64
239, 682, 555

June 2012

1, 851, 351, 500
7,839,714
1, 859, 191, 214

1,578, 655, 727
6, 586, 531
1, 585, 242, 258

14, 097, 472
124,914, 611
139, 012, 083

1,592, 753, 199
131, 501, 142
1, 724, 254, 341

1, 560, 026, 965
1, 690, 861, 340

32,726, 234
666, 767
33,393, 001

32,718, 682

32,718, 682

0

66, 111, 683

47, 047
499, 124



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 18
Laurel Regi onal Hospital
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 118, 865, 000 121, 542, 100 118, 724, 400
Unr egul at ed Services 5,189, 156 3,766, 780 3,961, 730
TOTAL 124, 054, 156 125, 308, 880 122, 686, 130
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 97,912, 231 98, 649, 934 93, 954, 841
Unr egul at ed Services 1,501, 121 1, 477,821 1, 273, 246
TOTAL 99, 413, 352 100, 127, 755 95, 228, 087
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 2,735, 242 118, 373 -189, 126
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 306, 036 283, 265 249, 353
TOTAL 3,041, 278 401, 638 60, 227
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 100, 647, 473 98, 768, 306 93, 765, 714
Unregul ated Services 1, 807, 157 1,761, 086 1,522,599
Tot al 102, 454, 630 100, 529, 393 95, 288, 314
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 104, 245, 610 101, 679, 156 96, 874, 582
Tot al 111, 690, 619 110, 799, 556 104, 340, 682
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services - 3,598, 137 -2,910, 849 - 3,108, 868
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -5,637, 852 -7,359, 314 -5,943,501
Tot al -9, 235,989 - 10, 270, 163 -9, 052, 368
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 8, 550, 000 8, 700, 000 9, 150, 000
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 8, 550, 000 8, 700, 000 9, 150, 000
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): - 685, 989 -1,570, 163 97, 632
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 5, 494 5, 989 5, 630
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 47,120 51, 767 49, 270
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 10, 415, 185 10, 515, 640
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 14. 63% 13. 96%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 1, 619, 668 1, 704, 415
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.03 0.91
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 17,174,878 17,074, 036

31



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 19

Levi ndal e*
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014
G oss Patient Revenue:

Regul at ed Servi ces 54,541, 800

Unr egul at ed Services 35, 343, 587

TOTAL 89, 885, 387
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):

Regul at ed Servi ces 47,571, 840

Unr egul at ed Services 28, 791, 830

TOTAL 76, 363, 670
O her Operating Revenue:

Regul at ed Servi ces 1, 640, 083

Unr egul at ed Servi ces 54, 975

TOTAL 1, 695, 058
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)

Regul at ed Servi ces 49, 211, 923

Unr egul at ed Services 28, 846, 805

Tot al 78, 058, 728
Total Operating Expenses:

Regul at ed Servi ces 41,997, 200

Tot al 74, 832, 800
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):

Regul at ed Servi ces 7,214,700

Unr egul at ed Services - 3,988, 800

Tot al 3, 225,900
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 3,575, 884

Non- Qper ati ng Revenue 3,575, 884

Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 6, 801, 826
Total Regul ated I npatient Adm ssions: 1, 315
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 3,391

4FY 2014 isthefirst year that Levindale was designated as an acute care hospital by CMS.
32



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 20
McCr eady Hospit al
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 16, 638, 000 17,975, 600 17, 710, 400
Unr egul at ed Services 1, 397, 602 1, 661, 066 1, 964, 859
TOTAL 18, 035, 602 19, 636, 666 19, 675, 259
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 13, 303, 900 13,914, 617 14, 280, 227
Unr egul at ed Services 863, 487 923, 548 1, 051, 180
TOTAL 14, 167, 387 14, 838, 165 15, 331, 407
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 1, 301, 193 90, 951 42,511
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 83, 844 8,651 5,490
TOTAL 1, 385, 037 99, 602 48, 001
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 14, 605, 093 14, 005, 568 14, 322, 738
Unr egul at ed Services 947, 331 932, 199 1, 056, 670
Tot al 15, 552, 424 14,937, 767 15, 379, 408
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 12, 257, 596 14, 303, 837 13, 816, 498
Tot al 13,788, 378 14, 472, 624 13, 999, 158
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 2,347,500 - 298, 269 506, 240
Unr egul at ed Servi ces - 583, 451 763,412 874,010
Tot al 1, 764, 049 465, 143 1, 380, 250
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 107, 518 - 35,298 1, 880, 685
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 107, 518 103, 748 1, 880, 685
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 139, 046 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 1, 871, 567 429, 845 3, 260, 935
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 321 297 399
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 13,413 13, 299 14, 361
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 610, 519 880, 560
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 11. 14% 13.27%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 0 0
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 0. 00 0. 00
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 1, 781, 550 2,357,978

33



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 21
MedSt ar Franklin Square
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 486, 467, 000 469, 792, 200 477,082, 000
Unr egul at ed Services 192, 175, 314 149, 321, 525 127, 868, 522
TOTAL 678, 642, 314 619, 113, 725 604, 950, 522
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 407, 447, 444 385, 021, 682 391, 379, 153
Unregul ated Services 70, 000, 653 55, 271, 201 50, 326, 959
TOTAL 477, 448, 097 440, 292, 883 441, 706, 112
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 6, 794, 480 4,721, 924 3,363, 126
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 6, 316, 130 5, 404, 183 4,553, 768
TOTAL 13, 110, 610 10, 126, 107 7,916, 894
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 414, 241, 924 389, 743, 606 394,742, 279
Unregul ated Services 76, 316, 783 60, 675, 384 54, 880, 727
Tot al 490, 558, 707 450, 418, 990 449, 623, 006
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 373,444,124 363, 168, 650 363, 245, 385
Tot al 469, 241, 214 450, 358, 826 436, 640, 459
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 40, 797, 801 26, 574, 956 31, 496, 894
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -19, 480, 307 -26, 514,792 -18, 514, 347
Tot al 21,317,494 60, 164 12,982, 547
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 246, 061 365, 370 304, 953
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 246, 061 365, 370 304, 953
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 21, 563, 555 425,534 13, 287, 500
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 21, 804 21,997 22,145
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 168, 073 170, 528 172, 628
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 55, 138, 662 49, 266, 677
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 13.97% 13. 75%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 9, 643, 067 11, 211, 987
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.00 1.11
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 91, 907, 129 89, 871, 664



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 22
MedSt ar Good Sanaritan
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 299, 250, 000 295, 736, 800 311, 855, 400
Unr egul at ed Services 142, 342, 915 143, 520, 878 127, 393, 726
TOTAL 441,592, 915 439, 257, 678 439, 249, 126
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 242,965, 630 239, 029, 241 251, 566, 429
Unregul ated Services 49, 688, 130 49, 676, 077 51, 726, 988
TOTAL 292, 653, 760 288, 705, 318 303, 293, 417
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 7,433, 958 3,998, 131 3,037, 752
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 7,188, 325 6, 882, 784 1, 023, 745
TOTAL 14, 622, 283 10, 880, 915 4,061, 497
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 250, 399, 588 243,027, 372 254,604, 181
Unregul ated Services 56, 876, 455 56, 558, 861 52, 750, 733
Tot al 307, 276, 043 299, 586, 233 307, 354, 914
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 224, 965, 932 230, 253, 466 232, 260, 097
Tot al 303, 307, 419 307, 783, 651 299, 758, 071
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Servi ces 25, 433, 656 12,773, 906 22,344,084
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -21, 465, 032 -20,971, 324 -14, 747, 241
Tot al 3, 968, 625 - 8,197,418 7,596, 843
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 3,219 71, 034 1, 008, 235
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue 43, 284 56, 644 1, 013, 557
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 40, 065 - 14, 390 5,322
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 3,971, 844 -8, 126, 384 8, 605, 078
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 11, 759 13,416 14, 948
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 90, 430 88, 921 84, 859
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 33, 353, 859 36, 816, 669
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 15. 19% 15. 29%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 5, 307, 301 7,186, 091
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 0. 83 1.16
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 54,578, 301 60, 749, 450

35



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 23
MedSt ar Har bor Hospital
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 205, 146, 300 201, 141, 000 209, 694, 300
Unr egul at ed Services 78, 505, 062 72,945, 343 66, 803, 107
TOTAL 283, 651, 362 274,086, 343 276, 497, 407
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 171, 046, 194 165, 007, 143 166, 004, 244
Unregul ated Services 25, 319, 070 25, 598, 351 21, 464, 485
TOTAL 196, 365, 264 190, 605, 494 187, 468, 729
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 5,371, 719 5, 160, 187 3, 495, 467
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 8, 195, 974 8, 819, 001 8, 367, 663
TOTAL 13, 567, 693 13,979, 188 11, 863, 130
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 176, 417, 913 170, 167, 330 169, 499, 711
Unr egul at ed Services 33,515, 044 34,417, 352 29, 832, 148
Tot al 209, 932, 957 204, 584, 682 199, 331, 859
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 146, 516, 583 157, 878, 796 166, 965, 434
Tot al 189, 700, 114 198, 800, 877 202, 041, 627
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Servi ces 29,901, 331 12,288, 534 2,534,277
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -9, 668, 488 - 6,504, 729 -5, 244, 045
Tot al 20, 232, 843 5, 783, 805 -2,709, 768
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 506, 890 277,299 220, 219
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue 506, 890 198, 723 220, 219
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 -78,576 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 20, 739, 733 6, 061, 104 -2,489, 549
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 7,624 8,581 10, 096
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 66, 579 67,279 62, 867
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 18, 363, 094 20, 799, 635
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 13.77% 14. 40%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 4,674,145 4,827, 281
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.09 1. 06
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 33, 760, 818 37, 080, 813

36



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 24
MedSt ar Mont gonmery Gener al
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 167, 893, 100 166, 869, 100 165, 915, 000
Unr egul at ed Services 8,493, 778 8, 456, 700 7, 665, 307
TOTAL 176, 386, 878 175, 325, 800 173, 580, 307
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 141, 046, 268 140, 038, 336 139, 632, 555
Unregul ated Services 4,590, 335 4,357,068 3, 286, 403
TOTAL 145, 636, 603 144, 395, 405 142, 918, 959
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 2,796,922 5, 386, 913 2, 680, 765
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 282, 582 733,038 894, 651
TOTAL 3,079, 504 6,119, 951 3,575, 416
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 143, 843, 190 145, 425, 249 142, 313, 320
Unr egul at ed Services 4,872,917 5, 090, 107 4,181, 054
Tot al 148, 716, 107 150, 515, 356 146, 494, 375
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 128, 893, 109 128, 574, 908 124, 575, 881
Tot al 141, 655, 632 143, 428, 725 137, 669, 098
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Servi ces 14, 950, 082 16, 850, 341 17, 737, 440
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -7,889, 606 -9,763, 710 -8,912, 163
Tot al 7,060, 476 7,086, 631 8, 825, 276
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 15, 370 175, 895 179, 353
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 15, 370 175, 895 179, 353
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 7, 075, 846 7,262,526 9, 004, 630
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 8,230 8,615 9, 247
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 74,747 72,298 67,026
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 13, 130, 641 14, 208, 780
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 12. 70% 12.91%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 2,709, 450 4,179, 895
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.26 1.52
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 23,972, 354 26, 667, 246

37



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 25
MedStar Saint Mary's Hospital
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 157, 936, 000 154, 603, 000 151, 897, 000
Unr egul at ed Services 12, 443, 429 11, 584, 466 10, 086, 460
TOTAL 170, 379, 429 166, 187, 466 161, 983, 460
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 131, 499, 627 122,725, 928 115, 905, 184
Unregul ated Services 6, 799, 669 8, 136, 699 9, 418, 294
TOTAL 138, 299, 296 130, 862, 627 125, 323, 478
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 2, 960, 850 252,484 4,778, 880
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 1, 745, 067 2,025, 953 1, 180, 088
TOTAL 4,705, 917 2,278, 437 5, 958, 967
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 134, 460, 477 122,978, 411 120, 684, 064
Unregul ated Services 8,544,736 10, 162, 653 10, 598, 382
Tot al 143, 005, 213 133, 141, 064 131, 282, 445
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 114, 088, 512 106, 669, 520 106, 515, 296
Tot al 131, 503, 457 122, 895, 946 121, 640, 602
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 20, 371, 965 16, 308, 891 14, 168, 767
Unr egul at ed Servi ces - 8,870, 208 -6,063, 773 -4,526, 924
Tot al 11, 501, 757 10, 245, 118 9, 641, 843
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 769, 829 2,103, 498 -1, 535
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue 769, 829 444,111 277,093
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 -1, 659, 387 278, 628
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 12, 271, 586 12, 348, 616 9, 640, 308
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 6, 681 7,477 7,581
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 67, 665 68, 692 66, 876
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 10, 189, 136 11, 003, 019
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 12.57% 13. 55%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 1,196, 713 1, 444,025
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 0. 82 0. 96
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 20, 431, 617 21, 907, 808

38



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 26
MedSt ar Sout hern Maryl and
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 261, 812, 300 259, 132, 417 241, 038, 800
Unr egul at ed Services 10, 051, 455 15, 399, 200 31, 423, 033
TOTAL 271, 863, 755 274,531, 617 272,461, 833
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 207, 161, 288 200, 413, 856 199, 310, 186
Unregul ated Services 5, 415,538 5, 166, 698 13, 200, 279
TOTAL 212,576, 826 205, 580, 554 212,510, 465
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 402, 847 114, 400 269, 077
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 882, 941 959, 834 628, 599
TOTAL 1, 285, 788 1, 074, 234 897,676
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 207, 564, 135 200, 528, 256 199, 579, 263
Unregul ated Services 6, 298, 479 6,126, 532 13, 828, 878
Tot al 213, 862, 614 206, 654, 788 213, 408, 141
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Servi ces 204, 401, 483 222,142,014 193, 980, 843
Tot al 219, 466, 790 234, 305, 692 217,937, 158
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 3,162,651 -21,613, 758 5, 598, 420
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -8,766, 828 - 6,037, 146 -10, 127, 437
Tot al -5,604, 177 -27, 650, 904 -4,529, 017
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 21, 958 -104, 289 -154, 429
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue 21, 958 0 - 154, 429
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 104, 289 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): -5,582, 219 -21,613,758 -4,683, 446
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 13,178 16, 421 15, 272
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 73,008 49, 127 64,776
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 28, 638, 418 28, 140, 372
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 12. 36% 12.57%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 7,003, 192 7,624, 243
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.25 1. 46
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 54, 853, 857 54,084, 796

39



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 27
MedSt ar Uni on Menori al
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 415, 164, 300 406, 581, 900 422,530, 700
Unr egul at ed Services 153, 664, 182 141, 868, 889 142, 322, 669
TOTAL 568, 828, 482 548, 450, 789 564, 853, 369
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 343, 104, 896 325, 853, 133 339, 127, 630
Unregul ated Services 52,362,138 51, 680, 296 48, 461, 245
TOTAL 395, 467, 034 377,533, 429 387, 588, 875
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 4,836, 762 6, 118, 228 4,132,978
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 8,902, 680 8, 020, 221 8,577,492
TOTAL 13, 739, 442 14, 138, 449 12, 710, 470
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 347,941, 658 331, 971, 361 343, 260, 608
Unregul ated Services 61, 264, 818 59, 700, 517 57,038, 737
Tot al 409, 206, 476 391, 671, 878 400, 299, 345
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 301, 629, 439 311, 635, 984 311, 843, 852
Tot al 394, 669, 299 397, 895, 616 397, 245, 796
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 46, 312, 220 20, 335, 376 31, 416, 756
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -31, 775,042 -26, 559, 115 -28, 363, 207
Tot al 14, 537, 178 -6,223,738 3, 053, 549
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 5, 852, 483 4,750, 979 1, 030, 745
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue 5,852, 483 4,750, 979 1, 030, 745
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 20, 389, 661 -1,472,759 4,084, 294
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 12,811 14, 044 14,914
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 110, 467 110, 887 100, 138
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 36, 462, 671 35, 288, 245
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 14.57% 15. 01%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 11, 124, 318 14,581, 503
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.09 1.45
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 62,527, 286 65, 790, 576

40



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 28
Mercy Medical Center
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 489, 187, 300 470, 759, 600 459, 265, 700
Unr egul at ed Services 749, 899 627, 139 683, 968
TOTAL 489, 937, 199 471, 386, 739 459, 949, 668
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 408, 619, 365 398, 432, 064 385, 649, 759
Unr egul at ed Services 749, 899 627, 139 683, 968
TOTAL 409, 369, 264 399, 059, 203 386, 333, 727
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 8, 959, 900 3,404, 900 8, 682, 300
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 14, 885, 430 14, 337, 643 13, 322, 987
TOTAL 23, 845, 330 17,742,543 22,005, 287
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 417,579, 265 401, 836, 964 394, 332, 059
Unregul ated Services 15, 635, 329 14,964, 782 14, 006, 955
Tot al 433, 214, 594 416, 801, 746 408, 339, 014
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Servi ces 403, 467, 951 386, 407, 071 372,534,729
Tot al 426,907, 582 413,737, 170 399, 668, 121
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 14, 111, 314 15, 429, 893 21, 797, 330
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -7,804, 301 -12, 365, 317 -13, 126, 437
Tot al 6, 307, 013 3,064,576 8, 670, 893
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 9, 709, 384 27,955, 631 -22,986, 000
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 8,724,168 19, 458, 083 263, 000
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses - 985, 216 -8, 497, 548 23, 249, 000
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 16, 016, 399 31, 020, 207 -14, 315, 107
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 15, 231 16, 473 16, 740
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 185, 353 189, 379 201, 117
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 29, 798, 310 26, 898, 977
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 15. 65% 14. 74%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 7, 800, 670 8, 345, 522
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.01 1.16
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 48, 445, 110 47, 155, 802

41



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 29
Meritus Medical Center
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 305, 141, 600 301, 350, 700 295, 465, 200
Unr egul at ed Services 59, 470, 600 56, 210, 900 56, 964, 400
TOTAL 364, 612, 200 357, 561, 600 352, 429, 600
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 247, 293, 500 247, 469, 100 244, 455, 300
Unregul ated Services 36, 504, 200 33, 954, 400 31, 708, 200
TOTAL 283, 797, 700 281, 423, 500 276, 163, 500
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 4,178, 200 7, 830, 700 7, 051, 500
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 8, 868, 100 7, 696, 600 2, 896, 900
TOTAL 13, 046, 300 15, 527, 300 9, 948, 400
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 251, 471, 700 255, 299, 800 251, 506, 800
Unregul ated Services 45, 372, 300 41, 651, 000 34, 605, 100
Tot al 296, 844, 000 296, 950, 800 286, 111, 900
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 246, 754, 400 244,991, 246 247, 646, 762
Tot al 292, 347, 100 285, 886, 372 283, 953, 400
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 4,717,300 10, 308, 554 3, 860, 038
Unr egul at ed Servi ces - 220, 400 755, 874 -1,701, 538
Tot al 4, 496, 900 11, 064, 428 2,158, 500
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 14, 486, 000 -1, 948, 200 2,553, 900
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 14, 486, 000 9, 342, 900 2,553,900
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 11, 291, 100 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 18, 982, 900 9, 116, 228 4,712, 400
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 16, 542 15, 846 15, 558
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 106, 662 107,718 111, 239
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 28, 386, 681 29,519, 745
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 12. 66% 11. 60%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 5, 950, 468 8, 664, 950
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 0. 96 1. 46
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 51, 126, 663 55, 866, 659

42



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 30
Nor t hwest Hospital Center
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 249, 134, 500 248, 252, 700 238, 730, 100
Unr egul at ed Services 40, 289, 193 36,074, 239 31, 341, 808
TOTAL 289, 423, 693 284, 326, 939 270, 071, 908
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 198, 880, 687 197, 370, 392 193, 159, 085
Unregul ated Services 16, 322, 685 16, 188, 598 12, 355, 386
TOTAL 215, 203, 372 213, 558, 990 205, 514, 471
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 2, 083, 246 2,225,751 3,904, 164
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 6, 071, 930 5, 389, 249 4,202, 790
TOTAL 8, 155,176 7, 615, 000 8, 106, 954
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 200, 963, 933 199, 596, 143 197, 063, 249
Unr egul at ed Services 22,394, 615 21,577, 847 16, 558, 176
Tot al 223, 358, 548 221,173,990 213, 621, 425
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 177, 499, 465 179, 749, 164 178, 234, 237
Tot al 213, 902, 245 207, 890, 900 203, 241, 310
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 23, 464, 469 19, 846, 980 18, 829, 012
Unr egul at ed Servi ces - 14,008, 165 - 6,563, 890 - 8,448, 897
Tot al 9, 456, 304 13, 283, 090 10, 380, 115
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 16, 161, 910 10, 330, 900 1, 315, 681
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 16, 161, 910 9, 138, 000 1, 315, 681
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 -1,192, 900 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 25,618, 214 23,613,990 11, 695, 796
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 12,403 14,013 13, 666
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 85, 655 85, 347 83, 313
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 31, 146, 779 31,779, 863
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 15.57% 15. 69%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 4,911, 932 8, 195, 596
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1. 06 1.78
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 53, 810, 791 58, 233, 463

43



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 31
Peni nsul a Regi onal Medical Center
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 416, 388, 900 412, 641, 500 414, 765, 500
Unr egul at ed Services 65, 260, 800 65, 444, 500 62, 011, 400
TOTAL 481, 649, 700 478, 086, 000 476, 776, 900
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 344, 224, 200 335, 753, 200 336, 910, 100
Unregul ated Services 24, 311, 800 23, 926, 300 24,508, 400
TOTAL 368, 536, 000 359, 679, 500 361, 418, 500
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 4,808, 700 5,401, 400 1, 238, 700
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 2,542, 800 1, 063, 700 1, 151, 100
TOTAL 7,351, 500 6, 465, 100 2, 389, 800
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 349, 032, 900 341, 154, 600 338, 148, 800
Unregul ated Services 26, 854, 600 24,990, 000 25, 659, 500
Tot al 375, 887, 500 366, 144, 600 363, 808, 300
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 312, 613, 046 315, 285, 076 309, 515, 853
Tot al 368, 196, 500 369, 279, 600 357,522, 300
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 36, 419, 854 25, 869, 524 28, 632, 947
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -28,728, 854 -29, 004, 524 -22, 346, 947
Tot al 7,691, 000 - 3,135, 000 6, 286, 000
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 21, 729, 000 13, 854, 000 9, 551, 000
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 21, 729, 000 13, 854, 000 9, 603, 000
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 52, 000
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 29, 420, 000 10, 719, 000 15, 837, 000
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 17, 344 17,915 19, 139
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 120, 004 118, 568 118, 097
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 32,271, 933 30, 595, 588
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 12. 36% 10. 98%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 11, 250, 126 12,821, 039
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.29 1.43
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 61, 274, 484 61, 470, 269



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 32
Prince Georges' Hospital Center
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 267, 282, 400 249,192, 555 255, 903, 800
Unr egul at ed Services 19, 068, 307 16, 344, 218 16, 268, 731
TOTAL 286, 350, 707 265, 536, 772 272,172,531
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 218, 330, 120 205, 002, 819 204,531, 176
Unregul ated Services 7,067, 837 6,571, 695 6, 303, 810
TOTAL 225, 397, 957 211,574, 515 210, 834, 986
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 3,683, 713 3,652, 361 1, 273, 509
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 1, 476, 428 1, 260, 997 997, 687
TOTAL 5,160, 141 4,913, 358 2,271,197
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 222,013, 833 208, 655, 180 205, 804, 685
Unr egul at ed Services 8, 544, 265 7,832,692 7,301, 497
Tot al 230, 558, 098 216, 487, 873 213, 106, 183
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 217,477,104 211, 129, 768 203, 825, 149
Tot al 249, 691, 862 237,801, 774 227,988, 386
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 4,536, 729 -2,474,588 1,979,536
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -23,670, 492 -18, 839, 314 -16, 861, 740
Tot al -19, 133, 763 - 21, 313,902 - 14, 882, 204
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 22, 326, 150 22,342,000 22,252,141
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue 22, 326, 150 22,342,000 22,252,141
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 3,192, 390 1, 028, 098 7, 369, 937
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 11, 437 10, 400 11, 365
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 49, 899 54, 507 54, 868
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 20, 709, 894 20, 745, 116
Ri sk Adj usted Readm ssi on Percent: 11.23% 11. 30%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 4,193, 046 5, 840, 172
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 0. 86 1.13
Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs: 41, 964, 827 42,274,789

45



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 33

Queen Anne’s Enmergency Center
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:

Regul at ed Servi ces 5, 190, 800 4,999, 900 5,262, 800

Unr egul at ed Services 0 0 0

TOTAL 5, 190, 800 4,999, 900 5, 262, 800
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):

Regul at ed Servi ces 4,257, 207 4,038, 910 4,141, 820

Unr egul at ed Services 0 0 0

TOTAL 4,257, 207 4,038, 910 4,141, 820
O her Operating Revenue:

Regul at ed Servi ces 9, 569 15, 386 -1

Unr egul at ed Servi ces 0 0

TOTAL 9, 569 15, 386 0
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)

Regul at ed Servi ces 4,266, 776 4,054, 296 4,141, 819

Unr egul at ed Services 0 0 1

Tot al 4,266, 776 4,054, 296 4,141, 820
Total Operating Expenses:

Regul at ed Servi ces 7,584,616 7,562,784 5,951,191

Tot al 7,584,616 7,562,784 5,951, 191
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):

Regul at ed Services - 3,317,840 - 3,508, 488 -1, 809, 372

Unr egul at ed Servi ces 0 0 1

Tot al - 3,317,840 - 3,508, 488 -1,809, 371
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): -29, 398 50, 254 -116, 436

Non- Qper ati ng Revenue - 29, 398 50, 254 -116, 436

Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): - 3,347, 238 - 3,458, 234 -1, 925, 807
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 0 0 0
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 14, 793 14, 434 14,713

46



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COWM SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 34
Sai nt Agnes Hospital
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
Gross Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Services 410, 191, 100 404, 669, 900 401, 564, 200
Unr egul at ed Services 164, 764, 875 166, 822, 313 158, 452, 693
TOTAL 574, 955, 975 571, 492, 213 560, 016, 893
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 336, 783, 777 331, 731, 681 330, 910, 826
Unr egul at ed Services 69, 199, 726 69, 671, 974 69, 184, 299
TOTAL 405, 983, 504 401, 403, 655 400, 095, 125
Ot her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 5, 698, 599 6, 619, 006 4,476, 674
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 5,273, 683 5, 465, 872 5,432, 666
TOTAL 10, 972, 282 12,084, 878 9, 909, 340
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 342,482, 376 338, 350, 687 335, 387, 500
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 74,473, 409 75, 137, 846 74,616, 966
Tot al 416, 955, 786 413, 488, 533 410, 004, 465
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Servi ces 289, 084, 013 282,897, 718 286, 983, 653
Tot al 393, 019, 853 387, 262, 188 388, 515, 810
Net Operating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Servi ces 53, 398, 364 55, 452, 969 48, 403, 847
Unr egul at ed Services -29, 462, 430 -29, 226, 624 -26, 915, 191
Tot al 23,935, 933 26, 226, 345 21, 488, 655
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 20, 935, 447 15, 657, 000 22,026, 368
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 22,133,540 15, 619, 000 478, 886
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 1,198, 093 - 38, 000 -21, 547, 482
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 44,871, 382 41, 883, 345 43,515, 023
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 17,541 17, 907 19, 122
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 147, 167 142, 392 138, 372
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 42,762,725 40, 775, 025
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 14.61% 14. 28%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 7, 664, 552 10, 793, 024
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.03 1.43
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 74, 655, 695 75, 344, 635

a7



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 35
Shady Grove Adventi st Hospital
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG Decenber 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 383, 323, 300 375, 189, 800 348, 706, 200
Unr egul at ed Services 21,122,086 27,614, 020 30, 434, 434
TOTAL 404, 445, 386 402, 803, 820 379, 140, 634
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 322,939, 414 306, 717, 029 294, 975, 318
Unr egul at ed Services 11, 062, 723 13,372,763 14, 983, 447
TOTAL 334, 002, 137 320, 089, 792 309, 958, 765
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 3, 045, 364 5,247, 337 2,524,169
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 6, 356, 051 5, 820, 855 6, 341, 040
TOTAL 9,401, 415 11, 068, 192 8, 865, 209
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 325,984, 778 311, 964, 366 297, 499, 487
Unregul at ed Services 17,418,774 19, 193, 618 21, 324, 487
Tot al 343, 403, 552 331, 157, 984 318, 823,974
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Servi ces 294, 301, 624 283, 029, 117 277, 340, 979
Tot al 326, 254, 601 315, 633, 624 310, 920, 356
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 31, 683, 154 28, 935, 249 20, 158, 508
Unr egul at ed Servi ces - 14,534, 203 -13, 410, 889 -12, 254, 890
Tot al 17, 148, 951 15, 524, 360 7,903, 618
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 1,178, 041 - 260, 667 1, 005, 006
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue 1,178, 041 - 260, 667 1, 802, 328
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 797, 322
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 18, 326, 992 15, 263, 693 8, 908, 624
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 19, 533 20, 321 21,112
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 95, 364 97, 692 91, 754
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 27, 075, 280 28,716, 222
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 11. 38% 11. 95%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 6, 401, 554 5, 832, 026
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 0.81 0.79
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 48, 070, 854 43, 249, 842

48



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 36
Sinai Hospital of Baltinore
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 699, 430, 000 684, 516, 800 676, 602, 700
Unr egul at ed Services 193, 082, 993 169, 421, 934 153, 761, 069
TOTAL 892,512,993 853, 938, 734 830, 363, 769
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 565, 895, 246 564, 285, 587 565, 251, 457
Unregul ated Services 83, 756, 627 81, 351, 241 72,810, 960
TOTAL 649, 651, 873 645, 636, 828 638, 062, 417
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 11, 819, 850 16, 233, 000 6, 501, 576
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 41, 560, 500 34,075, 711 38, 199, 150
TOTAL 53, 380, 350 50, 308, 711 44,700, 726
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 577, 715, 096 580, 518, 587 571, 753, 033
Unregul at ed Services 125, 317, 127 115, 426, 952 111, 010, 110
Tot al 703, 032, 223 695, 945, 539 682, 763, 143
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 517, 159, 092 530, 048, 218 525, 697, 277
Tot al 675, 091, 241 680, 645, 621 668, 599, 780
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 60, 556, 006 50, 470, 369 46, 055, 756
Unr egul at ed Servi ces - 32,615,013 - 35,170, 451 -31, 892, 393
Tot al 27,940, 993 15, 299, 918 14, 163, 363
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 29, 800, 000 18, 967, 000 8, 966, 054
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 29, 800, 000 18, 967, 000 8, 966, 054
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 57, 740, 993 34, 266, 918 23,129, 417
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 24,549 25,871 27,229
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 183, 290 168, 467 165, 707
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 57,482, 479 57, 115, 974
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 14.97% 14. 43%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 14,774, 950 20, 703, 914
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 0.97 1. 47
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 89, 495, 796 94, 620, 833

49



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 37
Subur ban Hospit al
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 289, 286, 600 280, 578, 500 272,892, 400
Unr egul at ed Services 9, 632, 810 10, 147, 116 10, 349, 192
TOTAL 298, 919, 410 290, 725, 616 283, 241, 592
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul ated Services 239, 648, 239 232, 362, 800 229, 323, 220
Unregul ated Services 3,624,514 3,093,016 7,363,073
TOTAL 243,272, 753 235, 455, 816 236, 686, 293
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 2,720,835 7, 003, 940 4,740, 818
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 18, 648, 960 42, 394, 260 11, 768, 869
TOTAL 21, 369, 795 49, 398, 200 16, 509, 687
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 242, 369, 074 239, 366, 740 234, 064, 038
Unregul at ed Services 22,273,474 45, 487, 276 19, 131, 942
Tot al 264, 642, 548 284,854, 016 253, 195, 980
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 225, 204, 531 218,871, 188 216, 882, 253
Tot al 262, 016, 800 251, 081, 646 239, 149, 257
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Servi ces 17, 164, 544 20, 495, 552 17,181, 785
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -14,538, 791 13, 276, 817 -3, 135, 062
Tot al 2,625,753 33,772,370 14, 046, 723
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 13,775,934 4,362, 488 -2,603, 825
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue 14,727,120 4,362, 488 -2, 603, 825
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 951, 186 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 16, 401, 687 38,134, 858 11, 442, 898
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 13,183 13,210 14,172
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 76, 845 79, 694 78,221
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 23, 638, 589 20, 834, 542
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 11. 83% 11. 63%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 8, 021, 007 10, 400, 132
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1. 27 1.58
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 40, 831, 795 41, 607, 976

50



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 38
UM Bal ti nore WAshi ngt on
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 393, 181, 900 376, 812, 800 381, 065, 300
Unr egul at ed Services 28, 963, 224 10, 944, 461 11, 077, 953
TOTAL 422,145,124 387, 757, 261 392, 143, 253
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 320, 033, 920 308, 070, 323 312, 825, 359
Unr egul at ed Services 11, 367, 399 10, 944, 461 11, 077, 953
TOTAL 331, 401, 319 319, 014, 784 323,903, 313
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 2,304, 241 1, 904, 465 2,569, 890
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 1, 694, 936 1, 670, 068 1, 558, 022
TOTAL 3,999, 177 3,574,533 4,127,912
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 322, 338, 161 309, 974, 788 315, 395, 249
Unregul ated Services 13, 062, 335 12, 614, 529 12, 635, 976
Tot al 335, 400, 496 322, 589, 317 328, 031, 225
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 296, 252, 216 307, 055, 161 301, 328, 290
Tot al 319, 029, 811 326, 994, 589 313, 491, 003
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 26, 085, 945 2,919, 627 14, 066, 959
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -9, 715, 260 -7,324, 899 473, 264
Tot al 16, 370, 685 - 4,405, 272 14, 540, 222
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 3,103, 362 24,629 - 3,288, 000
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue 6, 430, 980 4,424, 231 1,577,000
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 3,327,618 4,399, 602 4, 865, 000
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 19, 474, 047 -4, 380, 643 11, 252, 222
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 17, 827 18,921 18, 543
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 133, 823 134, 995 138, 344
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 45, 706, 674 40, 162, 146
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 14. 93% 15. 03%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 9, 343,776 10, 417, 975
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.01 1. 27
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 77,870,191 73, 245, 926

51



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 39
UM Charl es Regi onal Medical Center
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 144,785, 724 137, 003, 900 126, 393, 900
Unr egul at ed Services 790, 489 999, 343 425, 147
TOTAL 145, 576, 213 138, 003, 243 126, 819, 047
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 118, 662, 627 112, 746, 501 103, 830, 122
Unr egul at ed Services 579, 067 842, 746 215, 805
TOTAL 119, 241, 694 113, 589, 247 104, 045, 927
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 28,963 - 156, 758 -282, 149
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 481, 289 483, 220 474,202
TOTAL 510, 252 326, 462 192, 054
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 118, 691, 590 112, 589, 742 103, 547,973
Unr egul at ed Services 1, 060, 356 1, 325, 966 690, 007
Tot al 119, 751, 946 113, 915, 709 104, 237, 981
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 105, 796, 706 100, 889, 258 94, 890, 378
Tot al 108, 754, 924 103, 915, 537 96, 010, 018
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 12, 894, 884 11, 700, 484 8,657,595
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -1, 897, 862 -1, 700, 312 -429, 633
Tot al 10, 997, 022 10, 000, 172 8, 227,962
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): - 828, 000 -5, 266, 000 - 8, 884, 000
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue -1, 009, 000 -5, 266, 000 - 8, 884, 000
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses -181, 000 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 10, 169, 022 4,734,172 - 656, 038
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 7,554 7,717 7,083
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 71,016 55,414 56, 821
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 13, 889, 328 15, 328, 045
Ri sk Adj usted Readm ssi on Percent: 12. 89% 13.01%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 1, 300, 292 2, 626, 956
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 0. 80 1.23
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 26, 418, 723 28, 229, 604

52



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COWM SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 40
UM Harford Menorial Hospital
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014° June 2013 June 2012
Gross Patient Revenue:
Regul ated Services 53, 719, 100 103, 499, 300 104, 451, 400
Unr egul at ed Services 60, 300 130, 700 163, 300
TOTAL 53, 779, 400 103, 630, 000 104, 614, 700
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 44,777, 400 80, 749, 039 82, 984, 005
Unr egul at ed Services 44,700 61, 300 104, 000
TOTAL 44,822,100 80, 810, 339 83, 088, 005
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 656, 400 2,452, 600 1, 050, 423
Unr egul at ed Services 175, 100 479, 400 2,361,577
TOTAL 831, 500 2,932, 000 3,412,000
Net QOperating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 45, 433, 800 83, 201, 639 84,034, 428
Unr egul at ed Services 219, 800 540, 700 2,465, 577
Tot al 45, 653, 600 83,742, 339 86, 500, 005
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Servi ces 39, 181, 300 77,131, 271 80, 495, 251
Tot al 40, 864, 200 79, 558, 000 83,528, 951
Net Operating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Servi ces 6, 252, 500 6, 070, 368 3,539, 177
Unr egul at ed Services -1,463, 100 -1, 886, 029 -568, 123
Tot al 4,789, 400 4,184, 339 2,971, 054
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 1, 915, 300 7, 340, 000 5,297, 000
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 1, 915, 300 7, 340, 000 5,297, 000
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 6, 704, 700 11, 524, 339 8, 268, 054
Total Regul ated I npatient Adm ssions: 2,351 4,727 5,132
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 44,589 47,081 43, 330
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 12, 066, 425 11, 569, 256
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 12.51% 12.26%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 1, 533, 980 1, 862, 884
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.16 1. 47
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 21, 069, 537 20, 207, 171

5UM Harford Memorial changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FY E report of six (6)
months.

53



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COWM SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 41
UM M dt own
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 222,427, 600 216, 173, 800 185, 438, 390
Unr egul at ed Services 15, 808, 226 19, 029, 350 8, 054, 159
TOTAL 238, 235, 826 235, 203, 150 193, 492, 549
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 174, 389, 612 177, 185, 337 154, 041, 944
Unregul ated Services 5,994, 896 6, 168, 253 8,008, 771
TOTAL 180, 384, 509 183, 353, 590 162, 050, 715
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 1, 163, 270 270, 527 865, 829
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 998, 502 1, 212, 224 1, 157, 473
TOTAL 2,161,772 1,482, 751 2,023, 301
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 175, 552, 882 177, 455, 864 154, 907, 773
Unregul ated Services 6, 993, 398 7,380, 478 9, 166, 243
Tot al 182, 546, 280 184, 836, 341 164, 074, 016
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Servi ces 152, 556, 172 159, 502, 922 144, 339, 647
Tot al 178, 869, 079 188, 088, 728 168, 209, 026
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Servi ces 22,996, 711 17, 952, 942 10, 568, 126
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -19, 319, 509 -21, 205, 328 -14,703, 136
Tot al 3,677,202 - 3,252,386 -4,135,010
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): -599, 000 -432, 000 - 678, 000
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue -599, 000 -432, 000 100, 000
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 778, 000
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 3,078, 202 - 3,684, 386 -4,813, 010
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 6,178 7,527 8, 870
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 88, 554 66, 762 52,874
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 26, 934, 870 27,938, 051
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 17.53% 16. 94%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 2,231,434 3,787,589
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 0. 99 1.53
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 36, 430, 004 39, 977, 045



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 42
UM Rehabi litation & Orthopedic Institute
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 118, 262, 200 115, 227, 400 117, 995, 400
Unr egul at ed Services 1, 205, 991 1, 438, 975 1, 667, 820
TOTAL 119, 468, 191 116, 666, 375 119, 663, 220
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 98, 687, 200 97, 022, 400 99, 715, 400
Unr egul at ed Services 611, 991 806, 975 916, 820
TOTAL 99, 299, 191 97, 829, 375 100, 632, 220
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 2,099, 610 705, 340 1, 040, 606
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 1, 870, 812 1, 810, 147 1, 841, 976
TOTAL 3,970, 422 2,515, 487 2,882,582
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 100, 786, 810 97,727,740 100, 756, 006
Unr egul at ed Services 2,482,803 2,617,121 2,758, 796
Tot al 103, 269, 613 100, 344, 862 103, 514, 802
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 99, 422, 003 98, 425, 900 95, 494, 655
Tot al 102, 736, 500 101, 635, 160 98, 824, 910
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 1, 364, 808 - 698, 160 5,261, 351
Unr egul at ed Servi ces - 831, 695 -592, 139 -571, 459
Tot al 533, 113 -1, 290, 298 4, 689, 892
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 1, 269, 000 905, 000 - 317, 000
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 1, 269, 000 905, 000 - 317, 000
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 1, 802, 113 - 385, 298 4,372,892
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 3,602 3,662 3, 465
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 34, 302 35, 399 36, 125
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 5, 350, 299 6, 222, 857
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 12.22% 13.23%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 1, 367,772 1, 824,710
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.01 1.30
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 6, 718, 071 8,047, 567

55



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 43
UM Sai nt Joseph
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue
Regul at ed Servi ces 362, 415, 700 337, 661, 500 354, 785, 600
Unr egul at ed Services 3, 646, 000 50, 839, 541 48, 931, 087
TOTAL 366, 061, 700 388, 501, 041 403, 716, 687
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 295, 642, 876 251, 556, 991 286, 710, 810
Unr egul at ed Services 3,416, 124 24,022, 541 23,504, 013
TOTAL 299, 059, 000 275, 579, 532 310, 214, 823
O her Operating Revenue
Regul at ed Servi ces 386, 513 135, 501 389, 513
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 2,769, 487 8,677,499 5,934,776
TOTAL 3, 156, 000 8, 813, 000 6, 324, 288
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 296, 029, 390 251, 692, 492 287,100, 323
Unregul ated Services 6, 185, 610 32,700, 040 29, 438, 788
Tot al 302, 215, 000 284, 392, 532 316, 539, 111
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 288, 320, 773 284, 063, 416 286, 684, 281
Tot al 310, 933, 000 350, 245, 000 344, 709, 199
Net Qperating Profit (Loss)
Regul at ed Servi ces 7,708, 617 -32,370,924 416, 042
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -16, 426, 617 - 33,481, 543 -28, 586, 130
Tot al - 8,718, 000 - 65, 852, 468 - 28,170, 088
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): -5,413, 000 -6, 660, 000 3,763, 186
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue 1, 897, 000 5,113, 000 3,763, 182
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 7,310, 000 11, 773, 000 -4
Total Excess Profit (Loss): -14,131, 000 -72,512, 468 -24, 406, 902
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 15, 747 15,176 16, 217
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 89, 366 87,511 92,717
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 22,275,798 23,781, 364
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 12. 30% 12. 74%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 7,175,579 11, 396, 757
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.03 1.70
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 39, 525, 607 45, 000, 037

56



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 44
UM Shor e Medi cal Chestertown
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 64, 508, 977 62, 791, 800 65, 051, 700
Unr egul at ed Services 3,555, 824 3,590, 997 3,579, 369
TOTAL 68, 064, 801 66, 382, 797 68, 631, 069
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 49, 270, 622 48, 143, 539 49, 528, 431
Unregul ated Services 3,379,824 3, 231,997 2,157, 309
TOTAL 52, 650, 446 51, 375, 536 51, 685, 740
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 53, 666 80, 723 204, 497
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 230,078 223,432 251, 867
TOTAL 283, 744 304, 155 456, 364
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 49, 324, 288 48, 224, 262 49,732,928
Unregul ated Services 3, 609, 902 3, 455, 429 2,409, 176
Tot al 52, 934, 190 51, 679, 691 52,142,104
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 40, 990, 213 46, 820, 546 50, 318, 541
Tot al 47, 353, 897 51, 865, 507 54, 293, 956
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 8,334,074 1,403,716 -585, 613
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -2,753,782 -1, 589, 533 -1, 566, 239
Tot al 5, 580, 293 -185, 817 -2,151, 852
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 969, 715 1, 251, 802 204, 000
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue 1, 041, 405 1, 251, 802 602, 016
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 71, 690 0 398, 016
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 6, 550, 008 1, 065, 985 -1,947, 852
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 1, 886 2,217 2, 666
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 20,771 21, 256 20,719
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 5, 346, 104 5,751, 989
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 13. 79% 15. 11%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 499, 904 1, 268, 429
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 0.49 1.22
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 10, 843, 377 12,317,063

57



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 45
UM Shore Medi cal Dorchester
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 58, 994, 300 59, 897, 900 59, 359, 900
Unr egul at ed Services 3,348, 901 3,250, 913 2,472,867
TOTAL 62, 343, 201 63, 148, 813 61, 832, 767
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 44,745, 961 46, 893, 694 47,614, 371
Unr egul at ed Services 950, 026 1, 296, 834 734, 338
TOTAL 45, 695, 987 48, 190, 528 48, 348, 709
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 144,703 113, 804 222,340
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 269, 579 279, 429 262, 525
TOTAL 414, 282 393, 233 484, 865
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 44,890, 664 47,007, 498 47,836, 711
Unr egul at ed Services 1, 219, 605 1, 576, 264 996, 863
Tot al 46, 110, 269 48, 583, 761 48, 833,574
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 36, 608, 786 38, 660, 406 40, 439, 854
Tot al 39,673, 868 42, 329, 887 43,070, 521
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 8, 281, 878 8,347,091 7,396, 857
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -1, 845, 477 -2,093, 218 -1, 633, 805
Tot al 6, 436, 401 6, 253,874 5, 763, 053
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): -211,918 376,979 - 186, 965
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue -211,918 376, 979 - 186, 965
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 6, 224, 482 6, 630, 853 5,576, 088
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 2,408 2,611 2,844
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 23,248 26,416 24,509
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 5,737, 310 5,616, 657
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 12. 19% 11. 75%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 750, 728 440, 210
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1. 27 0.97
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 13, 162, 850 11, 621, 512

58



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 46
UM Shor e Medi cal Easton
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 187, 483, 400 186, 358, 600 184, 647, 500
Unr egul at ed Services 43,572, 553 39, 880, 874 37,070, 671
TOTAL 231, 055, 953 226, 239, 474 221,718,171
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 152, 823, 340 149, 505, 473 152, 889, 603
Unr egul at ed Services 14, 648, 824 14, 312, 219 13, 326, 855
TOTAL 167,472, 165 163, 817, 692 166, 216, 458
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 814,178 918, 482 3,652, 293
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 1, 841, 348 1, 650, 793 934, 678
TOTAL 2, 655,526 2,569, 275 4,586,971
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 153, 637, 519 150, 423, 955 156, 541, 896
Unr egul at ed Services 16, 490, 172 15, 963, 011 14, 261, 533
Tot al 170, 127, 691 166, 386, 967 170, 803, 429
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 140, 191, 581 137,324,774 141, 357, 659
Tot al 160, 828, 827 156, 018, 117 155, 789, 668
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Servi ces 13, 445,938 13, 099, 182 15, 184, 237
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -4,147,074 -2,730, 332 -170, 476
Tot al 9, 298, 864 10, 368, 850 15, 013, 761
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 7,882,051 4,002, 174 -1,952, 423
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue 7,882,051 4,002, 174 -1,952, 423
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 17, 180, 916 14, 371, 024 13, 061, 338
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 7,920 8,074 8, 313
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 42,620 48, 025 51, 873
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 13, 108, 829 12,141, 164
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 12. 64% 11. 21%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 2,207,562 2,544,508
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.04 1.10
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 26, 124, 017 25, 055, 040

59



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COWM SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 47
UM Upper Chesapeake
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014¢ June 2013 June 2012
Gross Patient Revenue:
Regul ated Services 157, 472, 100 290, 000, 800 283, 588, 000
Unr egul at ed Services 117, 500 226, 600 310, 400
TOTAL 157, 589, 600 290, 227, 400 283, 898, 400
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 138, 670, 800 241, 546, 300 237, 245, 612
Unr egul at ed Services 84, 900 121, 000 205, 200
TOTAL 138, 755, 700 241, 667, 300 237, 450, 812
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 1, 337, 000 2,938, 400 1, 355,018
Unr egul at ed Services 1, 275, 599 2,642, 600 6, 192, 982
TOTAL 2,612,599 5, 581, 000 7, 548, 000
Net QOperating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 140, 007, 800 244,484, 700 238, 600, 630
Unr egul at ed Services 1, 360, 499 2,763, 600 6, 398, 182
Tot al 141, 368, 299 247, 248, 300 244,998, 812
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Servi ces 116, 409, 100 220, 046, 741 217,111, 969
Tot al 122, 009, 400 228, 970, 300 225, 852, 000
Net Operating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Servi ces 23,598, 700 24,437, 959 21, 488, 661
Unregul ated Services - 4,239, 800 - 6,159, 959 -2,341,849
Tot al 19, 358, 900 18, 278, 000 19, 146, 812
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 187, 500 4,122,000 - 3,602, 000
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 187, 500 4,122,000 471, 000
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 4,073, 000
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 19, 546, 400 22, 400, 000 15, 544, 812
Total Regul ated I npatient Adm ssions: 5,940 12,589 12, 968
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 67,110 130, 608 123, 564
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 25, 243, 447 23, 360, 469
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 12. 77% 12. 46%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 4,387, 889 6, 498, 675
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 0.94 1.38
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 44,639, 054 43,097, 036

60

6 UM Upper Chesapeake changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FY E report of 6 months.



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COWM SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 48
Uni on Hospital of Cecil County
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 157, 913, 800 153, 372, 900 148, 428, 400
Unr egul at ed Services 31, 936, 900 35, 956, 700 36, 898, 300
TOTAL 189, 850, 700 189, 329, 600 185, 326, 700
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 130, 347, 100 125, 947, 900 121, 323, 300
Unregul ated Services 14, 803, 200 15, 230, 700 15, 504, 200
TOTAL 145, 150, 300 141, 178, 600 136, 827, 500
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 2,557, 500 2,787, 800 618, 900
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 2, 080, 699 2,087, 100 1, 916, 900
TOTAL 4,638,199 4,874,900 2, 535, 800
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 132, 904, 600 128, 735, 700 121, 942, 200
Unr egul at ed Services 16, 883, 899 17, 317, 800 17, 421, 100
Tot al 149, 788, 499 146, 053, 500 139, 363, 300
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 117, 995, 300 112, 982, 000 106, 988, 700
Tot al 146, 416, 200 140, 941, 500 134, 374, 600
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 14,909, 300 15, 753, 700 14, 953, 500
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -11, 537, 000 -10, 641, 700 -9, 964, 800
Tot al 3,372,300 5,112, 000 4,988, 700
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 7,438, 200 4,169, 500 - 732, 300
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 7,725, 300 4,771,900 - 344, 500
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 287,100 602, 400 387, 800
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 10, 810, 500 9, 281, 500 4, 256, 400
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 5, 045 5, 750 6, 347
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 44, 457 47,563 50, 709
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 10, 347, 606 10, 063, 684
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 10. 60% 11. 24%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 2,510, 893 3,481, 422
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.09 1. 60
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 20, 395, 729 19, 633, 126

61



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 49

Uni versity M EMSS
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:

Regul at ed Servi ces 202, 364, 100 188, 680, 900 181, 819, 200

Unr egul at ed Services 5, 165, 260 3, 609, 000 3, 046, 000

TOTAL 207, 529, 360 192, 289, 900 184, 865, 200
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):

Regul at ed Servi ces 166, 218, 825 154, 423, 000 154, 091, 408

Unregul at ed Services 5, 165, 260 3, 609, 000 3, 046, 000

TOTAL 171, 384, 085 158, 032, 000 157, 137, 408
O her Operating Revenue:

Regul at ed Servi ces 3,126, 000 3,091, 000 3,263, 000

Unr egul at ed Servi ces 0 0 0

TOTAL 3,126, 000 3,091, 000 3, 263, 000
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)

Regul at ed Servi ces 169, 344, 825 157, 514, 000 157, 354, 408

Unregul at ed Services 5, 165, 260 3, 609, 000 3, 046, 000

Tot al 174,510, 085 161, 123, 000 160, 400, 408
Total Operating Expenses:

Regul at ed Services 149, 776, 000 136, 670, 900 133, 571, 300

Tot al 155, 394, 000 144,594, 000 140, 164, 000
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):

Regul at ed Services 19, 568, 825 20, 843, 100 23,783, 108

Unr egul at ed Servi ces -452, 740 -4,314, 100 -3, 546, 700

Tot al 19, 116, 085 16, 529, 000 20, 236, 408
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 1, 500, 000 1, 500, 000 1, 500, 000

Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 900, 000 791, 450 1, 500, 000

Non- Qper ati ng Expenses - 600, 000 -708, 550 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 20, 616, 085 18, 029, 000 21, 736, 408
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 5, 367 7,874 8, 106
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 39, 0797 16, 780 17, 536

7 University MIEM SS was approved for an outpatient center allowing for less severe cases to be charged as an outpatient rather than an
inpatient admission.
62



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 50

Uni versity UMCC
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 20128
G oss Patient Revenue:

Regul at ed Servi ces 0 0 59, 320, 800

Unr egul at ed Services 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 59, 320, 800
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):

Regul at ed Servi ces 0 0 51,737,776

Unr egul at ed Services 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 51, 737,776
O her Operating Revenue:

Regul at ed Servi ces 0 0 94, 000

Unr egul at ed Servi ces 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 94, 000
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)

Regul at ed Servi ces 0 0 51, 831, 776

Unr egul at ed Services 0 0 0

Tot al 0 0 51, 831, 776
Total Operating Expenses:

Regul at ed Services 0 0 57,727, 800

Tot al 0 0 58, 704, 000
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):

Regul at ed Servi ces 0 0 -5, 896, 024

Unr egul at ed Servi ces 0 0 - 976, 200

Tot al 0 0 -6,872,224
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 0 0 349, 202

Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 0 0 335, 000

Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 -14, 202
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 0 0 - 6,523, 022
Total Regul ated I npatient Adm ssions: 0 0 1,534
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 0 0 38, 043

8 University UMCC financials were merged with UMMS beginning with FY 2013.
63



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COWM SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA
FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 51

Uni versity of Maryland Medical Center

FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG

Gross Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces
Unr egul at ed Services
TOTAL

Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces
Unr egul at ed Services
TOTAL

O her Operating Revenue
Regul at ed Servi ces
Unr egul at ed Servi ces
TOTAL

Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces
Unr egul at ed Servi ces
Tot al

Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Servi ces
Tot al

Net Operating Profit (Loss)

June 2014

1, 296, 211, 400
10, 519, 886
1, 306, 731, 286

1, 086, 670, 121
10, 407, 916
1,097,078, 037

18, 824, 460
50, 534, 530
69, 358, 990

1, 105, 494, 581
60, 942, 446
1, 166, 437, 027

1, 060, 074, 815
1,142,114, 001

June 2013°

1, 241, 601, 500
11, 074, 000
1, 252, 675, 500

1, 068, 680, 949
10, 489, 051
1,079, 170, 000

36, 092, 760
43, 072, 240
79, 165, 000

1,104, 773, 709
53, 561, 291
1, 158, 335, 000

1, 054, 664, 631
1,123, 809, 000

June 2012

1,179, 258, 000
11, 002, 797
1, 190, 260, 797

1, 016, 430, 615
10, 714, 232
1,027, 144, 847

13, 102, 329
38, 305, 671
51, 408, 000

1, 029, 532, 944
49, 019, 904
1,078, 552, 847

938, 351, 058
1, 019, 533, 500

Regul at ed Servi ces 45,419, 769 50, 109, 078 91, 181, 886
Unregul at ed Services -21, 096, 733 -15, 583,078 -32,162,539
Tot al 24,323,036 34, 526, 000 59, 019, 347
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 149, 439, 000 90, 290, 000 -114, 569, 797
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue 149, 439, 000 90, 290, 000 0
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 114, 569, 797
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 173,762, 036 124, 816, 000 -55, 550, 450
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 26, 874 26, 586 27,143
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 247, 851 204, 962 195, 504
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 113, 559, 962 100, 649, 960
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 15. 63% 14. 60%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 34, 282, 646 40, 583, 574
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.09 1.42
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 164, 464, 324 158, 111, 287

9University UMCC financials were merged with UMMC beginning in FY 2013.
64



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COWM SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 52
Washi ngt on Adventi st Hospital
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG Decenber 2014 June 2013 June 2012
Gross Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Services 260, 306, 100 245, 900, 400 260, 716, 100
Unr egul at ed Services 3,791 23,951 685, 558
TOTAL 260, 309, 891 245,924, 351 261, 401, 658
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 209, 906, 016 196, 111, 014 203, 900, 463
Unr egul at ed Services 3,791 23, 399 682, 387
TOTAL 209, 909, 807 196, 134, 413 204, 582, 850
Ot her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 1, 378, 906 3, 888, 835 2,588, 088
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 3,547, 691 2,651, 790 3,107, 623
TOTAL 4,926, 597 6, 540, 625 5,695, 711
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 211, 284, 922 199, 999, 849 206, 488, 551
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 3,551, 482 2,675,189 3,790, 010
Tot al 214, 836, 404 202, 675, 038 210, 278, 561
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Servi ces 194, 645, 259 199, 029, 900 203,178,114
Tot al 210, 709, 734 213, 396, 004 216, 661, 910
Net Operating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Servi ces 16, 639, 663 969, 949 3, 310, 437
Unr egul at ed Services -12,512,993 -11, 690, 915 -9, 693, 786
Tot al 4,126, 670 -10, 720, 966 -6, 383, 349
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): -1, 500, 747 -1,509, 711 -1,012, 274
Non- Oper ati ng Revenue -1, 500, 747 -1,509, 711 - 506, 403
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 505, 871
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 2,625,923 -12, 230,677 -7,395, 623
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 11, 472 11, 648 13,111
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 56, 831 60, 448 61, 504
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 23, 064, 406 24,244, 415
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 12. 50% 12. 58%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 7,362, 484 7,802, 369
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 1.00 1.00
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 45, 984, 233 45, 303, 339

65



HEALTH SERVI CES COST REVI EW COW SSI ON
DI SCLOSURE OF HOSPI TAL FI NANCI AL AND STATI STI CAL DATA

FI SCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014 Page 53
Western Maryl and Regional M C.
FI SCAL YEAR ENDI NG June 2014 June 2013 June 2012
G oss Patient Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 317, 898, 800 314, 237, 300 308, 555, 800
Unr egul at ed Services 62, 831, 500 60, 556, 700 57, 610, 800
TOTAL 380, 730, 300 374, 794, 000 366, 166, 600
Net Patient Revenue (NPR):
Regul at ed Servi ces 255, 447, 200 253, 404, 600 239, 944, 900
Unregul ated Services 37,907, 800 37, 853, 500 43,571, 300
TOTAL 293, 355, 000 291, 258, 100 283, 516, 200
O her Operating Revenue:
Regul at ed Servi ces 5, 313, 699 6, 605, 700 2,672,900
Unr egul at ed Servi ces 2,673,100 2,881, 300 2,376, 100
TOTAL 7,986, 799 9, 487, 000 5, 049, 000
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Regul at ed Servi ces 260, 760, 899 260, 010, 300 242,617, 800
Unregul ated Services 40, 580, 900 40, 734, 800 45, 947, 400
Tot al 301, 341, 799 300, 745, 100 288, 565, 200
Total Operating Expenses:
Regul at ed Services 221, 999, 899 230, 006, 375 240, 958, 708
Tot al 281, 594, 900 289, 875, 700 298, 432,900
Net Qperating Profit (Loss):
Regul at ed Services 38, 761, 001 30, 003, 925 1, 659, 092
Unr egul at ed Servi ces -19, 014, 101 -19, 134, 525 -11, 526, 792
Tot al 19, 746, 900 10, 869, 400 -9, 867,700
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss): 5,514, 799 4,332, 300 8, 144, 000
Non- Qper ati ng Revenue 5,514, 799 4,332, 300 8, 144, 000
Non- Qper ati ng Expenses 0 0 0
Total Excess Profit (Loss): 25, 261, 700 15, 201, 700 -1,723,700
Total Regul ated Inpatient Adm ssions: 11, 805 13, 029 13, 814
Total Regul ated Qutpatient Visits: 93, 304 96, 697 101, 271
Readmi ssi on Char ges: 21,784, 662 25, 583, 028
Ri sk Adj usted Readmi ssion Percent: 12. 78% 13. 70%
Potentially Preventabl e Conditions (PPC) Costs 5, 052, 564 9,317,773
Ri sk Adj usted PPC Rate: 0.84 1.37
Potentially Avoidable Uilization Costs: 40, 278, 963 49, 280, 850

66



HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION
DISCLOSURE OF HOSPTIAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA
FISCAL YEAR 2014-2012

ALL SPECIALTY HOSPITALS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING

Gross Patient Revenue

Net Patient Revenue (NPR)
Other Operating Revenue

Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Operating Expenses

Inpatient Admissions (IPAs)

Net Operating Profit (Loss)

Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss)
Total Excess Profits (Loss)

YEAR 2014

312,175,783
239,027,971
1,139,359
240,167,330
228,361,857
16,658
11,805,473
16,932,104
28,737,577

Adventist Behavioral Health — Rockville

FISCAL YEAR ENDING

Gross Patient Revenue

Net Patient Revenue (NPR)
Other Operating Revenue

Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Operating Expenses

Inpatient Admissions (IPAs)

Net Operating Profit (Loss)

Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss)
Total Excess Profits (Loss)

YEAR 2014

36,671,700
26,291,671
66,628
26,358,299
24,836,429
2,949
1,521,870
3,402,912
4,924,782

67

YEAR 2013

357,921,238
285,589,920
5,057,969
290,647,889
266,414,937
18,115
24,232,952
8,279,291
32,512,243

YEAR 2013

36,298,100
27,395,522
444,774
27,840,296
24,401,558
2,705
3,438,738
(1,191,069)
2,247,669

YEAR 2012

393,606,336
318,734,693
3,403,284
322,137,977
327,855,359
18,982
(5,717,382)
(6,174,190)
(11,891,572)

YEAR 2012

31,489,200
26,042,739
165,419
26,208,158
23,105,596
2,738
3,102,562
(2,598,512)
504,050



Adventist Rehab Hospital of MD

FISCAL YEAR ENDING

Gross Patient Revenue

Net Patient Revenue (NPR)
Other Operating Revenue

Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Operating Expenses

Inpatient Admissions (IPAs)

Net Operating Profit (Loss)

Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss)
Total Excess Profits (Loss)

Brook Lane Health Services

FISCAL YEAR ENDING

Gross Patient Revenue

Net Patient Revenue (NPR)
Other Operating Revenue

Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Operating Expenses

Inpatient Admissions (IPAs)

Net Operating Profit (Loss)

Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss)
Total Excess Profits (Loss)

YEAR 2014

63,183,083
31,243,964
393,446
31,637,410
34,784,403
1,801
(3,146,993)
103,663
(3,043,330)

YEAR 2014

14,512,500
11,103,500
120,300
11,223,800
14,386,700
1677
(3,162,900)
3,474,000
311,100

68

YEAR 2013

59,348,989
32,969,459
360,155
33,329,614
33,160,136
1,574
169,478
2,949,432
3,118,910

YEAR 2013

14,918,100
11,758,600
124,000
11,882,600
13,962,200
1,775
(2,079,600)
2,586,800
507,200

YEAR 2012

51,233,400
28,199,348
186,348
28,385,696
20,121,717
1,581
(736,021)
3,854,931
3,118,910

YEAR 2012

14,051,500
11,264,200
161,300
11,425,500
12,618,800
1,973
(1,193,300)
2,674,000
1,480,700



Adventist Behavioral Health — Eastern Shore

FISCAL YEAR ENDING

Gross Patient Revenue

Net Patient Revenue (NPR)
Other Operating Revenue

Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Operating Expenses

Inpatient Admissions (IPAs)

Net Operating Profit (Loss)

Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss)
Total Excess Profits (Loss)

Levindale Hospital

FISCAL YEAR ENDING

Gross Patient Revenue

Net Patient Revenue (NPR)
Other Operating Revenue

Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Operating Expenses

Inpatient Admissions (IPAs)

Net Operating Profit (Loss)

Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss)
Total Excess Profits (Loss)

YEAR 2014

2,409,200
1,896,662
0
1,896,662
576,673
297
1,319,989
0
1,319,989

YEAR 2014
*Under Acute

69

YEAR 2013

2,508,000
2,045,654
0
2,045,654
616,191
271
1,429,463
0
1,429,463

YEAR 2013

53,610,200
48,264,286
1,779,100
50,043,386
44,401,061
1,324
5,642,325
(3,534,070)
2,108,255

YEAR 2012

2,457,650
2,101,900
0
2,101,900
1,000,156
304
1,101,744
0
1,101,744

YEAR 2012

52,498,900
49,039,494
1,990,000
51,029,494
43,340,924
1,578
7,688,570
(7,177,520)
511,050



Mt. Washington Pediatric Hospital

FISCAL YEAR ENDING

Gross Patient Revenue

Net Patient Revenue (NPR)
Other Operating Revenue

Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Operating Expenses

Inpatient Admissions (IPAs)

Net Operating Profit (Loss)

Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss)
Total Excess Profits (Loss)

Sheppard Pratt Hospital

FISCAL YEAR ENDING

Gross Patient Revenue

Net Patient Revenue (NPR)
Other Operating Revenue

Net Operating Revenue (NOR)
Operating Expenses

Inpatient Admissions (IPAs)

Net Operating Profit (Loss)

Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss)
Total Excess Profits (Loss)

YEAR 2014

55,464,000
50,598,699
1,356,678
51,955,377
44,459,476
795
7,495,901
893,535
8,389,436

YEAR 2014

139,935,300
117,893,475
(797,693)
117,095,782
109,318,177
9,139
7,777,606
9,057,994
16,835,600

70

YEAR 2013

53,308,449
49,434,005
2,432,381
51,866,386
42,963,622
790
8,902,764
(1,320,561)
7,582,203

YEAR 2013

137,929,400
113,722,394
(82,441)
113,639,954
106,910,170
9,676
6,729,784
8,788,759
15,518,543

YEAR 2012

49,446,660
45,713,951
444,185
46,158,136
40,690,987
691
5,467,149
(3,419,720)
2,047,429

YEAR 2012

140,136,100
111,243,237
206,952
111,450,189
108,750,802
9,389
2,699,387
(41,437)
2,657,950



St. Luke Institute

FISCAL YEAR ENDING YEAR 2014 YEAR 2013 YEAR 2012
Gross Patient Revenue 0 0 6,213,526
Net Patient Revenue (NPR) 0 0 6,171,824
Other Operating Revenue 0 0 249,127
Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 0 0 6,420,951
Operating Expenses 0 0 7,420,561
Inpatient Admissions (IPAs) 0 0 83
Net Operating Profit (Loss) 0 0 (999,610)
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss) 0 0 2,997,905
Total Excess Profits (Loss) 0 0 1,998,295
University Specialty Hospital
FISCAL YEAR ENDING YEAR 2014 YEAR 2013 YEAR 2012
Gross Patient Revenue 0 0 46,079,400
Net Patient Revenue (NPR) 0 0 38,958,000
Other Operating Revenue 0 0 47
Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 0 0 38,957,953
Operating Expenses 0 0 61,805,816
Inpatient Admissions (IPAs) 0 0 645
Net Operating Profit (Loss) 0 0 (22,847,863)
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss) 0 0 (2,463,837)
Total Excess Profits (Loss) 0 0 (25,311,700)

71



CHANGE IN UNCOMPENSATED CARE (UCC): EXHIBIT I-a

REGULATED OPERATIONS

Listed in Alphabetical Order by Region

2013 2014
% Change
Hospital Gross Charity & uccC Gross Charity & uccC UuCcC
Area Hospital Revenues Bad Debts % Revenues Bad Debts % Amount

METRO Anne Arundel Medical Center 541,867,800 28,229,300 521 554,132,400 28,030,100 5.06 -0.7
Bon Secours Hospita 121,044,100 21,934,644 1812 129,714,300 18,907,653| 14.58 -13.8

Bowie Emergency Center 13,677,900 3,095,262 22.63 16,513,400 3,176,307 19.23 2.6

Doctors Community Hospital 216,854,500 20,137,582 9.29 222,145,400 21,083,439 9.49 4.7

Fort Washington Medical Center 46,156,625 6,289,082| 13.63 48,565,970 5,271,258 10.85 -16.2
Germantown Emergency Center 12,992,000 3,426,331 26.37 14,059,900 2,928,631 20.83 -145

Greater Baltimore Medica Center 421,137,700 13,135,500 312 426,965,000 14,448,600 3.38 10.0

Holy Cross Hospital 461,351,200 42,720,100 9.26 468,876,700 41,181,900 8.78 -3.6

Howard County General Hospital 278,901,600 16,701,844 5.99 281,805,600 15,945,000 5.66 -4.5

Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center 596,807,300 55,404,000 9.28 605,106,300 53,366,000 8.82 -3.7

Johns Hopkins Hospital 2,132,419,000 90,951,400 4.27 2,172,517,900 90,418,800 4.16 -0.6

Laurel Regional Hospital 121,542,100 17,298,770 14.23 118,865,000 13,262,786 11.16 -23.3
Levindale® 0 0 0 54,541,800 1,645,534 3.02 N/A

MedStar Franklin Square 469,792,200 33,165,956 7.06 486,467,000 28,840,763 5.93 -13.0

MedStar Good Samaritan 295,736,800 19,525,089 6.60 299,250,000 18,307,883 6.12 -6.2

MedStar Harbor Hospital 201,141,000 17,275,577 8.59 205,146,300 12,384,997 6.04 -28.3

MedStar Montgomery General 166,869,100 10,997,703 6.59 167,893,100 9,139,362 5.44 -16.9

MedStar Southern Maryland 259,132,417 17,742,561 6.85 261,812,300 21,607,448 8.25 218

MedStar Union Memorial 406,581,900 33,074,497 8.13 415,164,300 23,163,918 5.58 -30.0

Mercy Medical Center 470,759,600 39,008,070 8.29 489,187,300 39,462,900 8.07 12

FY 14 isthefirst year that Levindale was designated as an acute care hospital by CMS.

72




CHANGE IN UNCOMPENSATED CARE (UCC): EXHIBIT I-a

REGULATED OPERATIONS

Listed in Alphabetical Order by Region

2013 2014
% Change
Hospital Gross Charity & uccC Gross Charity & uccC UuCcC
Area Hospital Revenues Bad Debts % Revenues Bad Debts % Amount

Northwest Hospital Center 248,252,700 20,881,783 841 249,134,500 19,327,600 7.76 -1.4

Prince Georges Hospital Center 249,192,555 38,639,516| 1551 267,282,400 34,867,927 13.05 -9.8

Queen Anne's Emergency Center 4,999,900 246,148 4.92 5,190,800 327,866 6.32 33.2

Saint Agnes Hospital 404,669,900 32,203,974 7.96 410,191,100 25,327,088 6.17 -21.4

Shady Grove Adventist Hospital 375,189,800 25,364,171 6.76 383,323,300 29,442,581 7.68 16.1

Sinai Hospita of Baltimore 684,516,800 37,059,900 5.41 699,430,000 42,571,600 6.09 149

Suburban Hospital 280,578,500 14,223,180 5.07 289,286,600 12,582,100 4.35 -11.5

UM Baltimore Washington 376,812,800 36,844,300 9.78 393,181,900 31,494,716 8.01 -14.5

UM Midtown 216,173,800 32,903,997 15.22 222,427,600 33,531,633| 15.08 19

UM Rehabilitation & Orthopedic Intitute 115,227,400 5,988,426 5.20 118,262,200 8,436,183 7.13 40.9

UM Saint Joseph 337,661,500 17,305,468 5.13 362,415,700 22,836,124 6.30 320

UM Upper Chesapeake'! 290,000,800 17,640,400 6.08 157,472,100 8,242,700 5.23 N/A

University MIEMSS 188,680,900 42,108,564 | 22.32 202,364,100 40,596,352 20.06 -3.6

University of Maryland Medica Center 1,241,601,500 67,006,535 5.40 1,296,211,400 71,156,193 5.49 6.2

Washington Adventist Hospital 245,900,400 34,627,375| 14.08 260,306,100 31,746,079| 12.20 -8.3

METRO® 12,204,223,297 895,516,605 7.34 12,543,195,870 865,171,787 6.90 -34

1 UM Upper Chesapeake changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FY E report of 6 months.
2The Metro summary line excludes Levindale and UM Upper Chesapeake hospitals.

73




CHANGE IN UNCOMPENSATED CARE (UCC): EXHIBIT I-a
REGULATED OPERATIONS
Listed in Alphabetical Order by Region

2013 2014
% Change
Hospital Gross Charity & uccC Gross Charity & uccC uccC
Area Hospital Revenues Bad Debts % Revenues Bad Debts % Amount
RURAL Atlantic General Hospital 99,487,100 7,638,100 7.68 102,693,200 7,165,200 6.98 -6.2
Calvert Memorial Hospita 138,862,900 8,548,160 6.16 141,935,300 9,268,967 6.53 84
Carroll County General Hospital 249,075,200 11,694,600 4.70 251,985,400 11,185,592 4.44 -4.4
Frederick Memoria Hospital 337,093,700 20,318,595 6.03 339,660,800 22,831,994 6.72 124
Garrett County Memorial Hospital 42,302,400 4593416, 10.86 45,202,600 4,192,263 9.27 -8.7
McCready Hospital 17,975,600 1,495,267 8.32 16,638,000 1,412,273 8.49 -5.6
MedStar Saint Mary's Hospital 154,603,000 13,099,310 8.47 157,936,000 8,667,483 5.49 -33.8
Meritus Medical Center 301,350,700 21,682,200 7.20 305,141,600 22,551,500 7.39 4.0
Peninsula Regional Medical Center 412,641,500 28,334,500 6.87 416,388,900 24,743,900 5.94 -12.7
UM Charles Regional Medical Center 137,003,900 10,219,211 7.46 144,785,724 10,881,673 7.52 6.5
UM Harford Memorial Hospital®® 103,499,300 12,876,361 12.44 53,719,100 5,242,600 9.76 N/A
UM Shore Medical Chestertown 62,791,800 6,363,467 | 10.13 64,508,977 6,551,013| 10.16 29
UM Shore Medical Dorchester 59,897,900 4,186,127 6.99 58,994,300 5,504,997 9.33 315
UM Shore Medical Easton 186,358,600 10,916,970 5.86 187,483,400 11,857,425 6.32 8.6
Union Hospital of Cecil County 153,372,900 13,323,600 8.69 157,913,800 12,201,400 7.73 -8.4
Western Maryland Regional M. C. 314,237,300 21,637,900 6.89 317,898,800 20,653,700 6.50 -4.5
RURALY 2,667,054,500 184,051,423 6.90 2,709,166,801 179,669,380 6.63 -2.4
TOTALY |All Acute Hospitals 14,871,277,797 1,079,568,028 7.26 15,252,362,671 1,044,841,167 6.85 -3.2

13 UM Harford Memorial changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FY E report of 6 months.

4 The Rural summary line excludes UM Harford Memorial

5 Thetotal line excludes Levindale, UM Harford Memorial, and UM Upper Chesapeake Hospitals.

74




CHANGE IN UNCOMPENSATED CARE (UCC): EXHIBIT I-b

REGULATED OPERATIONS
Listed by Percentage of Uncompensated Care by Region

2013 2014
% Change
Hospital Gross Charity & uccC Gross Charity & uccC UuCcC
Area Hospital Revenues Bad Debts % Revenues Bad Debts % Amount

METRO Germantown Emergency Center 12,992,000 3,426,331 26.37 14,059,900 2,928,631 20.83 -145
University MIEMSS 188,680,900 42,108,564 | 22.32 202,364,100 40,596,352  20.06 -36

Bowie Emergency Center 13,677,900 3,095,262 | 22.63 16,513,400 3,176,307 19.23 26

UM Midtown 216,173,800 32,903,997 | 15.22 222,427,600 33,531,633 15.08 1.9

Bon Secours Hospital 121,044,100 21,934,644 | 18.12 129,714,300 18,907,653 14.58 -13.8

Prince Georges Hospital Center 249,192,555 38,639,516 | 15.51 267,282,400 34,867,927 13.05 9.8

Washington Adventist Hospital 245,900,400 34,627,375 | 14.08 260,306,100 31,746,079 12.20 -8.3

Laurel Regional Hospital 121,542,100 17,298,770 | 14.23 118,865,000 13,262,786 11.16 -233

Fort Washington Medical Center 46,156,625 6,289,082 | 13.63 48,565,970 5,271,258 10.85 -16.2

Doctors Community Hospital 216,854,500 20,137,582 9.29 222,145,400 21,083,439|  9.49 4.7

Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center 596,807,300 55,404,000 | 9.28 605,106,300 53,366,000  8.82 -3.7

Holy Cross Hospital 461,351,200 42,720,100 9.26 468,876,700 41,181,900 8.78 -36

MedStar Southern Maryland 259,132,417 17,742,561 | 6.85 261,812,300 21,607,448 825 21.8

Mercy Medical Center 470,759,600 39,008,070 | 8.29 489,187,300 39,462,900/ 807 1.2

UM Baltimore Washington 376,812,800 36,844,300 9.78 393,181,900 31,494,716 8.01 -145

Northwest Hospital Center 248,252,700 20,881,783 8.41 249,134,500 19,327,600  7.76 7.4

Shady Grove Adventist Hospital 375,189,800 25,364,171 6.76 383,323,300 29442581  7.68 16.1

UM Rehabilitation & Orthopedic Institute 115,227,400 5,988,426 5.20 118,262,200 8,436,183  7.13 40.9

Queen Anne's Emergency Center 4,999,900 246,148 4.92 5,190,800 327,866 6.32 33.2

UM Saint Joseph 337,661,500 17,305,468 5.13 362,415,700 22,836,124  6.30 320

75




CHANGE IN UNCOMPENSATED CARE (UCC): EXHIBIT I-b

REGULATED OPERATIONS
Listed by Percentage of Uncompensated Care by Region

2013 2014

Saint Agnes Hospital 404,669,900 32,203,974 7.96 410,191,100 25,327,088 6.17 -21.4
MedStar Good Samaritan 295,736,800 19,525,089 | 6.60 299,250,000 18,307,883|  6.12 -6.2
Sinai Hospital of Baltimore 684,516,800 37,059,900 5.41 699,430,000 42,571,600  6.09 14.9
MedStar Harbor Hospital 201,141,000 17,275,577 | 8.59 205,146,300 12,384,997  6.04 -28.3
MedStar Franklin Square 469,792,200 33,165,956 | 7.06 486,467,000 28,840,763|  5.93 -13.0
Howard County General Hospital 278,901,600 16,701,844 5.99 281,805,600 15,945,000| 5.66 -4.5
MedStar Union Memorial 406,581,900 33,074,497 | 8.13 415,164,300 23163918 558 -30.0
University of Maryland Medical Center 1,241,601,500 | 67,006,535 | 5.40 1,296,211,400 71,156,193  5.49 6.2
MedStar Montgomery General 166,869,100 10,997,703 | 6.59 167,893,100 9,139,362| 5.44 -16.9
UM Upper Chesapeake'® 290,000,800 17,640,400 | 6.08 157,472,100 8,242,700/ 523 N/A
Anne Arundel Medica Center 541,867,800 28,229,300 5.21 554,132,400 28,030,100 5.06 -0.7
Suburban Hospital 280,578,500 14,223,180 | 5.07 289,286,600 12,582,100,  4.35 -115
Johns Hopkins Hospital 2,132,419,000 90,951,400 | 4.27 2,172,517,900 90,418,800  4.16 -0.6
Greater Baltimore Medical Center 421,137,700 13,135,500 | 3.12 426,965,000 14,448600|  3.38 10.0
Levindale" 0 0 0 54,541,800 1,645534|  3.02 N/A
METRO® 12,204,223,297 | 895,516,605 | 7.34 12,543,195,870 865,171,787  6.90 -34

16 UM Upper Chesapeake changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FY E report of 6 months.
Y FY 14 isthefirst year that Levindale was designed as an acute care hospital by CMS.
18The Metro summary line excludes Levindale and UM Upper Chesapeake hospitals.

76




CHANGE IN UNCOMPENSATED CARE (UCC): EXHIBIT I-b
REGULATED OPERATIONS
Listed by Percentage of Uncompensated Care by Region

2013 2014
% Change
Hospital Gross Charity & uccC Gross Charity & uccC uccC
Area Hospital Revenues Bad Debts % Revenues Bad Debts % Amount
RURAL UM Shore Medical Chestertown 62,791,800 6,363,467, 10.13 64,508,977 6,551,013| 10.16 29
UM Harford Memorial Hospital*° 103,499,300 12,876,361 12.44 53,719,100 5,242,600 9.76 N/A
UM Shore Medical Dorchester 59,897,900 4,186,127 6.99 58,994,300 5,504,997 9.33 315
Garrett County Memorial Hospital 42,302,400 4593416, 10.86 45,202,600 4,192,263 9.27 -8.7
McCready Hospital 17,975,600 1,495,267 8.32 16,638,000 1,412,273 8.49 -5.6
Union Hospital of Cecil County 153,372,900 13,323,600 8.69 157,913,800 12,201,400 7.73 -8.4
UM Charles Regional Medical Center 137,003,900 10,219,211 7.46 144,785,724 10,881,673 7.52 6.5
Meritus Medical Center 301,350,700 21,682,200 7.20 305,141,600 22,551,500 7.39 4.0
Atlantic General Hospital 99,487,100 7,638,100 7.68 102,693,200 7,165,200 6.98 -6.2
Frederick Memoria Hospital 337,093,700 20,318,595 6.03 339,660,800 22,831,994 6.72 124
Calvert Memorial Hospital 138,862,900 8,548,160 6.16 141,935,300 9,268,967 6.53 84
Western Maryland Regional M. C. 314,237,300 21,637,900 6.89 317,898,800 20,653,700 6.50 -4.5
UM Shore Medical Easton 186,358,600 10,916,970 5.86 187,483,400 11,857,425 6.32 8.6
Peninsula Regional Medical Center 412,641,500 28,334,500 6.87 416,388,900 24,743,900 5.94 -12.7
MedStar Saint Mary's Hospital 154,603,000 13,099,310 8.47 157,936,000 8,667,483 5.49 -33.8
Carroll County General Hospital 249,075,200 11,694,600 4.70 251,985,400 11,185,592 444 -4.4
RURAL® 2,667,054,500 184,051,423 6.90 2,709,166,801 179,669,380 6.63 -2.4
TOTAL? |All Acute Hospitals 14,871,277,797 1,079,568,028 7.26 15,252,362,671 1,044,841,167 6.85 -3.2

UM Harford Memorial changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FY E report of 6 months.
20 The Rural summary line excludes UM Harford Memorial
21 The Total line excludes Levindale, UM Harford Memorial, and UM Upper Chesapeake Hospitals.

77




CHANGE IN TOTAL OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS: EXHIBIT Il-a

REGULATED & UNREGULATED OPERATIONS
Listed by Alphabetical Order

2013 2014
% Change | % Change
Regulated Unregulated Total Regulated Unregulated Total Reg. Total
Hospital Operating Operating Operating | Operating Operating Operating | Operating | Operating
All Acute Hospitals*? 646,386,668 -505,178,997| 141,207,673| 913,178,165 -516,346,047| 396,832,119 41.27 181.03
Anne Arundel Medical Center 16,002,451 -14,887,851 1,114,600 25,326,003 -13,213,903 12,112,100 58.26 986.68
Atlantic General Hospital 9,222,349 -7,995,621 1,226,727 8,601,500 -10,086,613 -1,485,113 -6.73 -221.06
Bon Secours Hospital 2,560,429 -13,579,925|  -11,019,496 15,956,273 -13,952,517 2,003,755 523.19 118.18
Bowie Emergency Center -945,065 -208,041 -1,153,106 1,943,397 34,401 1,977,798 305.64 271.52
Calvert Memorial Hospital 14,541,508 -7,631,293 6,910,215 16,797,976 -8,340,143 8,457,833 15.52 22.40
Carroll County General Hospital 25,286,993 -5,037,706 20,249,287 26,236,823 -5,435,765 20,801,058 3.76 2.72
Doctors Community Hospital 4,422,646 -7,140,124 -2,717,478 10,251,378 -9,356,366 895,012 131.79 132.94
Fort Washington Medical Center 1,223,777 -648,495 575,282 2,028,867 -648,722 1,380,145 65.79 139.91
Frederick Memorial Hospital 17,216,148 -17,819,196 -603,048 16,325,142 -13,195,104 3,130,038 -5.18 619.04
Garrett County Memorial Hospital 2,570,135 -1,284,004 1,286,131 4,171,544 -810,322 3,361,223 62.31 161.34
Germantown Emergency Center -1,690,370 -195,557 -1,885,927 -1,882,264 -37,105 -1,919,369 -11.35 -1.77
Greater Baltimore Medical Center 29,521,863 -14,587,186 14,934,677 30,962,700 -10,118,000 20,844,700 4.88 39.57
Holy Cross Hospital 42,986,566 -18,836,520 24,150,046 41,046,525 -17,751,525 23,295,000 -4.51 -3.54
Howard County General Hospital 18,538,282 -7,841,142 10,697,140 10,395,296 -6,818,406 3,576,890 -43.93 -66.56
Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center 5,832,881 -13,886,881 -8,054,000 21,241,512 -11,823,012 9,418,500 264.17 216.94
Johns Hopkins Hospital 17,927,223 -1,959,024 15,968,199 24,951,117 6,477,361 31,428,478 39.18 96.82
Laurel Regional Hospital -2,910,849 -7,359,314 -10,270,163 -3,598,137 -5,637,852 -9,235,989 -23.61 10.07
Levindale?® 0 0 0 7,214,700 -3,988,800 3,225,900 N/A N/A

2The All Acute Hospitals line excludes Levindale, UM Harford Memorial, and UM Upper Chesapeake Hospitals.

2 FY14isthefirst year that Levindale was designed as an acute care hospital by CMS.

78




CHANGE IN TOTAL OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS: EXHIBIT Il-a

REGULATED & UNREGULATED OPERATIONS
Listed by Alphabetical Order

2013 2014
% Change | % Change
Regulated Unregulated Total Regulated Unregulated Total Reg. Total
Hospital Operating Operating Operating | Operating Operating Operating | Operating | Operating
McCready Hospital -298,269 763,412 465,143 2,347,500 -583,451 1,764,049 887.04 279.25
MedStar Franklin Square 26,574,956 -26,514,792 60,164 40,797,801 -19,480,307 21,317,494 53.52 35332.31
MedStar Good Samaritan 12,773,906 -20,971,324 -8,197,418 25,433,656 -21,465,032 3,968,625 99.11 148.41
MedStar Harbor Hospital 12,288,534 -6,504,729 5,783,805 29,901,331 -9,668,488 20,232,843 143.33 249.82
MedStar Montgomery General 16,850,341 -9,763,710 7,086,631 14,950,082 -7,889,606 7,060,476 -11.28 -0.37
MedStar Saint Mary's Hospital 16,308,891 -6,063,773 10,245,118 20,371,965 -8,870,208 11,501,757 24.91 12.27
MedStar Southern Maryland -21,613,758 -6,037,146|  -27,650,904 3,162,651 -8,766,828 -5,604,177 114.63 79.73
MedStar Union Memorial 20,335,376 -26,559,115 -6,223,738 46,312,220 -31,775,042 14,537,178 127.74 333.58
Mercy Medical Center 15,429,893 -12,365,317 3,064,576 14,111,314 -7,804,301 6,307,013 -8.55 105.80
Meritus Medical Center 10,308,554 755,874 11,064,428 4,717,300 -220,400 4,496,900 -54.24 -59.36
Northwest Hospital Center 19,846,980 -6,563,890 13,283,090 23,464,469 -14,008,165 9,456,304 18.23 -28.81
Peninsula Regional Medical Center 25,869,524 -29,004,524 -3,135,000 36,419,854 -28,728,854 7,691,000 40.78 345.33
Prince Georges Hospital Center -2,474,588 -18,839,314 -21,313,902 4,536,729 -23,670,492 -19,133,763 283.33 10.23
Queen Anne’'s Emergency Center -3,508,488 0 -3,508,488 -3,317,840 0 -3,317,840 5.43 5.43
Saint Agnes Hospital 55,452,969 -29,226,624 26,226,345 53,398,364 -29,462,430 23,935,933 -3.71 -8.73
Shady Grove Adventist Hospital 28,935,249 -13,410,889 15,524,360 31,683,154 -14,534,203 17,148,951 9.50 10.46
Sinai Hospital of Batimore 50,470,369 -35,170,451 15,299,918 60,556,006 -32,615,013 27,940,993 19.98 82.62
Suburban Hospital 20,495,552 13,276,817 33,772,370 17,164,544 -14,538,791 2,625,753 -16.25 -92.23
UM Batimore Washington 2,919,627 -7,324,899 -4,405,272 26,085,945 -9,715,260 16,370,685 793.47 471.62
UM Charles Regional Medical Center 11,700,484 -1,700,312 10,000,172 12,894,884 -1,897,862 10,997,022 10.21 9.97

79




CHANGE IN TOTAL OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS: EXHIBIT Il-a

REGULATED & UNREGULATED OPERATIONS
Listed by Alphabetical Order

2013 2014
% Change | % Change
Regulated Unregulated Total Regulated Unregulated Total Reg. Total

Hospital Operating Operating Operating | Operating Operating Operating | Operating | Operating
UM Harford Memorial Hospital?* 6,070,368 -1,886,029 4,184,339 6,252,500 -1,463,100 4,789,400 N/A N/A
UM Midtown 17,952,942 -21,205,328 -3,252,386 22,996,711 -19,319,509 3,677,202 28.09 213.06
UM Rehabilitation & Orthopedic Institute -698,160 -592,139 -1,290,298 1,364,808 -831,695 533,113 295.49 141.32
UM Saint Joseph -32,370,924 -33,481,543|  -65,852,468 7,708,617 -16,426,617 -8,718,000 123.81 86.76
UM Shore Medical Chestertown 1,403,716 -1,589,533 -185,817 8,334,074 -2,753,782 5,580,293 493.72 3103.12
UM Shore Medical Dorchester 8,347,091 -2,093,218 6,253,874 8,281,878 -1,845,477 6,436,401 -0.78 2.92
UM Shore Medical Easton 13,099,182 -2,730,332 10,368,850 13,445,938 -4,147,074 9,298,864 2.65 -10.32
UM Upper Chesapeake® 24,437,959 -6,159,959 18,278,000 23,598,700 -4,239,800 19,358,900 N/A N/A
Union Hospital of Cecil County 15,753,700 -10,641,700 5,112,000 14,909,300 -11,537,000 3,372,300 -5.36 -34.03
University MIEMSS 20,843,100 -4,314,100 16,529,000 19,568,825 -452,740 19,116,085 -6.11 15.65
University of Maryland Medical Center 50,109,078 -15,583,078 34,526,000 45,419,769 -21,096,733 24,323,036 -9.36 -29.55
Washington Adventist Hospital 969,949 -11,690,915 -10,720,966 16,639,663 -12,512,993 4,126,670 1615.52 138.49
Western Maryland Regional Medical Center 30,003,925 -19,134,525 10,869,400 38,761,001 -19,014,101 19,746,900 29.19 81.67

UM Harford Memorial changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FY E report of 6 months.
2 UM Upper Chesapeake changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FY E report of 6 months.

80



CHANGE IN TOTAL OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS: EXHIBIT II-b

REGULATED & UNREGULATED OPERATIONS
Listed by Total Operating Profit/Loss

2013 2014
% Change | % Change
Regulated Unregulated Total Regulated Unregulated Total Reg. Total
Hospital Operating Operating Operating | Operating Operating Operating | Operating | Operating
All Acute Hospital s 646,386,668 -505,178,997| 141,207,673| 913,178,165 -516,346,047| 396,832,119 41.27 181.03
Johns Hopkins Hospital 17,927,223 -1,959,024 15,968,199 24,951,117 6,477,361 31,428,478 39.18 96.82
Sinai Hospital of Baltimore 50,470,369 -35,170,451 15,299,918 60,556,006 -32,615,013 27,940,993 19.98 82.62
University of Maryland Medical Center 50,109,078 -15,583,078 34,526,000 45,419,769 -21,096,733 24,323,036 -9.36 -29.55
Saint Agnes Hospital 55,452,969 -29,226,624 26,226,345 53,398,364 -29,462,430 23,935,933 -3.71 -8.73
Holy Cross Hospital 42,986,566 -18,836,520 24,150,046 41,046,525 -17,751,525 23,295,000 -4.51 -354
MedStar Franklin Square 26,574,956 -26,514,792 60,164 40,797,801 -19,480,307 21,317,494 53.52 35332.31
Greater Baltimore Medical Center 29,521,863 -14,587,186 14,934,677 30,962,700 -10,118,000 20,844,700 4.88 39.57
Carroll County General Hospital 25,286,993 -5,037,706 20,249,287 26,236,823 -5,435,765 20,801,058 3.76 2.72
MedStar Harbor Hospital 12,288,534 -6,504,729 5,783,805 29,901,331 -9,668,488 20,232,843 143.33 249.82
Western Maryland Regional M. C. 30,003,925 -19,134,525 10,869,400 38,761,001 -19,014,101 19,746,900 29.19 81.67
UM Upper Chesapeake?’ 24,437,959 -6,159,959 18,278,000 23,598,700 -4,239,800 19,358,900 -3.43 591
University MIEMSS 20,843,100 -4,314,100 16,529,000 19,568,825 -452,740 19,116,085 -6.11 15.65
Shady Grove Adventist Hospital 28,935,249 -13,410,889 15,524,360 31,683,154 -14,534,203 17,148,951 9.50 10.46
UM Batimore Washington 2,919,627 -7,324,899 -4,405,272 26,085,945 -9,715,260 16,370,685 793.47 471.62
MedStar Union Memorial 20,335,376 -26,559,115 -6,223,738 46,312,220 -31,775,042 14,537,178 127.74 333.58
Anne Arundel Medical Center 16,002,451 -14,887,851 1,114,600 25,326,003 -13,213,903 12,112,100 58.26 986.68
MedStar Saint Mary's Hospital 16,308,891 -6,063,773 10,245,118 20,371,965 -8,870,208 11,501,757 24.91 12.27
UM Charles Regional Medical Center 11,700,484 -1,700,312 10,000,172 12,894,884 -1,897,862 10,997,022 10.21 9.97

%The All Acute Hospitals line excludes Levindale, UM Harford Memorial, and UM Upper Chesapeake Hospitals.

27 UM Upper Chesapeake changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FY E report of 6 months.

81




CHANGE IN TOTAL OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS: EXHIBIT II-b

REGULATED & UNREGULATED OPERATIONS
Listed by Total Operating Profit/Loss

2013 2014
% Change | % Change
Regulated Unregulated Total Regulated Unregulated Total Reg. Total
Hospital Operating Operating Operating | Operating Operating Operating | Operating | Operating
Northwest Hospital Center 19,846,980 -6,563,890 13,283,090 23,464,469 -14,008,165 9,456,304 18.23 -28.81
Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center 5,832,881 -13,886,881 -8,054,000 21,241,512 -11,823,012 9,418,500 264.17 216.94
UM Shore Medical Easton 13,099,182 -2,730,332 10,368,850 13,445,938 -4,147,074 9,298,864 2.65 -10.32
Calvert Memorial Hospital 14,541,508 -7,631,293 6,910,215 16,797,976 -8,340,143 8,457,833 15.52 22.40
Peninsula Regional Medical Center 25,869,524 -29,004,524 -3,135,000 36,419,854 -28,728,854 7,691,000 40.78 345.33
MedStar Montgomery General 16,850,341 -9,763,710 7,086,631 14,950,082 -7,889,606 7,060,476 -11.28 -0.37
UM Shore Medical Dorchester 8,347,091 -2,093,218 6,253,874 8,281,878 -1,845,477 6,436,401 -0.78 2.92
Mercy Medical Center 15,429,893 -12,365,317 3,064,576 14,111,314 -7,804,301 6,307,013 -8.55 105.80
UM Shore Medical Chestertown 1,403,716 -1,589,533 -185,817 8,334,074 -2,753,782 5,580,293 493.72 3103.12
UM Harford Memorial Hospital?® 6,070,368 -1,886,029 4,184,339 6,252,500 -1,463,100 4,789,400 N/A N/A
Meritus Medical Center 10,308,554 755,874 11,064,428 4,717,300 -220,400 4,496,900 -54.24 -59.36
Washington Adventist Hospital 969,949 -11,690,915 -10,720,966 16,639,663 -12,512,993 4,126,670 1615.52 138.49
MedStar Good Samaritan 12,773,906 -20,971,324 -8,197,418 25,433,656 -21,465,032 3,968,625 99.11 148.41
UM Midtown 17,952,942 -21,205,328 -3,252,386 22,996,711 -19,319,509 3,677,202 28.09 213.06
Howard County General Hospital 18,538,282 -7,841,142 10,697,140 10,395,296 -6,818,406 3,576,890 -43.93 -66.56
Union Hospita of Cecil County 15,753,700 -10,641,700 5,112,000 14,909,300 -11,537,000 3,372,300 -5.36 -34.03
Garrett County Memorial Hospital 2,570,135 -1,284,004 1,286,131 4,171,544 -810,322 3,361,223 62.31 161.34
Levindale?® 0 0 0 7,214,700 -3,988,800 3,225,900 N/A N/A
Frederick Memorial Hospital 17,216,148 -17,819,196 -603,048 16,325,142 -13,195,104 3,130,038 -5.18 619.04

2 UM Harford Memorial changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FY E report of 6 months.
2 FY14isthefirst year that Levindale was designed as an acute care hospital by CMS.

82




CHANGE IN TOTAL OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS: EXHIBIT II-b

REGULATED & UNREGULATED OPERATIONS
Listed by Total Operating Profit/Loss

2013 2014
% Change | % Change
Regulated Unregulated Total Regulated Unregulated Total Reg. Total

Hospital Operating Operating Operating | Operating Operating Operating | Operating | Operating
Suburban Hospital 20,495,552 13,276,817 33,772,370 17,164,544 -14,538,791 2,625,753 -16.25 -92.23
Bon Secours Hospital 2,560,429 -13,579,925|  -11,019,496 15,956,273 -13,952,517 2,003,755 523.19 118.18
Bowie Emergency Center -945,065 -208,041 -1,153,106 1,943,397 34,401 1,977,798 305.64 271.52
McCready Hospital -298,269 763,412 465,143 2,347,500 -583,451 1,764,049 887.04 279.25
Fort Washington Medical Center 1,223,777 -648,495 575,282 2,028,867 -648,722 1,380,145 65.79 139.91
Doctors Community Hospital 4,422,646 -7,140,124 -2,717,478 10,251,378 -9,356,366 895,012 131.79 132.94
UM Rehabilitation & Orthopedic Institute -698,160 -592,139 -1,290,298 1,364,808 -831,695 533,113 295.49 141.32
Atlantic General Hospital 9,222,349 -7,995,621 1,226,727 8,601,500 -10,086,613 -1,485,113 -6.73 -221.06
Germantown Emergency Center -1,690,370 -195,557 -1,885,927 -1,882,264 -37,105 -1,919,369 -11.35 -1.77
Queen Anne's Emergency Center -3,508,488 0 -3,508,488 -3,317,840 0 -3,317,840 5.43 5.43
MedStar Southern Maryland -21,613,758 -6,037,146 -27,650,904 3,162,651 -8,766,828 -5,604,177 114.63 79.73
UM Saint Joseph -32,370,924 -33,481,543 -65,852,468 7,708,617 -16,426,617 -8,718,000 123.81 86.76
Laurel Regional Hospital -2,910,849 -7,359,314 -10,270,163 -3,598,137 -5,637,852 -9,235,989 -23.61 10.07
Prince Georges Hospital Center -2,474,588 -18,839,314 -21,313,902 4,536,729 -23,670,492 -19,133,763 283.33 10.23

83




TOTAL EXCESSPROFIT/LOSS: EXHIBIT Il1-a
Listed by Alphabetical Order

2013 2014
Excess Excess % Change in
Hospital Profit/Loss Profit/Loss Excess
All Acute Hospitals* 515,138,415 867,825,669 68.46
Anne Arundel Medical Center 45,341,200 39,203,200 -13.54
Atlantic General Hospital 2,725,952 976,248 -64.19
Bon Secours Hospital -9,627,191 3,569,505 137.08
Bowie Emergency Center -1,153,106 1,977,798 271.52
Calvert Memoria Hospital 6,916,629 6,802,728 -1.65
Carroll County General Hospital 30,673,703 27,155,986 -11.47
Doctors Community Hospital -1,415,078 651,801 146.06
Fort Washington Medical Center 576,030 1,380,752 139.70
Frederick Memorial Hospital 10,738,933 16,993,038 58.24
Garrett County Memorial Hospital 2,041,070 4,238,955 107.68
Germantown Emergency Center -2,264,592 -2,327,154 -2.76
Greater Baltimore Medical Center 33,230,610 40,539,700 22.00
Holy Cross Hospital 37,428,046 46,558,000 24.39
Howard County General Hospital 19,389,706 9,886,601 -49.01
Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center -6,796,000 11,105,000 263.40
Johns Hopkins Hospital 51,063,077 66,850,174 30.92
Laurel Regiona Hospital -1,570,163 -685,989 56.31
Levindale™ 0 6,801,826 N/A
McCready Hospital 429,845 1,871,567 335.40
MedStar Franklin Square 425,534 21,563,555 4967.41
MedStar Good Samaritan -8,126,384 3,971,844 148.88
MedStar Harbor Hospital 6,061,104 20,739,733 242.18
MedStar Montgomery General 7,262,526 7,075,846 -2.57
MedStar Saint Mary's Hospital 12,348,616 12,271,586 -0.62
MedStar Southern Maryland -21,613,758 -5,582,219 74.17
MedStar Union Memoria -1,472,759 20,389,661 1484.45
Mercy Medical Center 31,020,207 16,016,399 -48.37
Meritus Medical Center 9,116,228 18,982,900 108.23

0The All Acute Hospitals line excludes Levindale, UM Harford Memorial, and UM Upper Chesapeake Hospitals.

SLFY 14 isthefirst year that Levindale was designed as an acute care hospital by CMS.

84




TOTAL EXCESSPROFIT/LOSS: EXHIBIT Il1-a
Listed by Alphabetical Order

2013 2014
Excess Excess % Change in
Hospital Profit/Loss Profit/Loss Excess
Northwest Hospital Center 23,613,990 25,618,214 8.49
Peninsula Regional Medical Center 10,719,000 29,420,000 174.47
Prince Georges Hospital Center 1,028,098 3,192,390 210.51
Queen Anne’'s Emergency Center -3,458,234 -3,347,238 3.21
Saint Agnes Hospital 41,883,345 44,871,382 7.13
Shady Grove Adventist Hospital 15,263,693 18,326,992 20.07
Sinai Hospital of Baltimore 34,266,918 57,740,993 68.50
Suburban Hospital 38,134,858 16,401,687 -56.99
UM Baltimore Washington -4,380,643 19,474,047 544.55
UM Charles Regional Medical Center 4,734,172 10,169,022 114.80
UM Harford Memorial Hospital® 11,524,339 6,704,700 N/A
UM Midtown -3,684,386 3,078,202 183.55
UM Rehabilitation & Orthopedic Institute -385,298 1,802,113 567.72
UM Saint Joseph -72,512,468 -14,131,000 80.51
UM Shore Medical Chestertown 1,065,985 6,550,008 514.46
UM Shore Medical Dorchester 6,630,853 6,224,482 -6.13
UM Shore Medical Easton 14,371,024 17,180,916 19.55
UM Upper Chesapeake™ 22,400,000 19,546,400 N/A
Union Hospital of Cecil County 9,281,500 10,810,500 16.47
University MIEMSS 18,029,000 20,616,085 14.35
University of Maryland Medical Center 124,816,000 173,762,036 39.21
Washington Adventist Hospital -12,230,677 2,625,923 121.47
Western Maryland Regional Medical Center 15,201,700 25,261,700 66.18

$2UM Harford Memorial changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FY E report of 6

months.

33 UM Upper Chesapeake changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FY E report of 6

months.

85




TOTAL EXCESSPROFIT/LOSS: EXHIBIT I1I-b
Listed by Excess Profit/Loss

2013 2014
% Change
in
Hospital Excess Profit/Loss | Excess Profit/Loss Excess
All Acute Hospitals* 515,138,415 867,825,669 68.46
University of Maryland Medical Center 124,816,000 173,762,036 39.21
Johns Hopkins Hospital 51,063,077 66,850,174 30.92
Sinai Hospital of Baltimore 34,266,918 57,740,993 68.50
Holy Cross Hospital 37,428,046 46,558,000 24.39
Saint Agnes Hospital 41,883,345 44,871,382 7.13
Gresater Baltimore Medical Center 33,230,610 40,539,700 22.00
Anne Arundel Medical Center 45,341,200 39,203,200 -13.54
Peninsula Regional Medical Center 10,719,000 29,420,000 174.47
Carroll County General Hospital 30,673,703 27,155,986 -11.47
Northwest Hospital Center 23,613,990 25,618,214 8.49
Western Maryland Regional Medical Center 15,201,700 25,261,700 66.18
MedStar Franklin Square 425,534 21,563,555 4967.41
MedStar Harbor Hospital 6,061,104 20,739,733 242.18
University MIEMSS 18,029,000 20,616,085 14.35
MedStar Union Memorial -1,472,759 20,389,661 1484.45
UM Upper Chesapeake® 22,400,000 19,546,400 N/A
UM Baltimore Washington -4,380,643 19,474,047 544.55
Meritus Medical Center 9,116,228 18,982,900 108.23
Shady Grove Adventist Hospital 15,263,693 18,326,992 20.07
UM Shore Medical Easton 14,371,024 17,180,916 19.55
Frederick Memoria Hospital 10,738,933 16,993,038 58.24
Suburban Hospital 38,134,858 16,401,687 -56.99
Mercy Medical Center 31,020,207 16,016,399 -48.37
MedStar Saint Mary's Hospita 12,348,616 12,271,586 -0.62
Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center -6,796,000 11,105,000 263.40
Union Hospital of Cecil County 9,281,500 10,810,500 16.47
UM Charles Regiona Medical Center 4,734,172 10,169,022 114.80
Howard County General Hospital 19,389,706 9,886,601 -49.01

%The All Acute Hospitals line excludes Levindale, UM Harford Memorial, and UM Upper Chesapeake Hospitals.
35 UM Upper Chesapeake changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FY E report of 6

months.

86




TOTAL EXCESSPROFIT/LOSS: EXHIBIT I1I-b

Listed by Excess Profit/Loss

2013 2014
% Change
in
Hospital Excess Profit/Loss | Excess Profit/Loss Excess
MedStar Montgomery General 7,262,526 7,075,846 -2.57
Calvert Memorial Hospital 6,916,629 6,802,728 -1.65
Levindale® 0 6,801,826 N/A
UM Harford Memorial Hospital® 11,524,339 6,704,700 N/A
UM Shore Medical Chestertown 1,065,985 6,550,008 514.46
UM Shore Medical Dorchester 6,630,853 6,224,482 -6.13
Garrett County Memorial Hospital 2,041,070 4,238,955 107.68
MedStar Good Samaritan -8,126,384 3,971,844 148.88
Bon Secours Hospital -9,627,191 3,569,505 137.08
Prince Georges Hospital Center 1,028,098 3,192,390 210.51
UM Midtown -3,684,386 3,078,202 183.55
Washington Adventist Hospital -12,230,677 2,625,923 121.47
Bowie Emergency Center -1,153,106 1,977,798 271.52
McCready Hospital 429,845 1,871,567 335.40
UM Rehahilitation & Orthopedic Institute -385,298 1,802,113 567.72
Fort Washington Medical Center 576,030 1,380,752 139.70
Atlantic General Hospital 2,725,952 976,248 -64.19
Doctors Community Hospital -1,415,078 651,801 146.06
Laurel Regional Hospital -1,570,163 -685,989 56.31
Germantown Emergency Center -2,264,592 -2,327,154 -2.76
Queen Anne’'s Emergency Center -3,458,234 -3,347,238 3.21
MedStar Southern Maryland -21,613,758 -5,582,219 74.17
UM Saint Joseph -72,512,468 -14,131,000 80.51

%6 FY 14 isthefirst year that Levindale was designed as an acute care hospital by CMS.
37 UM Harford Memorial changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FY E report of 6

months.

87




Title 10 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND MENTAL
HYGIENE

Subtitle 37 HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION

Chapter 01 Uniform Accounting and Reporting System for Hospitals and Related
Institutions
Authority: Health-General Article, §§ 19-207, 19-212. and 19-215, Annotated Code of Maryland

NOTICE OF FINAL ACTION
On November 18, 2015, the Health Services Cost Review Commission adopted amendments to Regulation .02
under COMAR 10.37.01 “Uniform Accounting and Reporting System for Hospitals and Related Institutions.”
This action, which was proposed for adoption in 42:20 Md. R. 1268 (October 2, 2015), has been adopted as proposed.
Effective Date: November 28, 2015
JOHN M. COLMERS

Chairman
Health Services Cost Review Commission



PROPOSED ACTION ON REGULATIONS

1268

D. — J. (text unchanged)

MARK J. BELTON
Secretary of Natural Resources

Title 10
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND MENTAL HYGIENE

Subtitle 37 HEALTH SERVICES COST
REVIEW COMMISSION

10.37.01 Uniform Accounting and Reporting
System for Hospitals and Related Institutions

Authority: Health-General Article, §§19-207, 19-212, and 19-215, Annotated
Code of Maryland

Notice of Proposed Action
(15-264-P-1]

The Health Services Cost Review Commission proposes to amend
Regulation 02 under COMAR 10.37.01 Uniform Accounting and
Reporting System for Hospitals and Related Institutions. This
action was considered and approved for promulgation by the
Commission at a previously announced open meeting held on August
12, 2018, notice of which was given pursuant to General Provisions
Article, §3-302(c), Annotated Code of Maryland. If adopted, the
proposed amendments will become effective on or about December
10,2015.

Statement of Purpose
The purpose of this action is to update the Commission’s manual
entitled “Accounting and Budget Manual for Fiscal and Operating
Management” (August, 1987), which has been incorporated by
reference.

Comparison to Federal Standards
There is no corresponding federal standard to this proposed action.

Estimate of Economic Impact
The proposed action has no economic impact.

Economic Impact on Small Businesses
The proposed action has minimal or no economic impact on small
businesses.

Impact on Individuals with Disabilities
The proposed action has no impact on individuals with disabilities.

Opportunity for Public Comment
Comments may be sent to Diana Kemp, Regulations Coordinator,
Health Services Cost Review Commission, 4160 Patterson Avenue,
Baltimore, MD 21215, or call 410-764-2576, or email to
diana kemp@maryland.gov, or fax to 410-358-6217. Comments will
be accepted through November 2, 2015. A public hearing has not
been scheduled.

Editor’s Note on Incorporation by Reference

Pursuant to State Government Article, §7-207, Annotated Code of
Maryland, the Accounting and Budget Manual for Fiscal and
Operating Management (August 1987), Supplement 23, has been
declared a document generally available to the public and appropriate
for incorporation by reference. For this reason, it will not be printed
in the Maryland Register or the Code of Maryland Regulations
(COMAR). Copies of this document are filed in special public
depositories located throughout the State. A list of these depositories
was published in 42:1 Md. R. 9 (January 9, 2015), and is available
online at www.dsd.state.md.us. The document may also be inspected
at the office of the Division of State Documents, 16 Francis Street,
Annapolis, Maryland 21401.

02 Accounting System; Hospitals.
A. The Accounting System.

(1) (text unchanged)

(2) The “Accounting and Reporting System for Hospitals”, also
known as the Accounting and Budget Manual for Fiscal and
Operating Management (August, 1987), is incorporated by reference,
including the following supplements:

(a)—(t) (text unchanged)
(u) Supplement 21 (June 5,2012); [and]
(v) Supplement 22 (March 3,2014); and
(w) Supplement 23 (July 28, 2015).
(3)—(5) (text unchanged)
B.—D. (text unchanged)

JOHN M. COLMERS
Chairman

Approval Procedures.
promulgation by the Co
meeting held on August

If adopted,

Maryland.
effective on or about Dece

MARYLAND REGISTER, VOLUME 42, ISSUE 20, FRIDAY, OCTOBER 2, 2015




Title 10 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND MENTAL
HYGIENE

Subtitle 37 HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION

Chapter10 Rate Application and Approval Procedures
Authority: Health-General Article, §§ 19-201 and 19-207, Annotated Code of Maryland
NOTICE OF FINAL ACTION

On November 18, 2015, the Health Services Cost Review Commission adopted amendments to Regulation .07-1
under COMAR 10.37.10 “Rate Application and Approval Procedure.” This action, which was proposcd for
adoption in 42:20 Md. R. 1268 - 1269 (October 2, 2015), has becn adopted as proposed.

Effective Date: November 28, 2015
JOHN M. COLMERS

Chairman
Health Services Cost Review Commission



PROPOSED ACTION ON REGULATIONS

1268

MARK J. BELTON

Secretary of Natural esourczp/

Title 10
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND MENTAL HYGIENE

Subtitle 37 BREALTH SERVICES COST
REVIBYW COMMISSION

10.37.01 Uniform \Accountihg and Reporting
System for Hospitals and Related Institutions

Authority: Health-General Article\§§19-207, 19-212, and 19-215, Annotated
Code &f Mgryland

Notice of Proposed Action
{15-76MP-1]

The Health Services Cost Review Commission proposes to amend
Regulation 02 under COMAR 10.37\1 Uniform Accounting and
Reporting System for Hospitals and, Related Institutions. This
action was considered and approved\ for promulgation by the
Commission at a previously announced open meeting held on August
12, 2015, notice of which/was given pursitiant to General Provisions
Article, §3-302(c), Anngtated Code of rylan(x!. If adopted, the
proposed amendments yill become effective\on of about December
10,2015.

Statement of Purpose
The purpose of tlfis action is to update the Cdmmission’s manual
entitled “Accountigg and Budget Manual for Fidgal and Operating
Management” (Ajigust, 1987), which has been\incorporated by
reference.

omparison to Federal Standards
There is no gorresponding federal standard to this pryposed action.

Estimate of Economic Impact
The proposed action has no economic impact.

Economic Impact on Small Businesses
The proposed action has minimal or no economic impact\on small
businesses

Impact on Individuals with Disabilities
The pyoposed action has no impact on individuals with disabiljties.

Opportunity for Public Comment
Comiments may be sent to Diana Kemp, Regulations Coordinatyr,
Healt{l Services Cost Review Commission, 4160 Patterson Avenug,
Baltymore, MD 21215, or call 410-764-2576, or email b
digha.kemp@maryland.gov, or fax to 410-358-6217. Comments will
b¢ accepted through November 2, 2015. A public hearing has not

Keen scheduled.

online at www .dsd.state.md.us.
at the office of the Division of

Annapolis, Maryland 21401.

following supplements:
t) (text unchanged)
(u) Supplement 21 (June 5, 2012); [and]
(v) Supplement 22 (March 3, 2014); and
(w) Supplement 23 (July 28, 2015).
(3)—(5) (text unchanged)

B.—D. (text unchanged)

Subtitle 37 HEALTH SERVICES COST

REVIEW COMMISSION
1037.10 Rate Application and Approval
Procedures
Authority: Health-General Article, §§19-201 and 19-207, Annotated Code of
Maryland
Notice of Proposed Action
[15-262-P]

The Health Services Cost Review Commission proposes to amend
Regulation .07-1 under COMAR 1037.10 Rate Application and
Approval Procedures. This action was considered and approved for
promulgation by the Commission at a previously announced open
meeting held on August 12, 2015, notice of which was given
pursuant to General Provisions Article, §3-302(c), Annotated Code of
Maryland. If adopted, the proposed amendments will become
effective on or about December 10, 2015.

Statement of Purpose
The purpose of this action is to conform COMAR to legislation
passed in the 2015 Session of the General Assembly that established
that outpatient services associated with the federal 340B Program and
that meet certain criteria shall be considered provided *“at the
hospital” and thereby subject to HSCRC rate jurisdiction.

Comparison to Federal Standards
There is no corresponding federal standard to this proposed action.

Estimate of Economic Impact
I. Summary of Economic Impact. Assumption of a moderate
benefit to regulated hospitals, third-party payers, and the general

public.

MARYLAND REGISTER, VOLUME 42, ISSUE 20, FRIDAY, OCTOBER 2, 2015




PROPOSED ACTION ON REGULATIONS

Revenue (R+/R-)
II. Types of Economic Expenditure

Impact. (E+/E-) Magnitude
A. On issuing agency: NONE
B. On other State agencies: NONE
C. On local governments: NONE
Benefit )
Cost (-) Magnitude
D. On regulated industries or
trade groups: +) Moderate
E. On other industries or
trade groups: +) Moderate
F. Direct and indirect effects
on public: €] Moderate

II1. Assumptions. (Identified by Impact Letter and Number from
Section II.)

D., E., and F. Assumption of moderate benefit to regulated
hospitals, third-party payers and the public is based on hospitals
paying less for certain outpatient drugs under the federal 340B
Program, which translates to payers and patients paying less as well.

Economic Impact on Small Businesses
The proposed action has minimal or no economic impact on small
businesses.

Impact on Individuals with Disabilities
The proposed action has no impact on individuals with disabilities.

Opportunity for Public Commen
Comments may be sent to Diana Kemp, Regulations Coordinator,
Health Services Cost Review Commission, 4160 Patterson Avenue,
Baltimore, MD 21215, or call 410-764-2576, or email to
diana.kemp@maryland.gov, or fax to 410-358-6217. Comments will
be accepted through November 2, 2015. A public hearing has not
been scheduled.

07-1 Outpatient Services — At the Hospital Determination.

A.—B. (text unchanged)

C. In accordance with Health-General Article, § 19-201,
Annotated Code of Maryland, the Commission’s rate-setting
jurisdiction extends to outpatient services provided at the hospital.
Outpatient services associated with the federal 340B Program under
the federal Public Health Service Act provided in a department of a
regulated hospital that, on or before June 1, 2015, is under a merged
asset hospital system, and which are physically located at another
regulated hospital under the same merged asset hospital system, shall
be subject to the rate-setting jurisdiction of the Commission.

D.~—J. (text unchanged)

JOHN M. COLMERS
Chairman

1269

yubtitle 37 HEALTH-SERVICES-€OSI
REVIEW COMMISSION

10.37.10 Rate Application and Apprpoval
Procedures
Authorityy Health-General Article, §§19-207, 19-219, and 19-222/Annotated
Code of Maryland

Notice of Proposed Action
[15-263-P)

The Health§ervices Cost Review Commission prpposes to amend
Regulation .10 ynder COMAR 10.37.10.10 Rate Application and
Approval Procedures. This action was considered and approved for
promulgation by e Commission at a previously announced open
meeting held on August 12, 2015, notice off which was given
pursuant to General Provisions Article, §3-302(¢), Annotated Code of
Maryland. If adopte, the proposed amengdments will become
effective on or about Décember 10, 2015.

Stitement of Purpo:
The purpose of this action is to assure
submitted in easily readable formats.

at rate applications are

Comparison o Federal Standards
There is no corresponding feYeral stapdard to this proposed action.

Estimate of Exonomic Impact
The proposed action has no ecologhic impact.

Economic Impact op'Small Businesses
The proposed action has miningal o no economic impact on small
businesses.

Impact on Indiyiduals with Disabilities
The groposed action has ng impact on individuals with disabilities.

Opportunpity for Public Comment
Comments may be senft to Diana Kemp, Rggulations Coordinator,
Health Services Cost Réview Commission, 4N60 Patterson Avenue,
Baltimore, MD 21245, or call 410-764-2376, or email to
diana kemp@maryla/d.gov, or fax to 410-358-62\7. Comments will
be accepted througl{ November 2, 2015. A publid, hearing has not
been scheduled.

.10 Docketing afid Receipt.

A.—B. (text unchanged)

C. The hogpital shall file an original and three copies oleach rate
application/and its supporting documents, if any. The Comission
may pregbribe the format to be used in the submission 8f rate
applicaptons and their supporting documents. In addition, the hospital
shall ffle with each rate application a certificate of service indicalng
that/he application and suppomng documents have been mailed Qr
sepved upon proceeding and upon the

Compfission at its off ces.

JOHN M. COLMERS
hairman

MARYLAND REGISTER, VOLUME 42, ISSUE 20, FRIDAY, OCTOBER 2, 2015



Title 10 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND MENTAL
HYGIENE

Subtitle 37 HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION

Chapter10 Rate Application and Approval Procedures
Authority: Health-General Article, §§ 19-207, 19-219. and 19-222, Annotated Code of Maryland
NOTICE OF FINAL ACTION

On November 18, 20135, the Health Services Cost Review Commission adopted amendments to Regulation .10
under COMAR 10.37.10 “Rate Application and Approval Procedure.” This action, which was proposed for
adoption in 42:20 Md. R. 1269 (October 2, 2015), has becn adopled as proposed.

Effective Date: November 28, 2015
JOHN M. COLMERS

Chairman
Health Services Cost Review Commission



PROPOSED ACTION ON REGULATIONS

Revenue TR+R
II. Types of Economic Expenditure
Impact. (E+/E-) Magnitude
A. On\jssuing agency: NONE
B. On othgr State agencies: NONE
C. On local’governments: NONE
Benefit )
Cost (-) Mggnitude
D. On regulated industri¢s or
trade groups: +) Moderate
E. On other industries &
trade groups: ) Moderate
F. Direct and indirect effects
on public: (+ Moderate
II1. Assumptions. (Identified by I\pactAetter and Number from
Section I1.)

D., E., and F. Assumption of mogerate benefit to regulated—

hospitals, third-party payers and the fublic is based on hospital
paying less for certain outpatient grugs \nder the federal 340B
Program, which translates to payers And patieNts paying less as well

Economic Impact/on Small Bus 4
The proposed action has migfmal or no econo¥pic impact on small

businesses.

Impact on Individuals with Disabilities

The proposed action hag no impact on individuals with di%abihties.

Opporftinity for Public Commen
Comments may be gent to Diana Kemp, Regulations Coordinator,
Health Services Cost/Review Commission, 4160 Pattershn Avenue,
Baltimore, MD 215, or call 410-764-2576, or \email to
diana kemp@maryjand.gov, or fax to 410-358-6217. Co
be accepted thropgh November 2, 2015. A public hearing\has not
been scheduled. )

.07-1 Outpati¢nt Services — At the Hospital Determination.

A.—B. (tekt unchanged)

C. In gccordance with Health-General Article, § 19-201,
Annotated /Code of Maryland, the Commission’s rate-setting
jurisdictiop extends to outpatient services provided at the hospithl.
Outpatiefit services associated with the federal 340B Program unda
the fedefal Public Health Service Act provided in a department of |
regulafed hospital that, on or before June 1, 20135, is under a mergea
assetfhospital system, and which are physically located at another
regyflated hospital under the same merged asset hospital system, shall
be fubject to the rate-setting jurisdiction of the Commission.

D —1J. (text unchanged)

JOHN M COEMERS
Chairman

ents will -

1269

Subtitle 37 HEALTH SERVICES COST
REVIEW COMMISSION

10.37.10 Rate Application and Approval
Procedures
Authority: Health-General Article, §§19-207, 19-219, and 19-222, Annotated
Code of Maryland

Notice of Proposed Action
[15-263-P}

The Health Services Cost Review Commission proposes to amend
Regulation .10 under COMAR 10.37.10.10 Rate Application and
Approval Procedures. This action was considered and approved for
promulgation by the Commission at a previously announced open
meeting held on August 12, 2015, notice of which was given
pursuant to General Provisions Article, §3-302(c), Annotated Code of
Maryland. If adopted, the proposed amendments will become
effective on or about December 10, 2015.

Statement of Purpose
The purpose of this action is to assure that rate applications are
submitted in easily readable formats.

Comparison to Federal Standards
There is no corresponding federal standard to this proposed action.

Estimate of Economic Impact

The proposed action has no economic impact.

. E:':o omic Impact on Small Businesses
The proposed action has minimal or no economic impact on smail
businesse$. j

5y Impact on Individuals with Disabilities
The iroposéd 87“0[1 has no impact on individuals with disabilities.

1 Opportunity for Public Comment

Commgnts may be sent to Diana Kemp, Regulations Coordinator,
Health Services Cost Review Commission, 4160 Patterson Avenue,
Baltimores, MD 21215, or call 410-764-2576, or email to
diana kemp@maryland.gov, or fax to 410-358-6217. Comments will

. be-accepted through November 2, 2015. A public hearing has not

been scheduled.

.10 Docketing and Receipt.

A.—B. (text unchanged)

C. The hospital shall file an original and three copies of each rate
application and its supporting documents, if any. The Commission
may prescribe the format to be used in the submission of rate
applications and their supporting documents. In addition, the hospital
shall file with each rate application a certificate of service indicating
that the application and supporting documents have been mailed or
served upon all designated parties to that proceeding and upon the
Commission at its offices.

JOHN M. COLMERS
Chairman

MARYLAND REGISTER, VOLUME 42, ISSUE 20, FRIDAY, OCTOBER 2, 2015



State of Maryland
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene

John M. Colmers
Chairman

Donna Kinzer
Executive Director

Herbert S. Wong, Ph.D.
Vice-Chairman

Stephen Ports
Principal Deputy Director
Policy and Operations
George H. Bone,

M.D. David Romans

Director

Stephen F. Jencks, Payment Reform

M.D., M.P.H. and Innovation
Jack C. Keane Health Services Cost Review Commission ey Drastor
st L, 00 P v, Sl afrd 121
M.D. Toll Free: 1-888-287-3229 Sule Calikoglu, Ph.D.
Thomas R. Mullen hsorc.maryland.gov Resealrjce}?:;yle\lllr:t%tgcrjology
TO: Commissioners

FROM: HSCRC Staff

DATE: November 18, 2015
RE: Hearing and Meeting Schedule
December 9, 2015 To be determined - 4160 Patterson Avenue

HSCRC/MHCC Conference Room

January 13, 2015 To be determined - 4160 Patterson Avenue
HSCRC/MHCC Conference Room

Please note that Commissioner’ s binders will be available in the Commission’s office at 11:45
am..

The Agendafor the Executive and Public Sessionswill be available for your review on the
Thursday before the Commission meeting on the Commission’s website at
http://www.hscrc.maryland.gov/commission-meetings-2015.cfm

Post-meeting documents will be available on the Commission’s website following the
Commission meeting.



	jobs-proposals-comment-letters-111715.pdf
	Jobs proposal comment letters 111615.pdf
	Hospital Job Program comment letters 11.16.pdf
	Health Job Opportunity Program comment letters.pdf
	2015_09_08_signed_HSCRC Response to John Colmers re Health Employment Program

	CBurrell Ltr to JColmers re Hopkins Health Employment Program (Oct21 2015)
	Jobs Proposal comment letter from Build
	1199SEIU Comments to Health Job Opportunity Program (002)
	DOCS-#181813-v1-HSCRC_jobs_proposal_letter

	BAM Letter to Colmers 11 5 1512




